AGENDA

P.

1



1I.

II1.

Iv.

VI

AGENDA

City of Franklin, Kentucky
City Commission

Monday, June 10, 2019
Special Called Meeting — 7:00 PM

Franklin-Simpson High School Football Stadium
Quarterback Club Pavilion
Yokley Drive
Franklin, Kentucky

In Case of Rain Meeting Will Be Moved to City Hall @ 6PM

Call to Order and Member Roll Call

Opening Prayer - Eric Walker, Franklin Community Church

Approval of Minutes

* Meeting Minutes from May 13, 2019 Regular Session

* Meeting Minutes from May 13, 2019 Special Called Budget Work Session

* Meeting Minutes from June 3, 2019 Special Called Meeting and Budget Work Session
Recognitions

¢ Recognize Police Chief Roger Solomon
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

Community Services

¢ Discussion and/or possible action regarding Community Service Agreements
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

General Government

¢ Discussion and/or possible action regarding Board Appointments
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

» Discussion and/or possible action regarding Kentucky Downs Fireworks Display
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

» Discussion and/or possible action regarding CSX Railroad Crossing
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

¢ Discussion and/or possible action regarding F-S Industrial Authority Sidewalk Grant
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

 Discussion and/or possible action regarding F-S Planning & Zoning Building Inspector
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

P. 2

Pg. 5
Pg. 12

Pg. I3

Pg. 18

Pg. 22

Pg. 44

Pg. 45

Pg. 66



General Government (Continued)

VIL.

VIIL

IX.

XL

Discussion and/or possible action regarding Proposed Ordinance for Holley Performance Pg. 67
Products KBI Inducement Presenter: Scott Crabtree, City Attorney
Discussion and/or possible action regarding Revisions to Personnel Policy Pg. 75

Presenter: Scott Crabtree, City Attorney

Discussion and/or possible action regarding Award of Workers Compensation Insurance Pg. 127
Presenter: Scott Crabtree, City Attorney

* Discussion and/or possible action regarding Award of Employee Health, Dental and Vision Pg. 128
Insurance Coverage Presenter: Rita Vaughn, Personnel Director

Utilities

* Discussion and/or possible action regarding Water and Sewer Contract for Northwoods Pg. 134
Subdivision Presenter: Chris Klotter, Public Works Director

Ordinances

Second Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-013 titled:
Amendment to Ordinance Adopting a Comprehensive Plan of Annexation for the
City of Franklin, Kentucky Pg. 148

Second summary reading of Ordinance No. 2019-010 titled:
An Ordinance Amending the Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2018
and ending June 30, 2019 by Estimating Revenues and Appropriations Pg. 150

Possible First Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-014 titled:

An Ordinance of the Board of Commissioner of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, Authorizing

The Grant of an Inducement for the Acquisition and Construction of a Project Pursuant to

The Kentucky Business Investment Program (KRS 154.32-010 to 154.32-100) Whereby the

City Agrees to Forego the Collection of the One Percent (1%,) City Occupational License Fee

On Wages from Holley Performance Products, Inc. that would Otherwise be Due with Respect

To Project Employees, which Amounts shall be Collected and Remitted to the City to be Refunded

Upon Employer’s Request Over a Term of Not Longer than Ten (10) Years from the Activation

Date Established by Said Program,; and Taking Other Related Action Pg. 152

Possible First Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-011 titled:

An Ordinance Adopting the Annual Budget for the Fiscal year Beginning July 1, 2019 and

Ending June 30, 2020 by Estimating Revenues and Appropriations Pg. 156
Presenter: Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

Public Safety

Discussion and/or possible action regarding Purchase of Property located at 620 West Madison Pg. 159
Street, 203 Witt Road and 211 Witt Road Presenter: Scott Crabtree, City Attorney

Discussion regarding Potential Uses for Property Purchase
Comments By: Mayor Larry Dixon

Comments and Questions from the Public

Adjournment

P.3



MINUTES

P.

4



MINUTES OF REGULAR SESSION
OF THE
CITY OF FRANKLIN
CITY COMMISSION

May 13,2019
City Hall

117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky

The Franklin, Kentucky City Commission met in Regular Session at 12:00 Noon, Monday,
May 13, 2019, in the City Hall meeting room located at 117 West Cedar Street, Franklin,
Kentucky.

Members attending were as follows:

Mayor Larry Dixon Present
Commissioner Jamie Powell Present
Commissioner Herbert Williams Present
Commissioner Brownie Bennett Present
Commissioner Wendell Stewart Present

Others present included City Manager Kenton Powell; City Attorney Scott Crabtree; City
Personnel Director/Deputy Clerk, Rita Vaughn; City Finance Director, Shaunna Cornwell;
City Police Chief, Roger Solomon; Public Works Superintendent Chris Klotter; City Clerk,
Cathy Dillard; F-S Human Rights Commission Director, Donzella Lee; Franklin
Favorite/WFKN media representative, Keith Pyles; Simpson County Fire Chief Leslie
Goodrum and Nelson Slaughter from the Fire Department; Captain Kelly Mayfield and Lt.
Dale Adams of the Franklin Police Department; and, Robbie Matthews the Franklin Police
Department’s newest officer.

Mayor Dixon called the meeting to order at 12:00 Noon, and Herbert Williams offered the
opening prayer.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Bennett to
approve the minutes as presented of the April 22, 2019, regular meeting of the Franklin City
Commission

Voting aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

P. 5



RECOGNITION

Franklin Police Chief Roger Solomon introduced incoming police officer Robbie Matthews.
Chief Solomon said Matthews would enter a three to four week accelerated training program
and, due his previous law enforcement experience, would then be available for patrol duty.

City Attorney Scott Crabtree administered the oath of office for Officer Matthews.

COMMUNITY SERVICES

Lt. Dale Adams, Franklin Police Department, provided a discussion and video presentation
regarding the use of drones for law enforcement purposes. Lt. Adams indicated that drone
usage in the law enforcement environment had become more prevalent due to the availability
of affordable technology.

Chief Solomon is proposing the purchase of a drone for the department with funds for the
purchase from the drug forfeiture fund. The cost for the equipment, training and licensure
would have a total cost of approximately $4,715.00. The department hopes to have three (3)
trained handlers, one handler for each shift.

No action was taken by the Commission regarding this matter.

City Clerk Cathy Dillard discussed the upcoming Neighborhood Walk and Special Called
Commission meeting scheduled for Monday, June 10, 2019. This special called meeting will
replace the regularly scheduled meeting on June 10 at 12:00 Noon.

The walk will begin at 6:00 PM at the Quarterback Club Pavilion at the Franklin-Simpson
High School football stadium with the special called meeting to begin at 7:00 PM. In the event
of inclement weather the walk could be cancelled and the meeting held at 6:00 PM at City Hall.
Signs will be placed along the route to notify and invite residents to walk with City officials
and attend a City Commission meeting.

No action was taken by the Commission regarding this matter.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Fire Chief Leslie Goodrum discussed the most recent Franklin and Simpson County ISO
Rating and the rating criteria and process. The 2019 rating will be 4/4Y which becomes
effective August 1, 2019, and represents an improvement over the 2011-2012 rating.

Chief Goodrum noted that the scoring categories receiving the lowest score were the personnel
and the deployment category. These lower scores were received because we do not have a 24-
hour fully staffed fire department and the only way to improve this score would be to hire
additional full time employees.

P. 6



The Goodrum and the Commission were pleased with the results of the rating. The improved
classification could potentially impact insurance premium rates for our community.

No action was taken by the Commission regarding this matter.

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission to consider an ordinance amending the
comprehensive plan of annexation ordinance. The current ordinance was passed in 1982 and
omitted the “area generally to the west.”

Commissioner Powell and Commissioner Stewart asked to sponsor the ordinance. First
summary reading of the ordinance took place during the ordinance portion of our meeting.

No action was required by the Commission regarding this matter.

City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell reviewed the year-end operating budget, the proposed
third budget amendment for the fiscal year 2018-2019 budget, and provided an overview of
the significant changes to the fund balances. These changes reflect the pre-funded community
service commitments to several organizations.

Commissioner Powell and Commissioner Stewart asked to sponsor the proposed budget
amendment ordinance with first summary reading taking place during the ordinance portion of

this meeting.

No action was required by the Commission regarding this matter.

City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell asked the Commission to ratify the Mayor’s signature
on a certificate of deposit account with German American Bank which was opened on May 1,
2019. This account was opened to allow the City to take advantage of an increased interest
rate on funds set aside for debt service on the fiber optic bonds. The certificate maturity date
will coincide with the bond maturity.

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to ratify
the Mayor’s signature and to authorize the establishment of a certificate of deposit account
with German American Bank and to further authorize signors on the account to be the City
Manager, Finance Director, and Community Development Director.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell addressed the Commission regarding the fiscal year

2019-2020 Municipal Aid Cooperative Agreement between the City of Franklin and the

Commonwealth of Kentucky Transportation Cabinet, Department of Rural and Municipal Aid,

which will provide $168,591.99 to aid the City in the construction, reconstruction, and

maintenance of certain roads and bridges for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. This agreement, along
3

P. 7



with the following resolution, must be approved annually to continue participation in the
Municipal Road Aid Cooperative Program.

RESOLUTION NO. B - 2019

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
RESOLUTION ADOPTING AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION
OF A MUNICIPAL AID CO-OP PROGRAM CONTRACT BETWEEN
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN AND THE COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY,
TRANSPORTATION CABINET, DEPARTMENT OF RURAL AND MUNICIPAL AID

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2019, AS PROVIDED IN
THE KENTUCKY REVISED STATUTES, AND ACCEPTING ALL STREETS

REFERRED TO THEREIN AS BEING STREETS WHICH ARE A PART

OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky has determined that it is in the best
interest of the citizens of Franklin, Kentucky to accept the invitation from the Department of Rural and Municipal Aid to
participate in a cooperative program to aid the City in the construction, reconstruction, and maintenance of certain roads
and bridges using its share of the Municipal Road Aid Funds apportioned to it by the Department of Rural and Municipal

Aid; and,

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the City must enter into a Municipal Road Aid Cooperative Program
Agreement in order to participate in this program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky as
Jfollows:

1. The Board of Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky does hereby accept all streels referred to in said contract
as being city streets which are a part of the City of Franklin; and

2. The Board of Commissioners of the City of Franklin does hereby ratify and adopt all statements, representations,
warranties, covenants, and agreements contained in said contract and does hereby accept said contract and by such
acceptance agrees to all the terms and conditions therein stated; and

3. The Chief Executive Officer (Mayor) of the City of Franklin is hereby authorized and directed to sign said contract as
set forth on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the City of Franklin, and the City Clerk of Franklin, Kentucky is
hereby authorized and directed to certify thereto.

4. This resolution was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Commissioners of the City of Franklin at a meeting
held on May 13, 2019.

The required public hearing regarding the use of these funds was held on May 13, 2019 at
11:45 AM.

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell seconded by Commissioner Williams to approve
the Municipal Road Aid Cooperative Program Agreement for Fiscal year 2019-2020 and to
adopt Resolution No. B-2019, and authorize the Mayor to sign any documents necessary to
effectuate this motion.

Voting Aye: All present. Motion carried unanimously.

City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell asked the Commission to consider entering into an
agreement with Springbuk, through Peel & Holland, for analytical trend data services relating
to health insurance utilization. The cost for this service is approximately $820.00 annually.

P. 8



Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Powell to
approve $820.00 annually to Peel & Holland to generate benefit and wellness claim reports
and to authorize the Mayor to sign all documents necessary for the execution of this agreement.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell requested the Commission’s approval for award of
road salt as a result of the salt bid reverse auction for FY 2019-2020. There is no obligation to
purchase salt under this bid but it ensures that salt is available for purchase at a fixed price if
there is a shortage. Two bids were received with Compass Minerals providing the lowest bid
at $98.00 per ton. Mrs. Cornwell indicated that 150 tons will be purchased under this bid price.

Motion was made by Commissioner Williams and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
award the salt bid to Compass Minerals as the lowest and best responsive, responsible bidder

in the amount of $98.00 per ton.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Franklin-Simpson Renaissance Summer Nights Concert Series begins Friday, June 7, 2019,
and Renaissance requested to close South College Street from West Kentucky Avenue to West
Cedar Street between the hours of 4:00 PM until 10:00 PM for the following dates:

Friday, June 7, 2019
Friday, June 21, 2019
Friday, June 28, 2019
Friday, July 5, 2019
Friday, July 12,2019
Friday, July 19, 2019
Friday, July 26, 2019
Friday, August 2, 2019

. Friday, August 9, 2019
10. Friday, August 23, 2019
11. Friday, August 30, 2019

00N O LR W

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
approve the request submitted by F-S Renaissance to close South College Strect from West
Kentucky Avenue to West Cedar Street from 4:00 PM until 10:00 PM for the Summer Nights
Concert Series for the concert dates listed above.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

P.9



City Clerk Cathy Dillard provided an update to the Commission regarding the recent online
surplus property auction. The City recently finalized our first online surplus property auction
with GovDeals. The bid results were presented and included the number of bids and online
visitors for each individual item. The increased exposure to potential bidders provided by the
online platform resulted in a significantly better sale. Six items were sold for a total sale price
of $18,733.00.

No action was required by the Commission regarding this matter.

PUBLIC SAFETY

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission to consider approval of amendments to
the following Police Policies and Procedures:

Section 1, Chapter 6 — Career Development and High Education
Section 1, Chapter 7 — General Management

Section 1, Chapter 21 — Uniforms and Appearance

Section 1, Chapter 26 — Budgeting/Finance

Section 1, Chapter 28 — Physical Fitness Standards

.Lh-lkb)[\.)v—a

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Williams to
authorize the amendments as presented to the Franklin Police Department Policies and
Procedures manual.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

ORDINANCES

City Clerk Cathy Dillard presented first summary reading of the following ordinances:

Ordinance No. 2019-013 titled: Amendment to Ordinance Adopting a Comprehensive Plan of
Annexation for the City of Franklin, Kentucky

Ordinance No. 2019-010 titled: An Ordinance Amending the Annual Budget for the Fiscal
Year Beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019 by Estimating Revenues and
Appropriations

No action is taken at first reading of an ordinance.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 12:58 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner
Stewart to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of:

(1) LAND ACQUISITION — Deliberations on the future acquisition or sale of real
property by a public agency where publicity would be likely to affect the value of a

P.10



specific piece of property to be acquired for public use or sold by a public agency {KRS
61.810(1)(b);

(2) LITIGATION — Discussion of proposed or pending litigation {KRS 61.810(1)(c)}
Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Entering Executive Session were Mayor Dixon; Commissioners Powell, Bennett, Williams and
Stewart; and City Attorney Scott Crabtree.

At 1:55 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner
Stewart to exit Executive Session and return to open session.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

OTHER COMMISSiON BUSINESS

Mayor Dixon reminded everyone about the Memorial Day services at Greenlawn Cemetery on
Monday, May 27, 2019 at 2:00 PM. Mayor Dixon invited everyone to attend the services.

Commissioner Stewart commented that Atmos Energy bills continued to be higher than normal

due to a billing error in this area. Commissioner Bennett indicated that Atmos was offering
their customers payment options due to the billing errors.

ADJOURNMENT

At 1:55 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner
Stewart to adjourn the regular meeting of the Franklin City Commission.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Larry Dixon, Mayor Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, Kentucky City of Franklin, Kentucky

P. 11



MINUTES OF SPECIAL SESSION
OF THE
CITY OF FRANKLIN CITY COMMISSION

May 13,2019 at 9:00 AM
City Hall
117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky

The Franklin City Commission held a Special Budget Work Session at 9:00 AM, Monday,
May 13, 2019, in the City Hall meeting room located at 117 West Cedar Street, Franklin,
Kentucky.

Members attending were as follows:

Mayor Larry Dixon Present
Commissioner Brownie Bennett Present
Commissioner Herbert Williams Present
Commissioner Jamie Powell Present
Commissioner Wendell Stewart Present

Others present included City Finance Director, Shaunna Cornwell; Public Works Director
Chris Klotter; Franklin Police Chief Roger Solomon; Michael Ranburger; Trent Coffee; Kenny
Massey; and, Captain Kelly Mayfield.

Mayor Larry Dixon called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM.

The purpose of the meeting as listed on the advance agenda was to conduct a work session for
development of the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Annual Budget; and to discuss the third budget
amendment for the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 budget.

Finance Director Cornwell discussed proposed capital expenditure budget items with department
heads and reviewed community service financial statements and requests. No official action was
taken.

ADJOURNMENT

At 11:12 AM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner
Bennett to adjourn the special budget work session meeting of the Franklin City Commission.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Larry Dixon, Mayor Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, Kentucky City of Franklin, Kentucky

P.12



MINUTES OF SPECIAL SESSION
OF THE
CITY OF FRANKLIN CITY COMMISSION

June 3,2019 at 9:00 AM
City Hall
117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky
The Franklin City Commission held a Special Called Meeting and Budget Work Session at
9:00 AM, Monday, June 3, 2019, in the City Hall meeting room located at 117 West Cedar
Street, Franklin, Kentucky.

Members attending were as follows:

Mayor Larry Dixon Present
Commissioner Brownie Bennett Present
Commissioner Herbert Williams Present
Commissioner Jamie Powell Present
Commissioner Wendell Stewart Present

Others present included City Manager, Kenton Powell; City Attorney, Scott Crabtree; City
Finance Director, Shaunna Cornwell; Public Works Director Chris Klotter; Franklin Police
Chief Roger Solomon; City Clerk, Cathy Dillard; Personnel Director/Deputy Clerk, Rita
Vaughn; and, Community Development Director, Tammie Carey.

Mayor Larry Dixon called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM and Commissioner Herbert
Williams offered an opening prayer.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 9:02 AM, motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner
Powell to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of: Land Acquisition — Deliberations
on the future acquisition or sale of real property by a public agency where publicity would be
likely to affect the value of a specific piece of property to be acquired for public use or sold by
a public agency {KRS 61.810(1)(b);

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Entering Executive Session were Mayor Dixon; Commissioners Powell, Bennett, Williams and
Stewart; City Manager Kenton Powell; City Attorney Scott Crabtree; City Finance Director
Shaunna Cornwell; Public Works Director Chris Klotter; Police Chief Roger Solomon; and
City Clerk Cathy Dillard.

At 9:06 AM motion was made by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner
Williams to exit Executive Session and return to open session.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.
1

P. 13



GENERAL GOVERNMENT

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission to approve a letter of support to Hurdle
Land & Realty, LLC for their proposed development of property located on Highway 100 just
past Drakes Creek. In conjunction with the proposed development, Hurdle Land & Realty,
LLC asked the City to consider the termination and release of an easement to flow water across
and over a portion of the land which was granted by the previous owner of the property. In
addition, an amended easement was presented for approval whereby Hurdle Land & Realty,
LLC will not hold the City of Franklin responsible for any flooding or resultant damages
caused by the any improvements within the flowage easement area.

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
authorize the Mayor and City Attorney to sign the proposed letter of support to Hurdle Land
& Realty, LLC; and, to further authorize the Mayor to sign the proposed Termination and
Release of Easement and Amended Easement on behalf of the City of Franklin.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission to consider approval for the Mayor to sign
the proposed Compliance Agreement between the City of Franklin, Franklin Electric Plant
Board and Tennessee Valley Authority. The Compliance Agreement represents the City’s
prior commitment to act as guaranty for the debt obligation for the fiber project.

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Powell to
authorize the Mayor to sign, on behalf of the City of Franklin, the Compliance Agreement
between the City of Franklin, Franklin Electric Plant Board and Tennessee Valley Authority.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Community Development Director Tammie Carey asked the Commission to consider approval
to purchase 42 telephone handsets and equipment from our current provider, Windstream, in
the amount of $5,060.02. After purchasing the equipment through this buyout option, the City
can then change providers to EPB Fiber using their VOIP technology.

In addition, the equipment that runs the system will be updated. A quote from Folco
Communications in the amount of $7,569.00 will allow a trade-up of and addition to the
equipment.

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Bennett to
complete the buyout of the telephone system equipment from Windstream and authorize the

Mayor to sign any and all documents for this transaction.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

P. 14



Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Williams to
update the telephone system equipment through Folco Communications and authorize the
Mayor to sign any and all documents for this transaction.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell asked the Commission to consider approval of
establishing a new investment account for the City of Franklin with Franklin Bank & Trust
Company. This investment account will move funds from the current money market account
and provide an opportunity to increase earnings.

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Powell to
authorize the establishment of an investment account with Franklin Bank & Trust Company,
subject to review of the new account documents by the City Manager, Finance Director and
City Attorney, and to approve authorized signors on the account to be the Mayor, City
Manager, Finance Director and Community Development Director.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell asked the Commission to consider approval of
establishing a new money market account for the City of Franklin with South Central Bank.
This money market account will move funds from certificate of deposit accounts and provide
an opportunity to increase interest earnings.

Motion was made by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Williams to
authorize the establishment of a money market account with South Central Bank, subject to
review of the new account documents by the City Manager, Finance Director and City
Attorney, and to approve authorized signors on the account to be the Mayor, City Manager,
Finance Director and Community Development Director.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

At this time City Attorney Scott Crabtree recognized City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell.
She has been asked to serve on Kentucky League of Cities newly created Investment Pool
Committee.

BUDGET WORK SESSION

The Commission held a work session for development of the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Annual
Budget. Finance Director Cornwell and City Manager Kenton Powell discussed each department’s
capital projects and proposed expenditures.

No official action was taken regarding the budget.

P. 15



ADJOURNMENT

At 11:51 AM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner
Bennett to adjourn the special meeting and budget work session of the Franklin City
Commission.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Larry Dixon, Mayor Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, Kentucky City of Franklin, Kentucky

P. 16



RECOGNITIONS

P. 17



AR RN

MEM()

1 Fravklin Ciiy Corrrnissem
FREOM: iy Manager Kenton Powell
AT Tune 3%, 2019

SUGILC L. Recownilion
Chicl Rowe Solwnon recently received 2 corlificate o the Kenowelgr Law Enforcement

nm

Connetl far his comrioasd carcer develqument. An achievemenl like this veoguiret nany houis
sway from bome amd (e e be was at home, it commsndad buge wooants of research 2nd
work olome the next closs session. bt my opinion, 13 savs o ot abeat an Sndividags" charasion
whi cortirues to lezrn and cxpand Lis koowledie when it iz not mendaied o dio s,

| Like to recesnioe Chicl Rocer Solomon achicvement during Monday™s Commizsion Mecling,

Prolivy 15 uheiel corse description for vour seleremae:

CRIMTNAL JUSTICE EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMIENT
This proaram 33 struchimed Tor s | o medivm size law enforearenl wgency administzators and
mssgers, The purpsse is Lo provide the stedenss woith comnlemparary 1heones, managencent
b, and leadership skills enabling them o perfimm moee e lectivels apd efficienily m (har
pevailices ns comounity leadess. Lo eourse propures Qe leaders of today for the challenges they
will tace mnthe future, The e enlomeamenl Tuncticna) arcas tiat wall ke sddvessed aret problem
idzorification, amalysis arad solving; personnel adadeistalion: operations and [aea, Melazemaen;
policizs wd proceduces; lezal coccemms: sed ergemsativnu! behavio: feulmpz, Topros emphasise:
thecughout tae course ingluds lesdarmshin, eltocs, executive mnm; andd public speaking. The
pragram rege e o high level ol motivation, somplation of projecisissignmments, :Llhl th'\.-
carrrmiriEnl cinnpl et the entite eovrss, Lo CITTY connse 15 o cha |~:5[.2.J.'I.__ and ronsarding
educationnl experionss. The CIED Lendershin Ansocintion Ofticers coview all: I]'-'['.l|1i; waems and
recormends e seleciion alalendses wo the Deparmmeant of Camial Jusice Trafning. The larming
alocnnes (or Uhis course will e fos stodents fo dovelep an foreused level of confid coee in the
pertormance of xeentive duties wo maTude: public speakisg, auctacting, cxconive wrltng, and
arganizational noanapement.

P.18



B
":j.l I} '!_ s 4

=Ly
-

e
A o I 6l LRV T T A L T O B TR T

[ RRHETEY M I PR T] Likat: filleg Trwd P
hoavnis e AN Rl Sl el S g Lerouluelezicy

(L o B

Hapei Alan scleoonn
Fraailin 200,

00 5 S s
Fremilo, B 4213

e g Slan Sotamen:

O bz el Sher Hesfucloy Law = fnrcamen) Gl Py Lo als 's2a wvou ie esming the Law
Entarzareant el Dol codifzata within the Caraer Dmvnlnpureal Proceanes, 700 s s siwed slan ol

VLT braining, eucEtion, exparnanee vl vou avozell sommilment B prove 3z a = enfamament aficsr,

Saain congralalationg ocihs achileveicnl fecrourago wou o canlFa Lz 1o nafizyeaie inche Dares
prevessines] Boograrn snad poraue ol @ aedifiales s oo Lol Seecion v s carcor in tha lew anforcznsnl
profese bn

Sl
at = __.-"i
. '\\l A
P2 e
Lo :-'hjli||!_|
Program Coodissinr

ritheE Ml vy = D0 g ey = B penal HY Gt 35sa
[LEE R ERE S e L T TR TIRCY FECRCT TR BTN FER T TP PO TR SR PRI L

P. 149



0g d

T T ki i ey

N T SR T = |

Kentucky Law Enforcement Council 1

ey
1
|

()
=
) =

z,
=]
F%J
=
£
3"‘5’?
=]
L--*l
Cﬁ
5
ﬂ
l‘.‘f
-ﬁ
E
@
%
>

=

e,
*
o
T
TEJ
=
Iy
el
y !
i

- e -

3 |

K, ]

L i P e g1
| = = i
e ] J

| W & ) i

| = L .\-"‘-\-_:;:b-ﬂ {g&‘jl fl&l:\m& '_-_ ;
. e D Rtey  }
o I

i i
i | The Menrnoly Lew Snforcemant Conneil Zarehy awares the cerdflcate of | f
Law Enforcemoent Chielf Executive d |

| ROGER ALAN SOLOMON |

v havang tullilsd dhe reqwirements as proserized v g !
o Magtihy Revised :;':ET“'*' o300} and S5 KAR 1:170 Prescmfed fhis &in day of ®lay 20369, }

i |
| __"'_ .-l_,-"_"' = [yl _I.-". 2 I -
| e P T b i

R 7 “"’}t‘ﬁ H g — |

Fron Rout. w._'l'h_'l.l'b:ll:l"\-\.l_ gk

-

i Tenit Jumes Tl
" ank e v
i L E mement Druraii Ak Totw e mimael Doungt

=
]
e l= | ;.‘ 'I,g v E
] .' l, I = Delizime: w0l j
—_— - — I o e
1,

|-—-—-—-—".|un=|:|=:.'_'—'

I




COMMUNITY
SERVICES

P. 21



MEMORANTHIM

T hMazar Larey Disen soe Comimissicnars

Froo; Eenton Powaell, iy Yanaper

Subguel: Aveenenis o Rervices  Conumnnity Sarvice Ovgamizghions
Tl Junes o, 20019

Thi tlird Boclyel woendment we Y 20182019 budzet appreves pre-imdmy, o the oliowing
cOTTTIInilY Service orpanizations. A new Agroemen (or Seevices e sach arganization 1z
attached tor yonr revicey and approval,

Hope Harbor AL AN
Lmikad Waw 211 Program 23001
Cialiery om The Sopuare T Ll UG
RRATHDY Aging Kervices 20000
[-8 [ lwmar Riabes Commisaion R HH MR
L Lrack rogram SkYCTC AR HIR
b Aot Counell 5 HHLAN
Czonnd Bemaritan, Tne. B A A
T-3 Fonissmee R R

FProposed ¥otion: Recommend molion Lo approve the Agreements for Services lir luniding
for the alnwe communily arganizations and suthorize the ayvoer b sigo the agreements 4m
relialfl of the City.

P.. 28



ACRECMENT FOR SERVICES

i Bl day «f

1FIs AGREFEMENT, meds wud splersd inte nn this
I‘uﬁ;{u? 2200, by snd betanan the CITY OF TRANELD, KCMTUCKY, by and
Mol dis duly auhenasd wnd aching represenasye, here mafier ronrnd t0as tha "Ciny
and IIOPE HARTOR, TOWLING GREDN, RENTICEY heromafies wofamed e oas
“Hope arbor .

WL 2S5LT L

WIILRKT AR, e Uiy Commissioe s of <05 i of Frackling Koo okey. ©23ie 1o

anfer inm & ecptiaet witkh Hope Havior, Lor the aubhic and coarite pepnes of ereia

otervenbtivn seovives; cncl

WIIEREAS, Haoe Tharbor s wreed o prencs thc aooviocs sot foethy o0 is
AUTSETnEn .

DTN, TOTRATT GRTL an coraideration of the porysl benelite 1o be d=tived by (he
meclisy oo th-: mplemestaten o the trms Lersoll e pasides o remes evenent and
arron g5 tollnws

Lo Dompaoszanas, URs Cire o epiess e oy Tlape TVavher the som of Bive thousand
Doollare 53,0000, S Fe seroces sot Stoth Do Beoloan (21l {hits Asreemnesl
duwing the contracs =rom.

2. Service:n

w) Mope Iarbor voress L perfirm pehlic seevioes for e Cily ol Tocklin
-t the Cabe's readomes inoeerte e c1_sls siloaiions,

b Hope Harlor perees wo mabe o vepeosesrssive avalla®s to snesl Cile
Cusnisslom o omzshngs ot ccfamn the Coonnlsion of the dulisy end
apn sioities of Tupe arbor and b edocaw to poeklia as 1o e seoviies
iwetlable wo the oiitaens of the Cite nf <eanklie

Ao Lorene and Teswipatias 1708 A shall condinis Som Jaly 1, "-'JJI'J 7 sl
vl Joowe 30, 2020, .|.-ll HELY TIOL B2 T "“-'-.'n:rl milage a nesr conpset s s e
Ly anstual comsenl of the par doe.

4. Lbmore Asreorent. Dtz Agieament shell constiioe e ombive Agrcoment heobrzom
the perics Ao sy polor dwdsrstionding or reprzasietstinn of aoy kind pooncdiog the

Fage ol 2

P. 23




it

o

dals o this Aerecment shal pot be linding wpon elflor parly exsspl e e cxmenl
ronmperaeed i this Agrecseml

sfedification o7 dpmeernest. Ao redifencon of the Agrecment o goddiziamsl
nllsabinn cseozed oo et el Lz copeedon with this Aercomonl Jh:éll'!. -'_'?
voding ooty I placed fn weitng wnd sipoecd byocacln puiy ©F AT aiLourio
Jt‘,r:n-:'.i-::dra'ri_'-.-':*. of zach party,

Ma Ssiver. The Silnse of vhe Oy 0 Iaslst vpan ihe perliomanes nl eny ol the
Lepins and erncidons of Qg Asreeme:Lor (e @aiver of mmy brzach of any of the
Lo and coaditens af Ciis Ageement by che iy shalt noe ke consiied 23
theieafrer heing oowalws of sny sl and and soedilicns, ot T ssme sl
Conitiine s sng cemain in fell faeen el efee. ai i ue 2ech forheuragee o0 weiver
had iseurrsd.

Topidal walidite. Tos ovalidin o mny porlivn ab t2ls Aprsemesn. wlll paracd
v not e denase wooal sl the ealidity o ay priher proviaiom. 17 uTs evell fliat

gy prewigton o s Ie Bald te o amvulil DY any ooum of cosoetant risde do.

ecles srres th lhe rapuiadns preadanme shodl be deesed o e i ol See

P
-

arm o il

mcepencent Sepsaeror, Hope Tlarbor, inothe porfomans el 1re warl _ner
qed oenan he Finogareesent, chall Be own imdeasndoml coslracta snt shall
[ricch at im2 oo meacinse all wodenns, o0 s, and ecuipmoat noseasary o g
snen oworl, The O '.t}: ahzll nos hove any saperdizine, Fretion, o eonmoel over L
sieaes ol ermlocs ol the soforsacee o Tope Ilaene™s work ond 2ia: have
oy the Fohd Lo nspees the seaalis of soch etk L aszies & awd cormplats

et =

przfosanee v Hape Tarber voder sed sl et s Anresmal,

=
-

i~ Wl OWESA WIISREOL, cacs paoty Lo (his Agrecment has cansed it oo he

soeee 5T oSrenen, Fenlucky, ar the e gt LM,

kb

% T -

- 'I?f:’ Lid i --r"""'F’?—.
P ey f AU A LAY
T or B . O 1

Lty Dhimer
oy ol Traskdio, BY

ATTEST:

Carve 1o favd, Oady Cleth
Cog ol Frankiiyg, KY

Mavos Pl s X Wasloy, Taec Dledtdr

Hropres Hazbu:

zasdaf2

F. .24




AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into on this ‘l__ day of _ , 2019, by
and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, by and through its duly authorized and
acting representative, hereinafter referred to as the "City", and UNITED WAY 211
PROGRAM, herein referred to as “211 PROGRAM”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, desire to enter
into a contract with UNITED WAY 211 PROGRAM for the public purpose of services
provided by this agency to the citizens of the City of Franklin, Kentucky; and,

WHEREAS, UNITED WAY 211 PROGRAM has agreed to provide the services set
forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived by the parties
from the implementation of the terms hereof, the parties do hereby covenant and agree as
follows:

1. Compensation. The City agrees to pay UNITED WAY 211 PROGRAM the sum of
Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) for the services set forth in Section
(2) of this Agreement during the contract term.

2. Services.
a. UNITED WAY 211 PROGRAM shall assist in providing citizens with a link
to health and human service programs available in Franklin and Simpson
County; and
b. UNITED WAY 211 PROGRAM shall designate a representative to appear
before the City Commission, at the Commission’s request, to report on the
status of the organization and/or report on upcoming events.

3. Assignments of Rights. The rights of each party under this Agreement are personal to
that party and may not be assigned or transferred to any other person, firm, corporation, or
other entity without the prior, express, and written consent of the other party.

4. Terms and Termination. This Agreement shall continue for one (1) year from July 1,
2019 to and including June 30, 2020, and may not be renewed unless a new contract is
issued by mutual consent of both parties.

5. Entire Agreement. This Agreement shall constitute the entire Agreement between the
. parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of

Page 1 of 2

P. 25



this Agreement shall not be binding upon either party except to the extent incorporated in
this Agreement.

. Modification of Agreement. Any modification of the Agreement or additional obligation
assumed by either party in connection with this Agreement shall be binding only if placed
in writing and signed by each party of an authorized representative of each party.

. No Waiver. The failure of the City to insist upon the performance of any of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement or the waiver of any breach of any of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement by the City, shall not be construed as thereafter being a
waiver of any such terms and conditions, but the same shall continue and remain in full
force and effect as if no such forbearance or waiver had occurred.

. Partial Invalidity. The invalidity of any portion of this Agreement will not and shall not
be deemed to affect the validity of any other provision. In the event that any provision of
this is held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the parties agree that the
remaining provisions shall be deemed to be in full force and effect.

. Independent Contractor. UNITED WAY 211 PROGRAM in the performance of the
services under and pursuant to this Agreement, shall be an independent contractor and
shall furnish at its own expense all workers, tools, and equipment necessary to perform
such services.

The City shall not have any supervision, direction, or control over the means or methods

of the performance of UNITED WAY 211 PROGRAM, and shall have only the right to inspect
the results of such services to assure full and complete performance by UNITED WAY 211
PROGRAM under and pursuant to this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party to this Agreement has caused it to be executed at

Franklin, Kentucky, on the day of ,2019.

UNITED WAY 211 PROGRAM

Larry Dixon, Mayor A// : VM Z
City of Franklin, K'Y By: ,(//7\/((,4(, A

Title: /Dﬁ]g/olzyﬁﬁ 7/ R ( 60

ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, KY

Page 2 of 2

P. 26



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into onthis__ day of , 2019, by
and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, by and through its duly authorized and
acting representative, hereinafter referred to as the "City", and SIMPSON COUNTY GUILD
OF ARTISTS AND CRAFTSMEN DBA GALLERY ON THE SQUARE herein referred to
as “GALLERY ON THE SQUARE”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, desire to enter
into a contract with GALLERY ON THE SQUARE for the public purpose of services provided
by this agency to the citizens of the City of Franklin, Kentucky; and,

WHEREAS, GALLERY ON THE SQUARE has agreed to provide the services set
forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived by the parties
from the implementation of the terms hereof, the parties do hereby covenant and agree as
follows:

1. Compensation. The City agrees to pay GALLERY ON THE SQUARE the sum of Ten
Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) payable in two equal installments of Five Thousand
($5,000.00) each for the services set forth in Section (2) of this Agreement during the
contract term.

2. Services.
a. GALLERY ON THE SQUARE shall continue to operate the Gallery on the
Square in Franklin, Kentucky and provide opportunities for citizens to
experience artistic and cultural events,.
b. GALLERY ON THE SQUARE shall designate a representative to appear
before the City Commission, at the Commission’s request, to report on the
status of the organization and/or report on upcoming events.

3. Assignments of Rights. The rights of each party under this Agreement are personal to
that party and may not be assigned or transferred to any other person, firm, corporation, or
other entity without the prior, express, and written consent of the other party.

4. Terms and Termination. This Agreement shall continue for one (1) year from July 1,
2019 to and including June 30, 2020, and may not be renewed unless a new contract is
issued by mutual consent of both parties.

Pége 1of2
P. 27



. Entire Agreement. This Agreement shall constitute the entire Agreement between the
parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of
this Agreement shall not be binding upon either party except to the extent incorporated in
this Agreement.

. Modification of Agreement. Any modification of the Agreement or additional obligation
assumed by either party in connection with this Agreement shall be binding only if placed
in writing and signed by each party of an authorized representative of each party.

. No Waiver. The failure of the City to insist upon the performance of any of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement or the waiver of any breach of any of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement by the City, shall not be construed as thereafter being a
waiver of any such terms and conditions, but the same shall continue and remain in full
force and effect as if no such forbearance or waiver had occurred.

. Partial Invalidity. The invalidity of any portion of this Agreement will not and shall not
be deemed to affect the validity of any other provision. In the event that any provision of
this is held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the parties agree that the
remaining provisions shall be deemed to be in full force and effect.

. Independent Contractor. GALLERY ON THE SQUARE in the performance of the
services under and pursuant to this Agreement, shall be an independent contractor and
shall furnish at its own expense all workers, tools, and equipment necessary to perform
such services.

The City shall not have any supervision, direction, or control over the means or methods

of the performance of GALLERY ON THE SQUARE, and shall have only the right to inspect
the results of such services to assure full and complete performance by GALLERY ON THE
SQUARE under and pursuant to this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party to this Agreement has caused it to be executed at

Franklin, Kentucky, on the

Larry Dixon, Mayor
City of Franklin, KY

ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, KY

day of , 2019.

Lisa Deavers, Director
Gallery on the Square

Andrew Coates, Board President
Simpson County Guild of Artists & Craftsmen
dba Gallery on the Square

Page 2 of 2
P. 28



BARREN RIVER AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
COMMUNITY AGING SERVICES
DONATION AGREEMENT
TO ADMINISTER DONATED FUNDS FOR SOCIAL SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of the 1% day of July, 2019, by and
between the Barren River Area Development District, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the

BRADD, and City of Franklin, P.O. Box 2805, Franklin, KY 42135 hereinafter referred to as

the Second Party,
WITNESSETH, THAT:

WHEREAS, funds donated by third-party public agencies or private sources for the
purpose of supporting specified Health and Social Services furnished by the BRADD may under
certain conditions be considered as local funds for the purpose of claiming State and Federal
reimbursement at the regular matching rate for the provision or the purchase of such services by
the BRADD where such funds are transferred to the BRADD and under its administrative
control; and

WHEREAS, the BRADD has a critical need for additional monies to supply needed
Health and Social Services and/or expand the supply, availability, and quality of such services to
public assistance recipients and certain other low-income families and individuals;

NOW, THEREFORE,

A. In consideration of the mutual undertaking and agreements herein set forth, the
BRADD and the Second Party agree as follows:

(1) Amount of Donation. The Second Party hereby donates to the BRADD
the sum of $2,000, hereinafter referred to as donated funds.

(2) Purpose of Donation. The donated funds are made available to the
BRADD for the purpose of providing Aging Services for individuals who
are eligible for such services under the BRADD Aging Area Plan.

3) Area Designation. The donated funds are made available to the BRADD
for services in the ten counties of the BRADD.

4 Payment of Donation. The donated funds shall be paid in the manner and
amount as agreed by the parties.

P. 29



B. In consideration of the Second Party’s agreement to contribute the donated funds,
the BRADD agrees as follows:

(D Expenditure of Donated Funds. The BRADD agrees to expend the
donated funds for the purpose of providing or purchasing the described
services in the geographic area specified.

(2) Administrative Control of Funds. Subject only to the terms and conditions
of this agreement, all donated funds paid by the Second Party to the
BRADD thereunder are donated on an unrestricted basis and shall be
under the administrative control of the BRADD. The parties expressly
understand and agree that except in the case of a refund required by the
terms of paragraph (4) below, or in accordance with 45 CFR 1396.53 (a)
(2) (iii), the donated funds shall in no way revert to the Second Party’s
facility or be earmarked for a particular individual or for members of
particular organizations.

3) Conditions on Parties’ Obligations. It is expressly understood and agreed
that the parties’ obligations herein set forth are conditional upon securing
and maintaining the approval of the necessary Federal and State
authorities for the provision by the BRADD of the service specified
herein. In the event that reimbursement to the BRADD from Federal and
State sources is not obtained or continued at a level sufficient to allow the
BRADD to provide or purchase the services specified herein, the
obligations of each party shall thereupon be terminated; provided,
however, that any termination of this agreement shall be without prejudice
to any obligations or liabilities either party already accrued prior to such
termination.

%) Refund of Unused Donation. Any donated funds not used or not
encumbered by the BRADD on or before expiration or cancellation of this
agreement shall be returned to the Second Party.

C. The period within the current fiscal year in which the subject services are to be
performed is from July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020.

D. Either party shall have the right to terminate this agreement at any time upon 30
days written notice served upon the other party by registered mail with return
receipt requested.

BARREN RIVER AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, INC. SECOND PARTY

Eric Sexton, Executive Director Mayor Larry Dixon

P. 30



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into on this ‘Mday of g\_/‘ @ , 2019, by

and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, by and through its duly authorized and

acting representative, hereinafter referred to as the "City", and FRANKLIN-SIMPSON
| HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION herein referred to as “HUMAN RIGHTS

COMMISSION”
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, desire to enter
into a contract with HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION for the public purpose of services
provided by this agency to the citizens of the City of Franklin, Kentucky; and,

WHEREAS, HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION has agreed to provide the services set
forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived by the parties
from the implementation of the terms hereof, the parties do hereby covenant and agree as
follows:

1. Compensation. The City agrees to pay HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION the sum of
Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) for the services set forth in Section (2) of this
Agreement during the contract term.

2. Services. The HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION shall designate a representative to
appear before the City Commission, at the Commission’s request, to report on the status
of the organization and/or report on upcoming events.

3. Assignments of Rights. The rights of each party under this Agreement are personal to
that party and may not be assigned or transferred to any other person, firm, corporation, or
other entity without the prior, express, and written consent of the other party.

4. Terms and Termination. This Agreement shall continue for one (1) year from July 1,
2019 to and including June 30, 2020, and may not be renewed unless a new contract is
issued by mutual consent of both parties.

5. Entire Agreement. This Agreement shall constitute the entire Agreement between the
parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of
this Agreement shall not be binding upon either party except to the extent incorporated in
this Agreement.

Page 1 of 2
P. 31



. Modification of Agreement. Any modification of the Agreement or additional obligation
assumed by either party in connection with this Agreement shall be binding only if placed
in writing and signed by each party of an authorized representative of each party.

. No Waiver. The failure of the City to insist upon the performance of any of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement or the waiver of any breach of any of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement by the City, shall not be construed as thereafter being a
waiver of any such terms and conditions, but the same shall continue and remain in full
force and effect as if no such forbearance or waiver had occurred.

. Partial Invalidity. The invalidity of any portion of this Agreement will not and shall not
be deemed to affect the validity of any other provision. In the event that any provision of
this is held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the parties agree that the
remaining provisions shall be deemed to be in full force and effect.

. Independent Contractor. HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION in the performance of the
services under and pursuant to this Agreement, shall be an independent contractor and
shall furnish at its own expense all workers, tools, and equipment necessary to perform
such services.

The City shall not have any supervision, direction, or control over the means or methods

of the performance of HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION, and shall have only the right to
inspect the results of such services to assure full and complete performance by HUMAN
RIGHTS COMMISSION under and pursuant to this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party to this Agreement has caused it to be executed at

Franklin, Kentucky, on the _/ /mL/Lday of 7\1(.0\*-'(3)/ , 2019.

Larry Dixon, Mayor Donizélla Lee, Director
City of Franklin, KY Franklin-Simpson Human Rights Commission
ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, K'Y

Page 2 of 2
P. 32



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
Southcentral Kentucky Community and Technical College
Foundation, Inc.

. THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this the _ 20" day of _June , 2019, by and
between City of Franklin Kentucky by and through its duly authorized and acting representative,
hereinafter referred to as the “City” and the Southcentral Kentucky Community and
Technical College Foundation, Inc. (for and on behalf of Southcentral Kentucky Community
and Technical College and the Simpson County On Track Scholarship Fund), 1845 Loop Drive,

Bowling Green, KY 42101, hereinafter referred to as “Foundation.”

WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the City desires to make an additional payment into the Simpson County On
Track Scholarship fund per the original contract with the Foundation Donors as established and
first executed in 2013.
WHEREAS, the Foundation agrees to receive and administer said Fund in accordance
with the wishes of the Donors;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and terms and conditions
hereinafter set forth, the Donors and the Foundation do hereby mutually agree as follows:
1. The fund shall be known as the Simpson County On Track Scholarship Fund
2. Funding shall consist of a gift of $10,000.00, which may be added to later by
the Donor(s)
3. Guideline for selection of the recipient(s)
e The scholarship is available to any student who attends Simpson
County Schools who is eligible to participate in the Dual Credit or
On Track programs.
e Students who graduate from Simpson County Schools may also be
eligible for the scholarship, based on the availability of funds.
4. The Recipient(s) of the Scholarship(s) will be chosen by the SKYCTC
Scholarship Committee in accordance with the procedures for eligibility in

the Dual Credit and On Track programs.

Page 1 of 2 (SKCTC Agreement)

P. 33



WITWTESS e sicopmues below thia _ day ol —

Lary Diizem, Mayor
iy at Frank i

I* 0, How 2ENs

117 Wosmi Cladar Slreel

Frapklin, K 42133-280%

ALLEST:

Coitkye Diillaesd, Cile Clerk

.-'l-ll : e ':-\-.. 1 ,.L-n ﬂ ":..IEL-:T
RWEE;"HTL&M T, rr i
“|,'||-_|-_ arnes D BaCasiin, Vice President

Soudheentral Koomekss Crmrvonily and Techoical

Caollege

a2 ol 2 ISKOTO Agreemenr)

F. 34



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into on this _Z:jday of f\ / E:g ‘iﬂ , 2019, by and
between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, by and through its duly authorized and acting
representative, hereinafter referred to as the "City", and FRANKLIN-SIMPSON
COMMUNITY ARTS COUNCIL INC herein referred to as “ARTS COUNCIL”.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, desire to enter
into a contract with ARTS COUNCIL for the public purpose of services provided by this agency
to the citizens of the City of Franklin, Kentucky; and,

WHEREAS, ARTS COUNCIL has agreed to provide the services set forth in this
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived by the parties
from the implementation of the terms hereof, the parties do hereby covenant and agree as
follows:

)] Compensation. The City agrees to pay ARTS COUNCIL the sum of Five Thousand
Dollars ($5,000.00) for the services set forth in Section (2) of this Agreement during the
contract term.

2) Services. ARTS COUNCIL shall provide opportunities for citizens to experience
artistic and cultural events, and shall designate a representative to appear before the City
Commission, at the Commission’s request, to report on the status of the organization
and/or report on upcoming events.

(3)  Assignments of Rights. The rights of each party under this Agreement are personal to
that party and may not be assigned or transferred to any other person, firm, corporation, or
other entity without the prior, express, and written consent of the other party.

(4)  Terms and Termination. This Agreement shall continue for one (1) year from July 1,
2019 to and including June 30, 2020 and may not be renewed unless a new contract is
issued by mutual consent of both parties.

&) Entire Agreement. This Agreement shall constitute the entire Agreement between the
parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of
this Agreement shall not be binding upon either party except to the extent incorporated in
this Agreement.

Page 1 0f 2
P. 35



(6)  Modification of Agreement. Any modification of the Agreement or additional obligation
assumed by either party in connection with this Agreement shall be binding only if placed
in writing and signed by each party of an authorized representative of each party.

(7) No Waiver. The failure of the City to insist upon the performance of any of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement or the waiver of any breach of any of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement by the City, shall not be construed as thereafter being a
waiver of any such terms and conditions, but the same shall continue and remain in full
force and effect as if no such forbearance or waiver had occurred.

(8)  Partial Invalidity. The invalidity of any portion of this Agreement wili not and shaii not
be deemed to affect the validity of any other provision. In the event that any provision of
this is held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the parties agree that the
remaining provisions shall be deemed to be in full force and effect.

9) Independent Contractor. ARTS COUNCIL in the performance of the services under and
pursuant to this Agreement, shall be an independent contractor and shall furnish at its
own expense all workers, tools, and equipment necessaty to perform such services.

The City shall not have any supervision, direction, or control over the means or methods
of the performance of ARTS COUNCIL, and shall have only the right to inspect the results of
such services to assure full and complete performance by ARTS COUNCIL under and pursuant
to this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party to this Agreement has caused it to be executed at

Franklin, Kentucky, on the day of ,2019.

WA U \ﬂ%@,\vﬁ
Larry Dixon, Mayor Brownie Bennett, Exécutive Director -
City of Franklin, KY FRANKLIN-SIMPSON COMMUNITY

ARTS COUNCIL, INC.

ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, KY

Page 2 of 2
P. 36



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into onthis____ day of , 2019, by
and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, by and through its duly authorized and
acting representative, hereinafter referred to as the "City", and GOOD SAMARITAN, INC.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, desire to enter
into a contract with GOOD SAMARITAN, INC. for services provided by this agency to the
citizens of the City of Franklin, Kentucky; and,

WHEREAS, GOOD SAMARITAN, INC. has agreed to provide the services set forth in
this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived by the parties
from the implementation of the terms hereof, the parties do hereby covenant and agree as
follows:

1. Compensation. The City agrees to pay GOOD SAMARITAN, INC. the sum of Eight
Thousand Dollars ($8,000.00), for the services set forth in Section (2) of this Agreement
during the contract term.

2. Services. GOOD SAMARITAN SAMARATIN, INC. agrees to perform the following
services for the City:

(a) GOOD SAMARITAN, INC. shall provide, upon proper evaluation,
assistance of food, special food boxes, clothing and/or shoes required for
employment, or household necessities, for citizens of the City of Franklin,
Kentucky. Other services to be provided by Good Samaritan, Inc. include
assisting residents of the City in locating local or state agencies to meet needs
that they may have; aiding families with monetary assistance for essential
bills; and providing assistance, such as motel and/or food, for transients.

(b) GOOD SAMARITAN, INC. agrees to make a representative available to
attend City Commission meetings to inform the Commission of the duties and
responsibilities of GOOD SAMARITAN, INC. and to educate the public as
to the services available to the citizens of the City of Franklin

3. Assignment of Rights. The rights of each party under this Agreement are personal to that
party and may not be assigned or transferred to any other person, firm, corporation, or
other entity without the prior, express, and written consent of the other party.

Page 1 of 2
P. 37



4. Terms and Tervmmsion,  This Agrecment shall continee freen Jukby 1, 2009 to and
including June 30, 2020, and may not be enewed crless a new contzact is iasuee by
muial consent of the other party.

3. Hotire Agresrnenl. This Agcrcement shall constiute the enfive Apreament borween the
prties rd any price andersandivg or opresatation of any kind preceding tae dste of
Ihis Agmewment shall not be binding wpen either parts excent wo the extent ineorporated in
(1= Agrecmens,

d. Modifiestion of Acreement. Any reodilivalion ol M Sgremment ar sddiomal abligaiom
dasuned |y sither party i connestion with this Aorcoment shall bz binding only of placed
i weriting woud stymend Ty each party or an author zed represartative of esch party,

=l

Mo Waiver, The filore of the ity to insist upon the perlermance ol ooy o e terms aond
vonuliliors of thiz Aptcoment or the wiiver ol any hreach ol ooy ol the lonos ol
worsliiions of this Azreemert by the Oty gbadl misl e covsired oz therealor being =
walvar of any auch tereas wnd condilions, bt Ve sene sball contdeus aad remzin in fall
foree an elleel w10 no suck forbearanes or waiver had oceurred.

B Paragd Tewaldty, The imvalidite ol any poctien ol this Ageeemenl will ne and shall no!
e desme] B oaffeet the validiy of ww other prosisior, T The cvent that auy previsicn: in
Lhis Agzrecment 38 hele tr e invalid by ooy court of comperent jueisdiction, the parties
agree that the rernaining proodsions shall be dzemed to be In 1l force and ekl

2. Independon Contrector. GOOT SAMARIT AN, INC., i the porfonmance of the work
umsder and pocswant biiis agrecmear, shall be an Cdependent contractor s skall limish
at its own expense all workers, wols, and ecnment nsvessary Ly nerform such werk,
Vhe: City skl nol have any supervision, divecticn, or cortol over the moesas ar medheds
ol the perloomanes o GO SAMARITAN, TNC s wark and shall have oaly the rizha
L nspect the resulls of suck work o sssure fol and coonplets perlommanue e GOOT
SAMARITAN, INC, aader and puragse e 1708 Asmoamc s,

[ W TINESS WTTERTOF, cach party wo this Apree nent has csusad 10 e be axeouted at

Fraekling Kenlypey, entlis day of « L

Do 7 2747

Larre TFxam, Mayor Jasopt UGl Tixecutive Threcior
Cily of Franklic, KY GUEOT RANVARTT AR, [N,

ATTEET:

‘_:::-1”1_':.' Dhilanl, iy Clerk
Cily of Fraal!in, XY

Page 2 a7 2

P. 38



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this _ day of , 2019
by and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, 117 West Cedar Street, Franklin,
Kentucky 42134, hereinafter referred to as the "City", and FRANKLIN-SIMPSON
RENAISSANCE, INC., 201 South Main Street, P. O. Box 513, Franklin, Kentucky, hereinafter
referred to as “RENAISSANCE.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, desire to
enter into a contract with RENAISSANCE for the public and corporate purpose of developing
community relations, business interests, and assisting in the preservation and/or restoration of
buildings in downtown Franklin for the City of Franklin, Kentucky; and

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it requires the services of RENAISSANCE in
providing the services set forth in this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived by the parties
from the implementation of the terms hereof, the parties do hereby covenant and agree as
follows:

1. Compensation. The City agrees to pay RENAISSANCE the sum of Five Thousand
Dollars ($5,000.00), for the services set forth in Section (2) of this Agreement.

2. Services. RENAISSANCE agrees to perform the following services for the City:

(a) RENAISSANCE shall make its office, services, and personnel available to the
City of Franklin. Further, a representative of RENAISSANCE shall be made
available to attend meetings of the Board of Commission, when requested, to
answer questions relating to the services provided in this Agreement.

(b) RENAISSANCE shall work to promote the City and to encourage cooperation
and build leadership in the downtown Franklin business community by:

(1) Coordinating volunteers to implement the day-to-day activities necessary
to meet the goals of RENAISSANCE and the Kentucky Heritage Council
as set forth in the mission statement of Franklin-Simpson Renaissance;
and,

(ii) Providing on-going education to the community as it pertains to
preservation and restoration projects and activities.

Page 1 of 4 (Renaissance Community Service Agreement)

P. 39



(©)

(d)

(©)

RENAISSANCE shall work to create a positive image of downtown Franklin by
promoting the City’s downtown area as an exciting place to live, shop, visit, and

invest by:

(1) Producing “Summer Nights” concert series;

(11) Providing fagade grants to downtown businesses;

(iii)  Providing signage on I-65 (Historic & Antique District); and

(iv)  Working closely with the downtown merchants to identify and promote

sales campaigns that are successful in other downtowns across Kentucky
and the United States.

RENAISSANCE shall work to improve the appearance of downtown Franklin by:

(1) Recruiting new business and/or directing existing businesses to create a
mix which will provide maximum appeal for local residents as well as
tourists;

(i)  Encouraging and providing technical assistance to downtown building
owners in utilizing the second floor of downtown buildings as up-scale
housing;

(iii)  Working with business owners and the City to eliminate downtown
parking problems;

(iv)  Preserving historic properties; and

(v) Implementing the planned streetscape.

RENAISSANCE shall work to strengthen and expand the economic base of

downtown Franklin by:

(1) Assisting in fagade grants, paint programs, tax credits, etc.;

(ii) Providing information for proper restoration of homes and businesses
which are consistent with existing plans;

(iii)  Working to beautify the downtown area by landscaping at high visibility
areas;

(iv)  Preserving historic properties; and

Page 2 of 4 (Renaissance Community Service Agreement)

P. 40



) Implementing the planned streetscape.

3. Assignment of Rights. The rights of each party under this Agreement are personal to that
party and may not be assigned or transferred to any other person, firm, corporation, or
other entity without the prior, express, and written consent of the other party.

4. Terms and Termination. This Agreement shall continue from July 1, 2019, to and
including June 30, 2020, and may not be renewed unless a new contract is issued by
mutual consent of the parties.

5. Entire Agreement. This Agreement shall constitute the entire Agreement between the
parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of
this Agreement shall not be binding upon either party except to the extent incorporated in
this Agreement.

6. Modification of Agreement. Any modification of the Agreement or additional obligation
assumed by either party in connection with this Agreement shall be binding only if placed
in writing and signed by each party of an authorized representative of each party.

7. No Waiver. The failure of the City to insist upon the performance of any of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, or the waiver of any breach of any of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement by the City, shall not be construed as thereafter being a
waiver of any such terms and conditions, but the same shall continue and remain in full
force and effect as if no such forbearance or waiver had occurred.

8. Partial Invalidity. The invalidity of any portion of this Agreement will not and shall not
be deemed to affect the validity of any other provision. In the event that any provision of
this Agreement is held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the parties
agree that the remaining provisions shall be deemed to be in full force and effect.

9. Independent Contractor. RENAISSANCE, in the performance of the work under and
pursuant to this agreement, shall be an independent contractor and shall furnish at its own
expense all workers, tools, and equipment necessary to perform such work. City shall not
have any supervision, direction, or control over the means or methods of the performance
of Renaissance’s work, and shall have only the right to inspect the results of such work to
assure full and complete performance by RENAISSANCE under and pursuant to this
agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party to this Agreement has caused it to be executed at

Franklin, Kentucky, on the day of , 2019.

Page 3 of 4 (Renaissance Community Service Agreement)

P. 41



Franklin-Simpson Renaissance, Inc. City Of Franklin, Kentucky

By: (Print Name) Larry Dixon, Mayor
Title:

Attest:
Amy Ellis, Executive Director Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

Page 4 of 4 (Renaissance Community Service Agreement)

P. 42



GENERAL
GOVERNMENT

P. 43



S T L

-—g’_jr
i
ll': n

1

=l .,
"R g P TR

MEMOEANDUN

T Mlepwor Toerry Thixon aned Connmiasione: &
TR meenten Powecll, Cite hManaae:
SLEIECT  Appoinhvent of Foaed Clommi dee Members

AT June 4, 2014

TRRADTY Conmcil am A

ek Timmerman is the CibSs corent appeictment to tals Beard, His teaom expires on June 500,
201w Diskk has expoeased a dosire ™ coatioue o sarve on this Bowd wmd Towould like
reconuoend s ceappaintaent for another tero wear toon o cxpptre om Tune 30, 2021

Hisliae Froservalion Conunilies

Tiebbie Tuhireaan ard Tarm Moody have servecd @ oce wear o on this commiliee wich expired
an Aqeil 30, 2019 Taminle Larey Indicates that Delbbls and Tens aald ke o canbimoe by eove
an tais Board and | weuld recommeand their reappoitment For soocher s year Lo o ex e o
Aril 30, 2020,

F-3 Planmme & Zoning Choanmissien

When Carler Munday secepted the Adm™isiratoe ovasition wits Manning & Looing it erealed o
vavansy or the Bowd. Craiz Wyoor has expressed an lorerast mosersi=g s comarmumly and |
wiolld cecommend thar e be appoined to £ll the ypexpired ferm of Curler Muonday swehich
capircs on Docembar 31, 2015,

Propused Maotion: Beeommend mution 1o appreve the appointment or ve-appointment of
the Lollivwinge Board™® ommitios mombers:

BRADT Council on Aging— Dick Timmerman - Two year term to expire June 30, 2021

Historiv Preservation Committes - Debbie Johnson amd Tom Moody — One vear term o
capire on April 30, 2020

F-s Planning & Loning Commizssien  Craig Mylor - Fill the anexpired terme of Cuarter
Rlundday to expire on Deeember 31, 2010,

F. 44



1
X

.w
Sl
o

L
Iii-::-"'

e e

3 3!
e T
MLMORANDTM
Lk Wleror Tarry Thixon and Comoisaioners
RO Ecnton Pesvel L City Manuger

AUBIRCT:  Rerioeky Dewns Fieewocls [isalay

ATE: Jane 7, 2000

Phe Cly of Freokdin receivial wonegnest from Kenmcky Disns b the spproval of & 1ublic
R 'S'F].I'l}' ol Fireweosios on swnday, June 30, 208 L“ng.l':l".i..‘]g al ;-1]':]':|'|;|:q'i1|'|;.||;*;'.1|.- T o LY [T
e ale e vhe display i3 July 3, 2004,

Atlached i e spatieniion and all suppartieg docueents. Fire Chisf Leaslic Goodram woproved
thiz application <ia emml commumication, which is aleg ariaeed

P roposed Mition:
Modion Lo approve hentnelky  Downs Applicution for Supervised Public Display of
Fireworks and auwlhorize the Wayor to sign the application and any gfher decumenis

nceessary For the applicatioon,




5
60
R ‘-.‘""_F-E-
APPLICATICN PO STUTERVISED PFUEBLIC DISFLAY OF FIREW{IRKS
Apalicanr Maae  _Eecbicky Gowns Mo Nuoekey ) @00 S5 Y FY
dipeau, belividus] wr Orendesio Savasucize dhe Deent)
Al cess of Asmilleois 55209 Mashuilk S _Fiaakili o G P ]
el Fed ity [State] {Ripd

A p{l_r\-::\'jmul.-:' memher and Kinds of Firewarls te be Thisplagad _

Ld ;hn_h-.ﬂ','anl: 4" serizt aEplsy shslls ang Tull 570t affacss Ao L

tiangr aod Phace el Stecape of Eiceworks Price To Deelivery fo Qaubloor DPisplay Sire:
.2._ nizell I:unru:p.Jl_,-' '..'el .L|'-

AddresaPhone Mumbar ar Kol hielesle s Flrenoris o Be Parchiased Froms
Zamtelli Firesomss Mig. 120 Marshall Dres, Wersndsie, A 1505

e of Linnpans oo Ladlvidue! Supeevisbe Display  Aoe Cedisprn

Flraze wttach a comaplece 1 ESURE of the Operates's Experbeoec e Liceoag
Maunber ol AssistEals 1hatis June 30, 2029 Tignae wl Thispplay  B5E-045 P

AN SATT: |.’ Ooopin [Bi[ﬂlluuﬂg & .EI:IE'!'L'IQ] A, 'I-L::".'".l'.
-

o Earaee Locaton (s CLUDS0 BLAGHA M of iy Komuekd Doems
Shpert 7 (it Aty
Five Deparioent Having Jurksliction  Frankl r-bl'rnal:nrl)’ L] H:E&ba Y
Adddrezs_s0 Meoedona [ioad, Franklin, KY ]-"I:mllq-'h il 12 o 516 "ES'
i

Pl e chag ez el Lavaboeai el ald bots U 18 R eenfiil i _U.r'\- T TTH R 1T -lil_l.'_ljil'_ﬁ"l A

v zaneply wiih e saidards i serfach i NFRA T I "'|.11'.Fm ___..J'r 1

P T
"Tu,un:L u[;‘n.p;pluml
T Fi |ll"«uJ GEG Y & RTINS

FERMELN Y HERERY GRANMIEL PLERUANE 100 IS 227,710

Slenatuiz ol Fire E'hlcf.‘?-i..;lr L TR -v.'.‘,,.h'w.l?..mu.'.l.':-:-
137 FARI BTN & TR

Aowagey af thiv application pearsd be Bifed with tlae Devisicn of Eive Presenaion widabn e

1157 chag il Drimpabage.

PAFTTLE O AFPEECANT:

M o grareed srihe sale disrnenan o e Leznldktizlal heving jursaicsae, Tl deedinnent s o cncymed

Al eyl !-:. Phre Fipe Chin?, Sy or or Cemnty Jodeo'E e Sec msdizien whoas e DEELAY v o b

vl wdpewatl. (A Cingcia mow feosieha T s ghas apoaBcpce showsiing G eind 2L woes the G bsime o ke
sazarged, iz emieer ©F @l BBl Da glesiys oz ol Gneh o enom otz e gl wle e ahie

I -'“‘-'r\- el by eretmarmedd and b Ieanias ab pussible gaverfead of s Lhpphicazt shall 2ive hond nr

eiteize ol TaldRy inurses dlzvawl advagoate Die S gl Teial el appdicaipn Tee che seesdric mades, imoa

surs e D ulien o mda e dalliors | S10B0CHIN, RS 227720,

Centiesad oo everse i

P. 4B



FERMITE Sl L B GRARTIO L PO OOR T LAPMCE W TTH THTL TG [ S T LA T et

HFLA LE3E Tl 3 Y gategien fur Cidice Firnmorizs Lecsan Siegst Wdinirnom Sepavazina Misiasees o
Mliesimy L ipasities jur Land ar W Diisplu

| 7 ' fdisians P ] Angliad Slardn Mo |
Mur ! Dipacsewer ol " Verlize! Ml LEalfsed Smarlil Hisesrily |
e L] mn i i n i H T |

= T N T T Al T - T e
5 | T | Ty ] [ TE TR S I ™ _I

4 _Li st ZHU Hs =y s I 55 7L

A Iy EL Wy T za T T HE
I: T T e | 255 L R b R~ T Bdll BE
CASS N 1 TS T - o o 17 azn | K T Fa |
I N S I TR 1T E LA N T S ¥ 111 |
W U e T an | stk | i T M T am
|___ 12| s e Tl s A0 IR | ann | 13 | Ldfw 511

T SiGe s )i =25 4o

Al prajzaniics shadl b« i se chie ey well fiee s e veries! g prssibie, AMheugh ey e ke
Heal jraer wiper
e oy o2 2 iz e mie il PO (s ng el radiie

LAl shells caceviing 6 v Lo e a1 singhe vk clall b gy anly ba e LEmpEien
SO Ly .:|.q.'|:l\.".'|:|'
eanars i he priciee i perineming Giceedds A5 sy dems alriees.

A ek Dl reenas wafioed acer the disal i o lneded sbale e i mecliorely Cosiroed by he
DAl

Pz Tk Vel el e Leld during aity windstarm oo which re wing rarches a velocioe or 1 o Ui
15 raph. Fxdvemely sy emulilions ey preern sl T smeh eos 2, tie feeal Fire Chied g mthon = r
s dn ke peschecdulol

AT ks pzsuliing Lo sy ¢ st sliali e elogtid 3 o oved e mediinely by B cpescer an che
e s e sl

ful SN E o s 1l A U] i exeli g oosjons 27 ar bagl Ly g o sipnz et shail he
et el atlely sepanted podoeg o prasiboe sihin the seons] s e iz e maas it i i done,

A posemring leely Al wnecimnon oy 0l esvies o Pl god 200G e b g i eietance s
2T Livener il pive o Rk ur o il e babilLy iose e dertesd adepante by e asTdad
i wheme app g e e 1zl s nkade, dn oo sen vl Py clian B UG o sl Grepenrk 2 Aien
Perwlinde o P2l s mner his Indunmation i G Fe eshinsed o (e Ve g s Fors M eamidng

LETEREM ¢y T Ihejrsrdeneel o Thigai an. Ten "l'-“J..IE!. end Cowstenciine
Cilvdslon of Fire Presegion
Firewvoris Hauslrgitan
11 Sea Tlern Band, Sadel e
Framitteat, Ky, 4611

il 1zarn vy Finpnrsr 40T

P. 47



Helln Cathsy,

| havi nu jssucs wilh the firewarks application. Theay are o iepulable company that COF and BY Duwins
have yserd several timss inthe pasl 1L Tooks o5 if everything is inarder.

Thanrks,
Leesli

Frorm: Cathy ilard scathy dillard @iranklinky org-
Sent: Trurscay, Way 50, 2015 1112 Al
Ta: [ 5 Mire Rescue ooy ures: @05 mnsanca ity ] <o Lurm &8 5 m psoncn ity s

Subjuck: B Geatinciy Do Firewor b Apphicatian

Ficd moming Leslis,

youlerday we distussed the attachod upplication for Kentuciy Duwns and sentan asked if | had heard
from o regarding yaur approva of the application. We would ke ta have your approval hetors e
ask the Commission to approve Lhe Mavar toosign the appliceLicn.

Ploase feal free to contact e or Kantan if vou have guestions ar needl zddizionzl informalion, thank
WAl

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin

117 West Cedar Street

P. O, Eox 2805

Franklin, KY 42135-2805
270-586-4497 - Phone
270-586-9419 - Fax

cathy. dillardimfranklinky.org

P. 48



| Department of Howsing, $uildings and Construction |
Crivizivn of Five Preveuiion iy
101 5ea Hero Foad Saile 104
— Frankfort KY 06015305
s Olfice Phone Nomtber: 502-373- 1702
& O Fax Number: 502-573- 1095
L s Inforantion Lulletin
h&%’ﬁ?@ April 1, 203
|

Public Display of Fireworks & Pyrotechnics

In accordance with KRS 227.710, a permit must be obluined for the
pth:L display of Nreworks, which includes the wse of pyrotechnic
devices or pyrotechnic marerials belove 2 proxvmate audience, whether
indoors or outdoors,

The pertml lor public display of ficeworks and pyvrotechnics is issued by
the chiel oi” the fire depuriment, L avor nothe cily limirs ar suoilar
official where e five depariment exists and the county jundgedexecutive
3 counlics sgues permils for displays ourside of the cipy lignits.

In gceordance with KRS 227.710, a copy of the issucd public display af’
hreworks and pyrotechnics permits shall be filed with the Office of FThe
Sare Fire Marshal ot feast (leen (151 davs 10 advance of the dae of
display, Approved permits should be mailed ta the lodiowing addriesy:

Dreparement of Ilousing, Boildings and Consiruciion
Attn: Division of Fire Preveniion
101 Sea ITero Road Suite 14)
Frankfort, KY 40601-5405

The permit application lor puhlic display of G direworks  and
p¥rolechnies is avadlzhle oa aur website ac hiup:ddhbe b sovind, If vou
have any questions, please call the (Wfice of the State Fire Marshal m
AIZ-373-0352.

P. 44



DATE {(MMWDDIYYYY)

i |
ACORD’ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 0511072019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: if the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provislons or be andorsed.
I SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement, A statement on
this certlficate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

CONTAGT  ap
FRODUCER 1 lied Spacialty Insurance, Inc. "“MEE Michelle Kugler EAT S
10451 Guif Bivd P gy 727-547-3070 | (AIG. Noy: 727-367-5685
Treasure Island, FL 337064814 E-MA; ["E'SS: mkugler@alliedspecialty.com ]
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
mSurer A: 1-H.E. Insurance Company 12866
INSURED  ZAMBELLI FIREWORKS MFG CO, INC., ETAL INSURER B :
120 Marshali Drive, INSURER C ; o
Warrendale, PA 15086 INSURER © :
INSURERE ;
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLIGIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

AGBLRU
o TYPE OF INSURANCE m POLICY NUMBER (RO YYY) | (MADONY LT LivaTs
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY X CPP0103167-06 02/01/2019 | 02/01/2020 | EACHOCCURRENCE s_ 1,000,000
CLAIMS-MADE QCCUR PREMISES (Ea owgramcm s 100,000
MED EXP (Any one person) s N/A
__—] PERSONAL & ADVINJURY |5 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER GENERAL AGGREGATE s 10,000,000
FoLICY s E:] toc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | 3 2,000,000
OTHER: Protection & Indemnity |5 1,000,000
A | AUTOMOBILE LABILITY CPP0103167-06 02/01/2019 | 02/01/2020 | Famomemi orE UMIT 154 000,000
X | any auto BODILY INJURY (Per person) | 3
I~ | omED SCHEBDULED ;
| | Arosonty ATGS BODILY INJURY (Per accident}| 5
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | {Per accideqt)
s
A | jumereuiauss | X ocour >< ELP0011081-06 GL 02/01/2019 | 02/01/2020 | EACH OCCURRENCE s 9,000,000
X | excesstms CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s 9,000,000
Excess P & | Included
DEO l J RETENTION S s
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS® LIABILITY YIN ] STATUTE I ER
ANYPROPRIETORPARTNEREXECUTIVE Nta| | Coverage i artordedinthe Statets)of: E.L. EACH ACGIDENT s
(thandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE ~ EA EMPLOYES] €
If yes, cescribe under
DYSCRIPTION OF OFE RATIQNS bajow E4. DISEASE - POLICY UMIT | §
A |inland Marine / Hull CPP0103167-06 02/01/2019 | 02/01/2020 {Hull Limit $900,000
Excess Auto Show Limit $1,500,000
ELP0012054-00 VL 02/01/2019 {02/01/2020 {EA OCC & AGGREGATE {$4,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 104, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached f more space Is required)
Display Date; June 30, 2019 Rain Date; July 5, 2019 Location: 5629 Nashville Road
RE: General Liability, the following are named as additional insured in respects (o the negligence of the namad insurad, excess is follow form:
Kentucky Downs, LLC.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER . CANCELLATION
Kentucky Downs LLC
5629 Nashville Road SHOQULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFQRE
Frankfin, KY 42134 THE EXPIRATION DAYE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
y ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Cert#516713

24k / ‘_,{{’M({,

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

P. 50



Kentucky Downs, Franklin, KY
Show Date: June 30, 2019
{Rain Date: July 5, 2019)

SHELL DESCRIPTION Quantity # of Shots
OPENING FINALE

Three Inch Shells Assorted Finale Shells with Rising Tails 50 50 Shots
BODY OF PROGRAM

Three inch Special Display Shells with Rising Tails 350 350 Shots
Four Inch Special Display Shells with Rising Tails 200 200 Shots
100 Shot White Strobe with Glittering Tail 12 1,200 Shots
GRAND FINALE SHELLS

Three Inch Assorted Finale Shells with Rising Tail 350 350 Shots
Four Inch Assorted Finale Shells with Rising Tail 12 12 Shots
Total Pyrotechnic Effects 974 2,162 Shots

P. 51



1 S

Zambelli

A i '|ii'-"'|:-h;ﬁ".‘:‘é. "-"I-"-L%‘:.FI":H =

i IIII | Ill!al-_:i .x % '\,.l :
3r. Joe Codispoti

Al Cooper Chapel Koad
Loaigwille, B 40220

F'a Whom I May (oncesn;

Mr. Cediapoti has heon with our compagy S over thiry yesrs, He has haadlod
i Jracy ¥ OYLTH, az headle

oty cdilTerent Ivpes of programs for ns and bas hamile] g wide range of shell sizes

and variony spesial effects ineloding pround pivces, aprsl, cleetrically fired and

i aily Ired displass.
Me Codispati bas slweys handled himsell i an sxircmely safe and ecurienas
manier when muspontiing, sorting ap and exhibiting our firowarks proerams. We
are inoking livward 10 a contizmed zood relstizmehip with him.

stk wou have any guestions or nesd laribor infennation, pleage doo o hesiia
to conrict me.

Yonirs vory truly,

Kimberly I, Ceyprolles

Zamball Firaworks

F. a2



M, Arthuor Thomas Klusman
1602 Colfstrean W, v
Cishen, KY 40024

To Whan T8 Masy Conenna:

e Flusmzan hos haen with oy COMNPHNY Tor smaroxinesiely gichl years, He hag
hendled mary Jdifferant types of srigrams B s and hes hendled g wide TEIEE Gf
shell s1zes and variows special ellects ncleding grovnd pisces, gerial, electrically
firedd and manually fived displays,

Pr, Klusman Gas abwsys handled himself in oan ealrumely safs and courtzoue
mener when tanspoeting, seifing up sod srhibiting ur Sieworks programs, W

sre [ooking forkand 10 a conlinged wonod relativmehip with him,

Sheald vou hisve any questions ar noed furither fulurmation, please do ner hesilplc
o conlact e,

Vemrs vy imiy,

Kimberly E. Coprofles
Sumlbelli Firewarks

F. 24






MENMO)

1 Franklin Loy Cormnraission
RO Cuy Menager hozozon Powell
LAlE: Jene 30 2419

AUBTECT: C3X Walroad Coossing

Troy Cronsy, Project Wanager with O3, is working with 20 cities wlong he C3X rail
conaclidate Mgheeay aossings. YWhere consnlidation can be szreed apon from hott CSX und
local governments the ~ailroend crossing would be plaeed onca Tist Lor removal.

The cressimee gt has been idemifed Tn Uraoklin iy Bast Weshingion Sweel, Inomy epinion this
crossing i neavily alifsed and shouldn’t be conaidened.

Themg our Cenmmiasion Meeting on Monday wee can discuss Dalfer so T may undesatand on
ot eamemrTenle with Mr Creasy concerning, the Ciivs dezizion on the 1o Washinglon

sl tail croasing.

Ol b follmaing papes I liove Mo Orecove lefter Jor vow revian.

Thenk Fou,

[armton Popes']

F. 55



Hawy tﬂ'l'.l'.llll TOW ITCVES

Troy L Craasy

I'rajact r-."laﬂal'_-,EF I Fuklic Hrojacts
4800 Old O=horne Tpkee, Suite 200
Rirhirnioond, WA F333]
EDG-2206-TTLE

ey Lressyidlcss.com

April 13, 2014
Pelayarr Larmy Dinen
117 Cedar 5L
Franklin, K¥ 42134

Honorahla fayor Dixon,

Consalidating crossings is a goal ot C5X Transpatacion {(CSKT), the Kentucky Transprrtation Cabinat
[KNTOE and the Federal Railroad Administration [FRA)L Consolidacian of A crossing provides tne hizhes:
level ot crossing satety hecause the naint obintersection hetweaen hipaway and railroad is removed.
The major henefits of crossing elimination nclude reductions incallisions, phway vekicle delay, and
rozd maintenance costs of crossing surfaces and their associated tratfic control devices.

Represontatives from CSXT and IGVTC met with City officizls on April 195, 2017 to discuss potential
candidates for consodidation in Franliin, The crossing jocaticn that sec identified was the Washinzton
Stroct Crossiag (BOTE 243 /555] The subject al-prade crossing has alternate access that s casily
accessible. s removal would subslarlizlly irmprove safey Tor belh highseay and rail traffic,

CHE woule ke Dooffor a monclary mcenlive in Lhe amounL of 310,000 for the closure of the
Washinglon Sireel cressing, Addilionaliy, Lhe subject crossing closure wauid be eligible far a separate
prograr i which EYTE B able to provide 57,500 per crossing closore Le oc osed lowards safoty
pragrams locally in Lha city of Franklin.

Thiz affer iz meant to open the lines of caommunicaticn bebtween CSXT zrd tha City, IF the Cily dezires
an alterrative option 1o this offer, CEXT is oper to d cownter-otter. | woeld like o mest with you all
azan ta discuss this matter further, please contact me when possikle to set up anather merting.

Fronmn a satety standpnint, the ransalidation af this crossing is vey imprrtant ta CSET. Ax such, pleasa
responed prompthy to this [etter.

Thank yvou for vour time, and | loak fareard to working with the ooy af Franklin.

Zincerely,

LT o

Altachmenl — Federal Bailroad AcmeinisLralion Crossing Data for Lhe washomslon Slreel Crossing



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION

OMB No. 2130-0017

Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts 1 and i, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts | and Il, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header,
Parts 1 and Il, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part | items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part | ltem 20 and Part Ill Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.

An asterisk * denotes an optional field.

A. Revision Date B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing
(MM/DD/YYYY) [JRailroad Irransit Changein [New [ ciosed CIno train [ quiet Inventory Number
Data Crossing Traffic Zone Update
E/_]i/ﬁﬂ_ [Cstate [Jother DRe—Open DDate Dchange in Primary |:|Admin. 3437558
Change Only  Operating RR Correction
Part I: Location and Classification Information
1. Primary Operating Railroad 2. State 3. Count
e ¥ sIMPSON

CSX Transportation

[CSX]

KENTUCKY

4. City / Municipality
In

CONear FRANKLIN

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
WASHINGTON ST |

(Street/Road Name)

| * (Block Number)

LS

6. Highway Type & No.

7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing? [ JYes [/]No

If Yes, Specify RR

s ,

If Yes, Specify

s,

RR

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing? [_]Yes [/] No

’ ]

9. Railroad Zone or Region

DNone

LOUISVILLE

CInone

10. Railroad Subdivision or District

11. Branch

MAIN LINE None

or Line Name

12. RR Milepost
000 0134.110]
{prefix) | (nnnn.nnn)

| (suffix)

13. Line Segment
*

14. Nearest RR Timetable

15. Parent RR (if applicable)

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)

Station *
913910 An/A [ZIn/A
17. Crossing Type 18. Crossing Purpose | 19. Crossing Position 20. Public Access 21. Type of Train 22. Average Passenger
Highway [ At Grade (if Private Crossing) [Z]Freight [Jransit Train Count Per Day

[Z1Public Opathway, Ped. [IRR Under Ives [Jintercity Passenger [ JShared Use Transit [[—]Less Than One Per Day
dprivate [station, pPed. CIRR Over no [ JCommuter “Trourist/Other [ZINumber Per Day_0

23. Type of Land Use
[“Jopen Space [Irarm Residential [Jcommercial [ industria! "1 institutional [JRrecreational [1RR Yard

24. s there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number?

DYes No

If Yes, Provide Crossing Number

25. Quiet Zone (FRAp

rovided)

ne 24 e Tl partial ElChicago Excused

Date Established

26. HSR Corridor ID

[ZIn/a

27. Latitude in decimal degrees

(WGS84 std: _nn.nnnnnnn) 36 . 7236960

28. Longitude in decimal degrees

(WGS84 std: -nnn.nnnnnnn) —~086.5752070

29, Lat/Long Source

[actual  dEstimated

30.A. Railroad Use *

31.A. State Use *

30.B. Railroad Use *

31.B. State Use *

30.C. Railroad Use *

31.C. State Use *

30.D. Railroad Use *

31.D. State Use *

32.A. Narrative (Railroad Use) *

32.B. Narrative (State Use) *

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)

(800)232-0144

34. Railroad Contact (Telephone No.)

(904)366-3051

35. State Contact (Telephone No.)

(502)564-3210

Part Il: Railroad Information

1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements

1.A. Total Day Thru Trains

1.B. Total Night Thru Trains

1.C. Total Switching Trains

1.D. Total Transit Trains

1.E. Check if Less Than

(6 AM to 6 PM) (6 PM to 6 AM) One Movement Per Day O
7 5 2 0 How many trains per week?
2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph) 35
2017 3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing {mph) From 10 to 35
4. Type and Count of Tracks
Main _1 Siding 2 Yard 0 Transit 0 Industry 0

5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
Constant Warning Time [_] Motion Detection [CJAFO [1pTc [J oc 1 other £ None

6. s Track Signaled?
[dves [INo

7.A. Event Recorder

3 Yes dNo

7.B. Remote Health Monitoring
1 Yes No

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 08/03/2016)

OMB approval ex

P. 57

pires 08/31/2019

Page 1 OF 2




U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM

A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) 06/13/2017 ' PAGE 2 I D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 3437558
Part lli: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information
1. Are there 2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing
. . 5
Signs or Signals? 2.A. Crossbuck 2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 2.C. YIELD Signs (R2-2) | 2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count) [INone
Yes D No Assemblies (count) (count) (count) W10-1 0 [Jwio-3__ _ [Jwio-11_
0 0 Cwio-2 [wio-4 dwio-12
2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 2.H. EXEMPT Sign 2.1. ENS Sign (-13}
W10-5) Devices/Medians (R15-3) Displayed
Yes (count ) |:|Stop Lines Cloynamic Envelope DAII Approaches [ ]Median DYes Yes
no JRR Xing Symbols None [Jone Approach  [7]None [Ino [Ino
2.J. Other MUTCD Signs [Jves No 2.K. Private Crossing | 2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types)
Signs (if private)
Specify Type Count
Specify Type Count DYes L__]No
Specify Type Count
3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 3.E. Total Count of
{count) Structures {count) (count of masts) __ 2 Flashing Light Pairs
:2 Quad  [_JFull (Barrier) Over Traffic Lane 0 Dlncandescent Incandescent DLED
Roadway _0 [ J3Quad  Resistance Back Lights included ~ [/]Side Lights 7
Pedestrian 0 :Itl Quad [Median Gates Not Over Traffic Lane __0 I:I LED Tncluded
3.F. Installation Date of Current 3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling 3.1 Bells
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) E v installed on (MM/¥YYYY) Crossing (count}
¥ | Not Required es nstalled on _ Yes No
I A q [z No i I:I 1
3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices
I:lFIagging/FIagmanDManually Operated SignalsDWatchman DFloodlightingDNone Count __ 0 Specify type
4.A. Does nearby Hwy | 4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 6. Highway Monitoring Devices
Intersection have Interconnection I:l Yes No (Check all that apply)
Traffic Signals? Not Interconnected D Yes - Photo/Video Recording
{IFor Traffic Signals Dsimultaneous Storage Distance * [[] ves - Vehicle Presence Detection
Cves (o [_Jror warningSigns | _J Advance Stop LineDistance* ________ | [JNone
Part IV: Physical Characteristics
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad [_]One-way Traffic 2. Is Roadway/Pathway 3. Does Track Run Down a Street? 4. Is Crossing llluminated? (Street
. ] Two-way Traffic Paved? lights within approx. 50 feet from
Number of Lanes 2 [ Divided Traffic Yes DNO DYes No nearest rail) Cves CIno
5. Crossing Surface {on Main Track, multiple types allowed) Installation Date * (MM/YYYY) / Width * Length *
Ell Timber D 2 Asphalt 3 Asphaltand Timber [__]4 Concrete [_]5 Concrete and Rubber [__]6 Rubber 17 ™etal
Ds Unconsolidated D g Composite D 10 Other (specify)
6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet? 7. Smallest Crossing Angle 8. Is Commercial Power Available? *
I___l Yes No If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) Jo° - 2¢° [J30°-s59° 160" - 90° Yes D No
Part V: Public Highway Information
1. Highway System 2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing 3. Is Crossing on State Highway 4. Highway Speed Limit
D(O) Rural (1) Urban System? MPH
D (01} Interstate Highway System () interstate D(S) Major Collector DYes No Cposted [Istatutory
[ (02) other Nat Hwy System (NHS) [CJ(2) Other Freeways and Expressways 5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID) * 1 7 _cg_1¢
[1(03) Federal AID, Not NHS [J(3) Other Principal Arterial ] (6) Minor Collector :
[/](08) Non-Federal Aid [1(4) Minor Arterial {7) Local 6. LRS Milepost * 0 .138
7. Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) 8. Estimated Percent Trucks 9. Regularly Used by School Buses? 10. Emergency Services Route
Year 1994 AADT 000800 08 % [Jves [¥INo Average Number per Day O Cves  [no

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website.

Submitted by Organization Phone Date

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information. According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it
displays a currently valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to: Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25
Washington, DC 20590. :

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 08/03/2016) OMB approval expires 08/31/2019 Page 2 OF 2

P. 58



Untitled Map

Rt
=

4

G

o

]

=
E
o
&
]




MEMO

T ranklim Chiy Crnmission
FROM: Loy Manazer leanmon Mozl

DATE: Tunz 50 2010

SUTRIRGT:  enderson Incuscrial Parle 1A Ciran:

Dienunis CrilTin, Tndusiriz] Aaahorfis Drecutive Director, M2s requeszed Sor the Mayor to sizn a
etter ol suppent for a 'lansportation Alternatives Progran: (TADP) Graoe for sidewalks o the
Herderson Industrial Pacx, Thers's o mup on e [ollowimg papes adeadifsing the sidessall:

Tovatdon, appeoved, the madching Gieant eontribation will be paid by the Tndusboal Anbhonly.

Mafe:

W fererise frg.n'?u'.'r'.'.'.l."."u.r.' LR -:."ﬁ'.n.'v.fr'n'."-:J'a.'a'-'.'E{ FATEOE

Proposed Maotion:

Froomurrned o mapreeae o leler ol supposd rean the Mayoe for Hleoderson bcusteial Park — TAP

Lrrant with all Crrant mateling finds to b jpeid by he Pronkho-8imgaon Indwstreial Avthority,

P. B0



TE L — S ST I i —_—

Franklin Franklin,
Sidewalk Project Kentucky

D

e TR T

S Prancse Crazavealh 7
-

.-_'- o

m— Sirlewalk Project Localios =— State Roads by Boundary T'-‘_

Froposed Crozswalk - Lozal Rcede i e BiAd
W10 [B DR Bt LS
paga————— o v




Cathy Dillard

Frsm; K=nton Fowsll

Sents Weclaearlay, by 22, 2015 TET AR
To: Lrmnis arilin

Cc: Cutary Dillare

Subject: RE: TAP Grent

Denrmy,

Wl e, il et this an the Jure 10" agenda meating. Do you Sove o miap cor e sidewalx locations? 1f sa, would yvou
pleasy fureerd.

Thank You,

Kenlon

Frorn: Dennis Griffin mailtactzicdonst ey Siballsourh et
Sent; Weonesday, May 22, 2ULY 10:29 AR

Ta: Eerkan Povell <enton. poswieil @trankliaky oras
Subjock: AP Grant

lLesitan

Frclos=d pleaza tizd cha minotes trors the Industrial Sowid's Moy mceling, Sn Paee 2 the minutes reflect the giscassionr
el Lhe T&F grant for the Hondarson Industrial Park, The Bosrd veted mn provide the twenty pereent matching funds fo
the grant. Based an the micutes, canyod ga shead and gel agproeal Troom Lhe Camesiss an for the klagor toowrite a
leller of supporty We shaull be zlle to csubmit an applicat’nn this fa 'l ard may tave toomove quickly noerder Lo submil
it nnt'me. Tha Commission's prior apoareve beould Be wery helalol, 7anks

hHincerely,

Dier iy

Dernis Gritlin, Exciative Direcler
Franklin=simpsor industrizl Suthority
100 Scuth bMain Stces

P01 Box B7R

Franklin,d 1KY 42125

FA-RER-AA7T

Ai) LED AGEL Fox

tsinduseryiE be | lseuth.net

wwdw Fesindnatny.com

P. G2



Franklin Simpson Industrial Authority
Board of Directot’s

May 8, 2019

Date and Attendance: The Franklin Simpson Industtial Authority Board of Director’s
met at noon on May 8, 2019 in the Board Room of Franklin Simpson Industrial
Authority offices at 109 South Main Street, Franklin, Kentucky. Those in attendance
were Chairman Gary Broady, Wayne Goodrum, Steve Compton, Wendell Stewart,
Darla Knight, Brent Rushing, Myton Thurman Mayor Larry Dixon, F-S Chamber
Director Steve Thurmond, Schools Superintendent Jim Flynn, Dennis Griffin,
Executive Director of the Franklin Simpson Industrial Authotity, and Buddy Leach,
Counsel for the Franklin Simpson Industrial Authority. The invocation was delivered
by Steve Thurmond.

Minutes Approval- The minutes of the April 10, 2019 meeting were presented for
review. On a motion by Myron Thurman and seconded by Wendell Stewart the minutes
were approved.

Treasurer’s Report- The April treasurer’s teport was presented for review. On a
motion by Steve Compton and seconded by Wayne Goodrum the treasurer’s report
was approved.

March 31, 2019 Quarterly Financial Report- The Match 31, 2019 quarterly financial
report was presented to the Board for review and was approved subject to audit on a

motion by Wayne Goodrum and seconded by Darla Knight.

Unemployment Rates- Simpson County’s unemployment rate for March was 4.5
petcent as compared to February’s unemployment rate of 4.3 percent. The civilian labor
force is at 9,100 the highest it’s ever been in Simpson County. The job market remains
good in south central Kentucky but the labor market remains tight.

Chairman Gary Broady Remarks

Franklin Simpson Industrial Authority SKYCTC Scholarship Recipients-

Chairman Broady informed the Board that two $3,000 SKYCTC scholarships were
awarded to Amber Davidson and Dax Wren. These scholatships are provided by the

1

P. 63



Fracklon amenaon Tedasinal Aailon e, Fooeding i3 oo the Indusenal Aothoziny aad
spomaorsnpa from the Indasny Appreciation Golk Toumament

Executive Director Dennis Gritfin Remarks

ACE Hardware Project e Critiin updeted the Board oo the concepuon! dessgn of
the srore He also told the Boasd taar Honchoeas 45 weillieg o huilding the faciling amd
then they would Jease the balding back fron the Tadasital Aaohorice, COnce
corsiricion cosls are koo e g lease price can be determined.

TAP Grant My, Criftin rald the Boaed about the TAR grard il Taeappiiad forin
repacd sidewalles from Carvin Podore Apartmmen ts an Fddings Bood 1o Hunt Fond. The
prant 15 an S0 rmatch soothe Tndosidal Aatieine’s pooion bor the prant would be
apprtvsitnalely 540000 As porn ol the prant process the Cioe of Liinkln eeeds (o wnle
a lerrer of approval o the project evien thouph the Iodustde] Authorite wall T paying
the marching fonds part of the prae On g modon by Myron Thartoa o aod seconded
v Lracla Kapht the Board voted o approve e maiching Tends needead foar the
sideswalle project,

Project Fagle/CuadGraphics Building  Mr. Gatin told e Bosed thal dhe
CradCiraphics Beilding s under conreact by an sovesior frorn Qlao, "The company 15
in the proces: of due difipeace of the property aod seaciure, The Biecstog i\ Doping, to
e w cital peanc o pucksg ng cotmpany rom Cleseland, Chia oo the boildieg,

Project Clover- Wy, Caillin 1old ke Board that he deapg wcth 1WA ard suae
representalives made a presanraics 10 company represenutives n Chivago las week.
It is his aodezstunding ther | cankho, Kerbacky sl Clarssalle, '] ennessee ace e oo
Enalists sur this project,

Simpson County Iovestment= ®r Crithn disrmbuored ao cooml i D] Tresn recedvend
thar compared Sopuen Counge to otier counaes o the 2rare for ivesmment. Simpsena
Copny raeked ffth v the slare accerding 0 1his anking,

Buddy Leach Remarks

Storagre Lots Henoaevsal- Mo Desch ookl the Board that the Dics bor comoss of the
slotage units are due May 240 The Lids will appear in the Feackha Faeorte for two
wecks and also on the poveonmental ebBay st

F. 64



Mayor Larry Dixon Remarks

City Update- Mayor Dixon told the Board that the City is currently working on their
budget for the upcoming fiscal year.

Judge Mason Barnes Remarks- No report

Chamber Director Steve Thurmond Remarks

Chamber Update- Mr. Thurmond informed the Board that all counties in the BRADD
district are all struggling with the new pension costs to their budgets.

Superintendent Jim Flynn Remarks

Schools Update- Mr. Flynn thanked the Industrial Authority Board for the
scholarships given to the graduating students and reminded the Board of the tollowing
dates:

May 15- Baccalaureate

May 16- Retirement Reception for Jim Flynn

May 19- Graduation

May 20- West Campus Graduation

May 22- Last day of school

Thete being no further business to come before the Board, the regular meeting was
adjourned at approximately 12:43 p.m.

Gary Broady, Chairman

P. 65



ARANETNS

VIEMO)

TCx I ranlelin Lty Commnizsian
VR iy Melumeezer Kenton Powzll
ATk Tanz 54 20149

SUTMITAN: Plancing & Zoring Thaliing Inspecior

Mo Joe Perry recently mosiomed s DrannklieSimpsen Building lispeeter. Sines hal e, hadze
Exvvulivy Muson Bams and arvsell has inlerviewed retired Warren ooty Bailding Despesior
Ron ' ahar, Leokine a o parl me ieizeie Building Tospecior positien, both Judge Buanes and |
sre fmmpressed with Mr, Dzbor's erodeniials and abilizies to do s job.

On Tuesday, Jume Y, Simpson Couney Fiseal Courl appesved hiring 3 Tulor as Tranklic-
Simpeon i lding Inspecior conlingsnt an the lke aetion 2y e Franelin £ty Semmissior.

Proposed dotion:

Aulberrize the 1iring of Bon Teboer o an interim Bullding Inspectos far taz Fraoklssstingsan
I"&eZ o Fow omow par-time basis, Pay rale of $36.00 per hour [or o mcee than 14 Sours par
waek and aathorize the advertisenent thr a coalvacled Boildieg Inspeotor

P. BB



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: Scott Crabtree
DATE: May 23, 2019

SUBJECT: Discussion Regarding Holley Performance Products, Inc.
and the Kentucky Business Investment Program

The City Commission has been asked to adopt an ordinance authorizing the participation in the
Kentucky Business Investment Program (KBI) of Holley Performance Products, Inc. This matter has
not been fully approved by the state yet. But, we are required to discuss and approve an ordinance
showing local support and pledging our 1% payroll taxes for new employees hired for the new project
prior to the state’s final approval. I will need two sponsors for the ordinance. I will have this on for
discussion and possible first reading at the next meeting,

P. 67



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-014

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, AUTHORIZING THE GRANT OF AN
INDUCEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF A
PROJECT PURSUANT TO THE KENTUCKY BUSINESS INVESTMENT
PROGRAM (KRS 154.32-010 TO 154.32-100) WHEREBY THE CITY AGREES
TO FOREGO THE COLLECTION OF THE ONE PERCENT (1%) CITY
OCCUPATIONAL LICENSE FEE ON WAGES FROM HOLLEY
PERFORMANCE PRODUCTS, INC. THAT WOULD OTHERWISE BE DUE
WITH RESPECT TO PROJECT EMPLOYEES, WHICH AMOUNTS SHALL
BE COLLECTED AND REMITTED TO THE CITY TO BE REFUNDED UPON
EMPLOYER’S REQUEST OVER A TERM OF NOT LONGER THAN TEN (10)
YEARS FROM THE ACTIVATION DATE ESTABLISHED BY SAID
PROGRAM; AND TAKING OTHER RELATED ACTION

WHEREAS, it is the public policy of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky (“City
Commission” and “City”) to encourage, promote, and support economic development, new job formation, and the
development and growth of industry and commerce, and to preserve existing jobs in Kentucky for the public purposes of
providing employment opportunities for its citizens and residents, alleviating conditions of unemployment, stabilizing and
promoting the economy of Kentucky, and creating new tax bases and sources of revenue for the Commonwealth;

WHEREAS, the Kentucky Business Investment Program, Sections 154.32-010 through 154.32-100 of the
Kentucky Revised Statutes (“KRS”), the (“Program™), authorizes and empowers the Commonwealth and certain local
jurisdictions to promote economic development in Kentucky by inducing the creation of economic development projects
by eligible companies, as more particularly described therein;

WHEREAS, KRS 154.32-090 authorizes an eligible company to deduct certain wage assessments from payments
of wages to economic development project employees and each employee paying the assessment, in turn, to credit the
assessment against their Kentucky individual income tax and, subject to the approval of the local levying authority or
authorities, local occupational license fee or fees otherwise due;

WHEREAS, Holley Performance Products, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), 1801 Russellville
Road, Bowling Green, Kentucky 42101, has proposed to acquire and install within the City a project consisting of a
building, equipment and new employment as described in Exhibit A attached hereto (collectively, the “Project™);

WHEREAS, the Company has represented to the City that the acquisition, construction and installation of the
Project, if constructed, will result in a substantial number of new job opportunities in the community, and the Company
agrees to comply with the provisions of City of Franklin Ordinance No. 221.10-06-2014;

WHEREAS, the Company has filed an application with the Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority
(the “Authority”) for approval of the Project for the Program as authorized in KRS 154.32-030;

WHEREAS, it is appropriate and in the public interest that the City Commission make a formal, binding
commitment of financial resources in order to encourage and support economic development endeavors generally and the Project
specifically if and when approved by the Authority pursuant to KRS 154.32-030; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has approved the granting of an inducement to the Company for the Project,
pursuant to the Program, whereby it would forego the collection of the one percent (1%) occupational license fee on wages
that otherwise would be due the City, which fee shall be retained by the Company, with respect to Project employees
whose jobs meet the criteria and requirements established by the Program (“Qualifying Employees”) for a term of not
longer than ten (10) years from the date the Company properly activates the Program’s incentives pursuant to KRS 154.32-
030 and any agreement relating to the Project that the Company has with the Authority (the “Activation Date”).

P. 68



NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. It is hereby found, determined and declared that the recitals set forth in the preambles to this
Ordinance, which are incorporated in this Section by reference, are true and correct.

Section 2. Inducement. The City shall forego collection of, and Company shall be entitled to collect and
retain the one percent (1%) City occupational license fee due on wages paid to Qualifying Employees for a term of not
longer than ten (10) years from the Activation Date (the “Inducement Term”), as specified herein.

Section 3. Company to Deduct and Withhold Occupational License Fee on Wages. The Company, when
making payment of wages to Qualifying Employees earned with respect to the Inducement Term, shall deduct and
withhold upon the wages the one percent (1%) City occupational license fee. The Company shall remit to the City and
report such withheld amounts on the forms and reconciliations required by KRS 67.783(4) and (5) and Chapter 114 of the
City Code of Ordinances. The Company shall file, not less than quarterly in accordance with the City of Franklin’s Code
of Ordinances, with the City of Franklin, the City of Franklin Employers Quarterly Return provided by the City,
specifically addressing the issues related to the KBI Program. In addition, the company shall file a quarterly reconciliation
of the City of Franklin’s Occupational License Fees in a format as required by the City. If the company fails to comply
with the provisions of this Section, the company (or its representatives as the case may be) shall be subject to the penalty
provisions set forth in Chapter 114 of the City’s occupational licensing and gross receipts ordinance(s), as amended from
time to time, or forfeiture of future participation in this program.

Section 4. Company Entitled to Reimbursement for Withheld and Remitted Amounts. The Company shall
remit said withheld amounts to the City pursuant to Section 3 of this Ordinance. The Company shall receive
reimbursement from the City, once per annum, after making the request, in writing, on the forms provided by the City, with
said reimbursement being due and payable not later than sixty (60) days after the Company files the written request for
reimbursement. Provided, however, that said reimbursement request shall not be filed later than two (2) years from the
date that the Company’s annual license fee returns are initially due, without regard to any extensions received or allowed.

Section 5. Qualifying Employees Entitled to Credit for Withheld Amounts. Each Qualifying Employee
shall be entitled to a credit against his or her occupational license fee liability to the City under KRS 67.785(3) and Chapter
114 of the City of Franklin Code of Ordinances equal to the amounts withheld from his or her wages pursuant to Section 3
of this Ordinance.

Section 6. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and publication as
required by law.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent

provision, and such holdings shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

FIRST READING

SECOND READING

P. 69



At a meeting of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on June , 2019,
and on motion made by and seconded by , the
foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote:

BROWNIE BENNETT
JAMIE POWELL
HERBERT WILLIAMS
WENDELL STEWART
LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Franklin,
Kentucky, and as such City Clerk I further certify that the foregoing is a true, correct and complete copy of an Ordinance
(including Exhibit A) duly adopted by the Board of City Commissioners of said City at a duly convened meeting held on
June , 2019, on the same occasion signed by the Mayor, duly filed, recorded and indexed in my office and now in
force and effect, and that all action taken in connection with such Ordinance was in compliance with the requirements of
KRS 61.810 through 61.825, all as appears from the official records of said Board of City Commissioners in my possession
and under my control. '

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said City this day of June,
2019.

(SEAL)
Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

P. 70



Exhibit A

Project Description for Holley Performance Products, Inc.

See letter and KBI Report attached hereto and incorporated herein collectively by reference.

P. 71



City of Franklin, Kentucky
117 W Cedar Sircet « P. O, Box 2805
Franklin, KY 42135-2805
Plone: 270-586-4497
Fax: 270-586-9419

September {1, 2017

Seeretary Tecry Gill

Kentucky Lconomic Development Cabinet
300 West Broadway

Fraakfort, KY 40601

Sceresary Gill:

“I'his letter is in suppost of the KBI application being submitted by Holley Performance
Products, Inc. This outstanding company hendguastered in Bowling Green, Kentucky is considering
moving a distribution project into the former Sun Products Building which is located on Page Drive
o the Sanders Interstace Industrial Pagk, The building is 200,000 square feet and has been vacant for
the past six months, ‘The company will be investing over $3,000,000 in building and equipment costs
as well as employing some 30 people.

We ate very plensed to have a well known company like Holley Perfornmace Praducts, Inc.
become a part of our community, We will rebate one percent of occupational tax to the company as
a part of the KB incentive progrant. Your consideration if their KBI application is greatly
appreciated by our community,

Gincerely, ..,
""""""""" Y 24
A 4
o e
/f’?"‘-f-“{)c e
(/'Ronmc Clark, Mayor ™.,

EXHIBIT A

P. 72



O -

Y,

KENTUCKY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

Date:

Approved Company:
City:

Activity:

Bus. Dev. Contact:

Project Description:

Facility Details:

KBI REPORT - PRELIMINARY APPROVAL

September 28, 2017
Holley Performance Products, Inc.

Franklin County: Simpson
Manufacturing Prelim Resolution #: KBI-IL-17-21790
C. Peek OFS Staff: M. Elder

Holley Performance Products, Inc. is a leading manufacturer of a variety of
high performance specialty products for the racing and performance
segment of the automotive aftermarket. The company is considering
relocating one of its distribution and light manufacturing operation to
Kentucky.

Locating in a new facility

Anticipated Project investment - Leased Eligible Costs Total Investment
Rent $3,800,000 $7,600,000
Building/lmprovements $50,000 $50,000
Equipment $600,000 $1,000,000
Other Start-up Costs $500,000 $500,000
TOTAL $4,950,000 $9,150,000

NEGOTIATED TARGETS AND INCENTIVE AMOUNTS:

Average Hourly Wage
Target (including  [Annual Approved Cost
Year Job Target Employee Benefits) Limitati
As of Activation Date 30 $20.00 =
1 30 $20.00 $60,000
2 30 $20.00 . $60,000
3 30 $20.00 $60,000
4 30 $20.00 $60,000
5 30 $20.00 $60,000
6 30 $20.00 $60,000
7 30 $20.00 $60,000
8 30 $20.00 $60,000
9 30 $20.00 $60,000
10 30 $20.00 $60,000
TOTAL NEGOTIATED TAX INCENTIVE AMOUNT: l $600,000 ]

P. 73




L O
County Type: Statutory Minimum Wage Requirements:

Other Base hourly wage: $10.88
Total hourly compensation: $12.51

Ownership (20% or more):
Lincolnshire Management ~ New York, NY

Active State Participation at the project site: None

Requested Wage Assessment / Local Participation:
State: 3.0%
Local: 1.0% City of Franklin

Unemployment Rate:
County: 5.6% Kentucky: 5.9%

Existing Presence in Kentucky:
Simpson and Warren Counties

Special Conditions:
The company will be required to maintain 90% of the total statewlde full-time, Kentucky resident

employees at all company locations, excluding the site of the project, as of the date of preliminary

approval, 12 r ) V«“SWM?&J Cotf? ((Za){l"dk
IiIZOFf %Q}NJOUO’ Corwf _

—

hooe JIF FT &Yy Arsioeds
ot @l o pLp ] D cal WS
AgCaoling %(& oF

‘e poIeet .
Nh of 317 0 S0,
- g/

P. 74



; L
- ftaigLy

MEMO

[ Fraoblin Uiy Cosnmissiom aml Sivepeam Figeal Coozt
TROM, meott Crabteee
MDATE: Jume 4, 2015

SUBTECT: Personne] Policy Amoncdmonts

Ahacked g the rovised Povzoncel Policy Amendinenis. The changes are desizoased as such by
fracked changes on ke document. Some of thess changes we recuired due ke changes in the law that
were male during the Taal legislative sessicn of the Bertucky Cenera] Assembly, Please moviow and
wes will discwss ul the neetmg, IE e Contzission 1s 10 ageeemes L with these changes, we will meed o
caoticr adepliog el approving Che smendments o the ity of Pranklin®s Personazl Policies and
'rocedures Manual.

P. Th



Welcante to the City of Framnklin

Weloome to e Cily of Franldin! We hope thel vou will find your enagloyment with the
City to be o interesting, challenging s erijevabls cxperience!

The City of Franklin was ineprporvated Novernber 209 1820, and is currently organized
undes the Oy Manager form of government. We strive to peovide the highest guality
mnicipal services, Chualily serviees though, depend v cacl of vs comumilliug o o onr
hest, all the Hme, We hope son will join our e/ Teer o Duild and Toprove upom oae Lo
annd prod hisrory.

The ity atternply 1o promote a fecling of wodecslanding and respect ainong onr
emplovess. A ey toour success lies in the equality and dedication of our employees,
Each vmplovee of the City of Franklio plavs a eriical role in providing the Frunklin
eomimumnity with the best possible sondce.

Becausc of onr helef in the imporiano: of onr emplovess, the City of Franklin sirives to
nromote a work ensironment where employees are reated with digaiiy 2 nd respect.
vou have any bleas for improsing the way The worl 3z pertormed, or il von have aoy
ather sugeeslions or problems, you Shionld foel free w0 disenss these matiery wilh yomr
s prrtsor, the Humean Breounrecs Divector, or Uhe Cily Manager, By working together
as o team, the Cily Tupes to continme our Lradition of praviding exelent service to Lhe
cifizens ol Lhe City of Franklin,

CEy o Pranddin A B Possionel Fobioies and Frocedanes Page 1 of 51

Tariang Maveh p5, poig

P. 76



L.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

A.

Purpose

The City of Franklin, Kentucky, recognizes that a personnel system which recruits
and retains a competent, productive work force is essential to effective, efficient
local government. These policies and procedures have been developed in order to
foster maximum efficiency, economy, and equity in the administration of the
City's personnel and utilization of its human resources. The underlying objective
of these policies and procedures is to encourage that all personnel decisions be
based on merit and objective criteria of the individual employee's qualifications
and performance.

These policies and procedures set forth guidelines that may not be deviated from
without amendment by the City Commission of the City of Franklin (hereinafter
referred to interchangeably as the “City Commission” or “Commission” upon
recommendation of the City Manager. They do not, however, create any
contractual obligation on the part of the City or its agents and do not alter the
terminable at-will status of employment with the City.

EqualAffirmative-Action Qm)ortunitv Employer

1. The City of Franklin seeks to provide equal opportunity to all of its employees
and applicants for employment and to prohibit discrimination based on race,
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, pregnancy, childbirth,
pregnancy/child birth related medical conditions, genetic makeup, veteran or
family status, an individual’s status as a smoker or nonsmoker, national origin,
political affiliation, physical or mental disability, er-age_or any other status or
condition protected by applicable local, state, or federal laws, except where a
bona fide occupational qualification applies.

2. The City’s commitment to be an equal opportunity employer extends to all its
employment and personnel practices, including job opportunities, promotions,
pay and benefits, discipline, discharge, training., and other social and

recreatlonal act1v1tles sponsored by the C1tz—pfemetes—eqaa4—eppeﬁuﬂ&y—+n

3. The harassment, retaliation, coercion, interference, or intimidation of any
employee due to that employee’s race, religion, color, national origin, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, pregnancy., childbirth, pregnancy/child
birth related medical conditions, genetic makeup, age, disability, veteran or
family status, or because the employee is a smoker or nonsmoker is strictly
forbidden. Any employee who experiences such treatment should report it
immediately to his or her supervisor or other supervisory or management staff
in accordance with Section X of these policies.

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 77



C. Scope of Coverage

1.

These policies and procedures apply to all employees of the City of
Franklin other than:

All elected officials;

All members of Boards and Commissions;

City Manager;

City Attorney; and,

Consultants, advisors, and committees rendering advisory services.

A

These policies and procedures have been developed in accordance with
federal and state law but do not supersede federal or state law that may
have pre-emptive effect.

These policies are the Personnel Policies and Procedures of the City of
Franklin and, as such, these policies shall supersede and preempt all other
policies from any department of the city. If any conflict arises or if there
are any differences between these policies and any other departmental
policies, these policies shall control. All other departmental
policy/policies’ provisions that address any issues or sections addressed by
these policies and procedures shall be repealed specifically including, but
not limited to provisions regarding pay, leave, benefits or disciplinary
matters.

D. Administration of the Plan

1.

City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

The City of Franklin has a City Manager form of government. Under the
City Manager form, a mayor and four (4) commissioners make up the
Board of Commissioners which possesses the legislative and executive
powers of the City. Administrative powers are vested in the City Manager
who is appointed by a majority vote of the Commission.

The City Manager is the chief administrative officer of the City,
overseeing personnel and other administrative functions under the
guidance of the Commission. All personnel action may be recommended
by the City Manager subject to the approval of the City Commission who
may take action after presentation of the City Manager's recommendation.
However, any personnel action involving the hire of a new employee or
the discharge of an existing employee must be recommended by the City
Manager subject to the approval of the City Commission. In addition to
other duties as set forth in these policies and procedures, the City Manager
shall:

a. Exercise leadership in implementing a fair system of effective
personnel administration; and

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 3 of 51

P. 78



b. Administer the provisions of these personnel policies and
procedures.

I1. EMPLOYMENT PROCESS
A. Vacancy

A vacancy is created when a position needs to be filled because of the
termination, resignation, promotion, newly created position, demotion or death of
the employee so assigned.

1. All full-time vacancies shall be publicized by posting of notices at City
Hall and in the department in which the vacancy occurs, and by
advertisement as required by law, except as provided in Section IL.A.5.
below. The notice/advertisement shall include position title, summary of
duties, position qualifications, and the time limit for applying.

2. All applicants for the position (regardless of current employment status
with the City) must present an updated City Employment Application
form to the City Manager or his/her designee. Employment application
forms shall be supplied by the City Manager, Personnel Director or
Department Manager and completed by applicants and shall include
information about the applicant's training and experience and such
additional information as required to effectively evaluate the applicant's
ability to perform the duties required by the position.

3. No person may be appointed to a position unless the City Manager
determines through verified information that the applicant meets the
qualifications for the position as set forth in the position description. The
qualifications of an applicant for a position shall be ascertained on the
basis of one or more of the following:

a. Information the applicant supplies on the official employment
application form,;

b. Written, performance, or physical tests or examinations, or any
combination which may be required for the position;

C. Personal interview;
d. Information and evaluations supplied by references given by the
applicant;
e. Other appropriate information as determined; and,
f. The City reserves the right to conduct background investigations
City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 4 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 79



on all applicants for employment.

4. Upon the recommendation of the City Manager, the Commission shall fill the
vacancy based on the qualifications of all applicants and the needs of the City,
giving preference to current employees in the Department in which the
vacancy exists only to the extent that his/her qualifications are equal to or
superior to those of other candidates.

5. —Regardless of any other provision of this section, the City may hire an
individual to fill any vacancy in the City if the following conditions are met:

1. The City Manager recommends an individual for the vacancy after
completing the requirements of Section I1.A.3. above; and,

2. The City Commission approves the recommendation by a vote of
at least two-thirds (2/3) of its members.

B. Prohibition of Departmental Relationships

1.

The City prohibits employment in the future of relatives in the same department.
Relative is defined as parents, grandparents, spouse, brothers, sisters, children, in-
laws and/or persons who are in loco parentis with current or prospective
employees. In loco parentis individuals are persons who cared for and financially
supported the employee at any time while the current or prospective employee (as
the situation requires) was under the age of 18. This provision shall not prohibit
persons who were employed prior to the effective date of these policies from
remaining employed with the City.

In the event that any of the relationships referenced in IIB(1) above arises as a
result of a marriage occurring subsequent to the adoption of these policies and
subsequent to the employment of two separate city employees, at least one of the
employees shall be required to terminate his or her employment. In the event that
neither employee voluntarily agrees to terminate his or her employment, the
employee with the longer period of most recent service shall be entitled to remain
as an employee of the City.

A variance to the above provisions may be recommended by the City Manager and

approved by the City Commission. However, no relative shall be employed
and/or work in the same department or division in a supervisory position over
another relative. In the event that this situation is created, the City shall have the
option of moving one of the relatives to another shift (if possible or feasible) or
have one of the relatives terminate his or her employment with the City.

The City prohibits the fraternizing of employees. Ffaternizing is defined as any
relationship other than a causal non-intimate social friendship in the same
department.

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 5 0f 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 80



C. Pre-Employment Tests and Post-Job Offer Medical Examinations

1. All applicants shall be required to successfully complete job specific pre-
employment tests in accordance with the qualifications and essential functions of
the position sought.

2. All applicants for employment shall submit to pre-employment drug and alcohol
screening.

3. All employees may be required as a condition of their employment to successfully

pass a post-job offer medical examination by a medical doctor or psychiatrist
selected by the City in order to determine the employee's ability to perform the
essential functions of the assigned position. The City shall pay the cost for all
required examinations.

D. Orientation of Newly Employed Personnel

1. An orientation shall be made available to all new employees by the City Manager
(or his/her designee) as soon as possible following employment.

2. The orientation shall consist of at least the following
a. Explanation of management policies and administrative procedures;
b. Explanation of Compensation plan and pay schedule;
c. Explanation of Employee benefits;
d. Provide employee a copy of this manual; and,
e. Other elements or documents as deemed appropriate.

E. Personnel Records
I. The City Manager (or his/her designee) shall maintain records of all employees

which shall contain for each employee:

a. Employee's name, permanent address, and phone number;

b. Position title;

c. Completed application form;

d. Hiring date;

e. Departmental assignment;

f. Salary;

g. All changes in status as a city employee;

h. Documentation of all disciplinary actions;

I Employee’s periodic evaluation;

J- Labor standards, EEO-4, immigration requirements; and,

k. Whatever additional information deemed appropriate by the City
City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 6 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 81



Manager; provided, however, confidential medical information shall be
maintained in a separate file that may only be accessed on a "need to
know" basis.

F. Probation

1. New employees other than police department personnel shall be employed on a
trial basis for one hundred eighty (180) days. New employees in the police
department shall be employed on a trial basis for one (1) year, from the time that
the employee completes Basic Training and the Field Training Officers Program
if a sworn Police Officer except that such employees shall be eligible for benefits
after working ninety (90) days.

2. Any employee who has served an initial trial period and is promoted from within
the City to a new position shall be assigned to said new position for a trial period
of ninety (90) days.

3. During the trial period of the employee, a newly hired employee may be

dismissed at any time without right of appeal. An employee serving a trial period
as a result of promotion may be demoted without right of appeal and reinstated to
the position from which he/she was promoted if it is still vacant or to a position
comparable to the one from which he/she was promoted.

4. The trial period may be extended upon recommendation of the department
manager and/or the City Manager if it is determined that a longer period is needed
to learn the work and/or evaluate the employee's ability to perform the job.

G. Employee Evaluation

1. All employees occupying established positions shall be evaluated at least annually
on an evaluation form approved by the City Manager, except that probationary
employees may be evaluated more frequently during the probation period.

2. Evaluations shall be conducted by the immediate supervisor and reviewed by the
department manager and the City Manager. The immediate supervisor and
department manager shall review the evaluation with the employee being
evaluated; any employee who disagrees with the evaluation may complete a
written rebuttal within ten (10) working days after the review, which shall be
attached to the evaluation form.

3. The evaluation shall be used to inform employees of how well they are
performing their assigned work and how they can improve performance. In
addition, the evaluation may be used in determining order of lay off, as a basis for
training, promotion in classification and/or pay, demotion, transfer, or dismissal.

4. A copy of every evaluation shall be placed in the employee's personnel folder.

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 7 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 82



III. CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

A. DISCIPLINARY ACTION

1. An employee may be disciplined for (but not limited to) the following:

a.
b.
c.

~

55 -

S.

Incompetency;

Inefficiency;

Dishonesty, which shall include, but not be limited to:

(1) deliberating making or using falsified records, materials,
requisitions, etc.;

(2) lying;

(3) personal use of City property;

(4) theft of property;

(5) deliberate waste;

(6) falsifying the employment application form.

Immoral or improper conduct;

Neglect of duty which shall include, but not be limited to:

(1) repeated failure to be at work station at starting time;

(2) leaving assigned work area without permission;

(3) failure to attend scheduled meetings;

(4) refusal to accept reasonable work assignment;

(5) stopping work before specified time;

(6) deliberate interruption of work;

(7) loitering, loafing, or sleeping on job;

(8) unsatisfactory work or attitude.

Neglect or mishandling of equipment;

Excessive absenteeism;

Failure to keep time cards accurately or completing another
employee's time card;

Fighting or horseplay on City property at any time or while on duty
at a place other than on City property;

Attempting bodily injury or an assault to and/or on another person;
Failure to wear assigned safety equipment or failure to observe
safety rules;

Abusive or obscene language;

Discourtesy to the public or fellow employees;

Sexual, racial, or other harassment of the public or fellow
employees;

Conviction of a felony or a crime involving moral turpitude;
Untidy attire, torn uniforms, and other failures to maintain a clean,
neat appearance;

Off-duty activities that discredit the individual or the City or cause
inefficiency in performing assigned duties;

Reporting to work under the influence of intoxicants or illegal
drugs;

Possession, distribution, or use of any intoxicants or illegal drugs

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 8 of 51

Revised March 25, 2019

P. 83



while on duty (including lunch);

t. Gambling while on duty (including lunch);

u. Improperly discussing or disclosing confidential information;

V. Violation of, or failure to report violation of, job related federal or
state laws or administrative regulations;

W, Insubordination;

X. An accumulation of minor infractions;

y. Violating the substance abuse policy;

Z. Failure to report any accident within twenty-four (24) hours of said

accident; and,
aa. Failure to follow any policy, rule, regulation, operating procedure
or job requirement not specifically mentioned above.

When an employee fails to follow any rule, regulation, operating
procedure or job requirement, one of the following measures shall apply,
depending upon the circumstances involved and the severity of the

offense;

a. Verbal warning (reprimand)

(1)

@)

In the case of a minor infraction, the immediate supervisor,
department manager or City Manager shall administer a
verbal reprimand and explain the actions necessary to
correct the problem.

The date of the reprimand, along with the description of the
occurrence which prompted the reprimand, actions
necessary to correct the problem, and any comments the
employee may have made shall be noted and placed in the
employee's personnel folder by the person giving the
reprimand.

b. Written warning

(1)

)

In the case of a second minor infraction or when
misconduct is serious enough for a written warning on the
first offense, the immediate supervisor, department
manager or, City Manager shall give the employee a
written warning specifying the reason(s) for such warning
and noting any previous verbal and/or written warnings for
the same or similar infractions.

A written warning shall state that the employee's
performance will now be reviewed on a regular basis for
improvement and shall explain the consequences of
continued infractions.

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 9 of 51

Revised March 25, 2019

P. 84



€)

The employee shall sign the written warning or the warning
shall be signed by a witness; a copy of the written warning
shall be forwarded to the City Manager to be placed in the
employee's personnel folder.

Suspension

(1)

@)

The City Manager may suspend an employee with or
without pay for any period during an investigation of an
alleged offense. The suspended employee shall be notified
of the suspension in writing within five (5) working days
after the effective date of the suspension. The notice shall
include the reason(s) for and duration of the suspension (if
known). The City Manager may also suspend an
employee, without pay, as a disciplinary action for up to
five (5) working days if, in the sole discretion of the City
Manager, the infraction is serious enough to warrant said
suspension. Suspensions for longer than five (5) days,
other than during the investigation of an alleged offense,
must be approved by the City Commission. The suspended
employee shall be notified of the reason(s) for and the
duration of the suspension within five (5) working days
after the effective date of the suspension or, if the
suspension is for less than five (5) days, the employee shall
receive notification no later than the end of the next day
that the employee returns to work after said suspension.

Employees suspended without pay shall be paid in full if
the investigation exonerates the employee.

Dismissal

(1)

2)

Where an offense is continually repeated, multiple offenses
are committed, or misconduct is serious enough for
discharge on the first offense, the immediate supervisor,
department manager, or the City Manager may recommend
dismissal of an employee under his or her supervision.

The recommendation for dismissal must be stated in
writing and delivered to the employee advising him/her of
the reason(s) for the dismissal, details of any or all previous
disciplinary action(s) taken against the employee, which are
deemed by the immediate supervisor, department manager,
or the City Manager to be pertinent to the recommendation
for dismissal, and the recommended effective date and time
of discharge.

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 10 of 51

Revised March 25, 2019

P. 85



(3) Prior to dismissal the employee has the right to appear
personally or with counsel at a pre-termination hearing held
before the City Manager. The employee must request the
pre-termination hearing within ten (10) working days of the
employee's notification of dismissal. The pre-termination
hearing shall be held within ten (10) working days after
receipt of the employee's request.

4) Within ten (10) working days of the pre-termination
hearing, the City Manager shall notify the employee in
writing of his/her decision. The employee may appeal that
decision to the City Commission within ten (10) working
days. The Commission shall conduct a post-termination
hearing.

e. Demotion or Transfer In the event that an employee becomes
unable to perform the duties of the position to which he/she is
assigned, the employee may be transferred or demoted in lieu of
dismissal, provided the employee meets the qualifications for the
position to which he/she is to be transferred and the position is
vacant.

B. Resignations

1. Any employee wishing to resign should inform his/her immediate
supervisor of the intended resignation as soon as possible after the
decision is made. The notice shall be in writing and shall include the
effective date of the resignation. An employee's resignation and attending
reasons, if known, shall be recorded in the employee's personnel folder.

2. The employment date of any employee who resigns in good standing and
is subsequently rehired will be the most recent date of employment.

3. Any employee who is absent from work for three (3) consecutive days
without notifying his/her immediate supervisor of the reason for the
absence shall be considered to have abandoned the job and will be
terminated from employment with the City.

C. Layoffs (Reduction in Force)

1. Upon recommendation of the City Manager, the Commission may lay off
an employee or employees because of lack of work or funds. The order of

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 11 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 86



layoftf shall be determined by the needs of the City. Consideration shall be
given to both the seniority and merit of persons being considered for
layoff. Temporary, seasonal, and/or probationary employees shall be laid
off before full-time employees within class(es) or divisions affected by
layoff.

The Commission shall notify the employee(s) of the layoff in writing as
soon as possible prior to the layoff. The notice shall explain the reason for
and duration of the layoff (if known) and a copy of the notice shall be
placed in the employee's personnel file.

An employee who has given satisfactory service and is laid off shall be
eligible for re-employment in his or her previous or other positions,
provided that he/she meets the qualifications for the position and the
position is vacant. Upon re-employment, the employee's years of service
shall resume but with no credit given for the period during which the
employee was laid off and not providing service to the City.

D. Non-Disciplinary Transfers

The City Manager may, after consultation with the City Commission, transfer an
employee from one department to another or from one job to another, provided
that the employee's hourly pay is not reduced and that the employee remains in
that same general job classification range.

E. Outside Employment |

1.

City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

“Outside employment” is defined as any paid employment performed by
an employee in addition to employment with the City.

An employee (other than those employees specifically referred to in
paragraph 3 below) of the City may be self-employed or may take
occasional or part-time jobs if, in the opinion of his or her department
head, there is no conflict with working hours, the employee’s efficiency in
his or her City work, or other interests of the City. Employees wishing to
take off-duty employment shall apply to his or her department head on the
form provided by the City. The employee shall obtain written approval
from his or her department head and the City Manager prior to beginning a
job other than that with the City.

Management level positions (Finance Director, Human Resources and
Risk Management Director, City Attorney, Public Works Director, Street,
Water and Wastewater Superintendents, Police Chief, and City Clerk)
shall notify the City Manager prior to creating, contracting with, or being
employed by any agency, business, or firm other than the City. The City
Manager shall provide written approval or disapproval, which shall be
forwarded to the City Commission. Any request by the City Manager

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 12 of 51

P. 87



shall receive prior approval by the City Commission.

4. Upon the recommendation of the department head, the City Manager may
grant the request provided the following criteria are met:

a. Such employment shall not:

(O interfere with the performance of the employee's duties;

(2) involve a conflict of interest or conflict with the employee's
duties for the City;

3) involve the performance of duties which the employee
should perform as part of his/her employment with the
City;

@) occur during the employee's regular or assigned working
hours unless the employee is on annual leave or leave
without pay (unless approved in writing by the City
Manager.); or

(5)  cause employee to engage in employment making him
unavailable to be relieved of his duties by the outside
employer in the event he is called for emergency service by
the City.

b. The employee shall make arrangements with the outside employer
to be relieved of duties in the event the employee is called for
emergency service by the City. Further, City employment shall
remain the first priority and, if at any time the outside employment
interferes with an employee’s job requirements or performance for
the City, the employee shall be required to modify the conditions
of his or her outside employment or terminate either the outside
employment or his or her City employment.

F. Conflict of Interest
1. Employees shall not accept gifts, gratuities, or loans from organizations, business

concerns, or individuals with whom the employee has official relationships or
business with the City which are in excess of or in conflict with the “City of
Franklin Code of Ethics” as codified.

2. Employees shall not solicit donations or gifts by, on behalf of, or to be used
directly or indirectly by the City of Franklin without first obtaining written
consent of the City Manager.

3. The City shall not contract with nor purchase services from employees outside the

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 13 of 51

Revised March 25, 2019

P. 88



terms of normal employment conditions.

4. Employees shall not use confidential knowledge gained through official duty for
personal profit.

G. Political Activity

1. No employee, as a condition of employment or continued employment, shall be
required to contribute to or campaign for any candidate for political office.

2. No employee of the City shall engage in political activity during his/her assigned
duty hours or while in uniform.

H. Drug-Free Work Place/Drug Policy

1. Purpose

The City of Franklin has a vital interest in maintaining a safe, healthy, and
efficient working environment for its employees and the public we serve. The
following acts may result in serious safety, health, and operational risks to the
public and City employees: (1) being under the influence of the following while
on the job or on City property: an illegal drug; a potentially performance-altering
drug; alcohol; or any hallucinogen, which includes but is not limited to any other
chemical or aerosol substance which can affect motor skills or mental abilities in
the workplace; (2) having such substances in an employee’s system while on the
job or on City property; (3) attempted or actual possession, use, or sale of alcohol
while on the job or on City property; or (4) attempted or actual possession, use, or
sale of illegal drugs. Illegal drugs include illicit drugs and improperly used
prescribed drugs.

The City of Franklin recognizes that its ability to provide a high level of service to
its citizens is dependent upon the safety and efficiency of its employees.
Accordingly, it is the obligation and intent of the City of Franklin to undertake
affirmative efforts in the area of drugs and alcohol to: maintain a safe working
environment; protect city property, equipment and operations; and provide for the
welfare of its citizens and visitors.

The City of Franklin has determined that the services it provides to the
community are essential for the community’s welfare. Though some employees
work In positions which are more “safety-sensitive” than others, the City of
Franklin has determined that all of its employees are engaged in positions where
substance abuse could affect City operations and/or the welfare of citizens.
Because of these findings, the City has determined that its employees should be
subject to the substance abuse policies herein. It shall be the duty of the City
Manager to oversee proper administration of this Ordinance.

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 14 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 89



2. Substance Abuse Work Rules

Because of the effect that substance abuse can have on employees and the City,

and to

protect employees and the City, the City has the following work rules

regarding the use, possession or sale of alcohol or drugs, or similar attempted
conduct.

g.

While on duty, on call, or on City property (which includes but is not
limited to all areas such as eating areas, lounge areas, locker rooms, or
parking lots), employees are prohibited from being under the influence of
alcohol or illegal drugs, or from having such substances in their systems.
Moreover, employees may not attempt to or actually possess, sell, or
receive alcohol or illegal drugs while on duty or on City property at any
time.

The City may conduct searches where it has reason to suspect that the
search will reveal evidence of employee misconduct, or where the search
is necessary for a non-investigatory work-related purpose. In connection
with a suspected Ordinance violation investigation, the City may
reasonably search an employee and/or their personal property. The City
may also search its own property and premises, including but not limited
to lockers, equipment, and City-owned vehicles.

The employee may refuse to submit to a search. However, any
employee who fails to cooperate and/or submit to such a search will be
discharged. Where practicable, searches should be approved by the
Department Head or City Manger.

Employees taking a prescribed drug must maintain the drug in its
original container identifying the drug, dosage, date of prescription
and authorizing physician. Each employee must notify his or her
supervisor regarding any work restrictions that should be observed while
taking the prescribed drug.

Employees should not be on duty or on City premises while in
possession of a drug prescribed for someone else, nor should an
employee have such a drug in their system.

Any employee who may be undergoing medically prescribed treatment
with a controlled substance which may limit or affect the employee’s
ability to perform on the job must report this treatment to his/her
supervisor prior to beginning work.

Violation of any of the foregoing rules will result in discharge.

3. Substance Abuse Tests

City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 15 of 51

P. 90



City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

After receiving an offer of employment, but prior to beginning work, an
applicant for employment shall be required to undergo a drug-alcohol
screening test. Employment will be denied to any applicant who’s
confirmed positive test reveals the presence of illegal drugs, alcohol,
prescription drugs without a valid prescription, or hallucinogens.

Drug/alcohol tests may be conducted randomly for employees in safety-
sensitive positions, which include sworn fire and emergency service
personnel, sworn police personnel, non-clerical water plant employees,
and heavy equipment operators.

Drug/alcohol tests may be conducted for City employees whose duties
require them to be Commercial Drivers License (CDL) holders. The
testing of such employees shall be administered and conducted in
compliance with Federal Department of Transportation regulations and
any applicable laws or regulations of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.
The City Manger will develop policies and procedures to comply with
these laws and regulations.

Drug/alcohol tests may be conducted where a City supervisor has reason
to suspect that an employee at work or on City property is either under the
influence or is affected by alcohol, drugs or other hallucinogens. A
reasonable suspicion determination shall be documented, in writing, by at
least two trained supervisors or by professional law enforcement or
medical personnel. A determination will be based upon observation and
documentation of:

¢)) Detection of an alcoholic substance emitting from the employee’s
breath. This shall include a detection of a “hang-over” odor;

(2) Observation(s) of the employee’s speech being unusually slurred
or noticeably different without a proper medical reason being
given;

3) Observation(s) of the employee’s actions or conduct as being
noticeably different or impaired and not consistent with normal
conduct and without proper explanation; or

@) Observation(s) that the employee’s appearance, in conjunction
with the above, indicates that the employee is impaired.

Drug/alcohol tests may be conducted for an employee who apparently
causes a workplace accident which results in bodily injury or property
damage expected to exceed $1,000, or where any employee is involved in
any workplace accident if a City supervisor reasonably suspects the
employee’s use of alcohol, drugs or other hallucinogens is and/or was a
cause of said accident;

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 16 of 51

P. 91



Drug/alcohol testing may be conducted in connection with any required
physical examination or on a periodic basis for City employees who work
in safety-sensitive positions.

Drug/alcohol testing may be conducted on a return-to-duty basis before
safety-sensitive employee returns to work after a leave of absence.

No drug/alcohol test will be administered without the consent of the
employee. However, any employee who fails to cooperate and/or submit
to drug/alcohol testing requested by the City in accordance with these drug
policies will be discharged. Any employee with a confirmed positive test
for alcohol, illegal drugs, or hallucinogens will be discharged.

Drug/Alcohol Sample Collection and Testing Procedures. The City shall
. contract with a firm or firms in the business of conducting drug testing,

urinalysis specimen collection and testing. Testing shall conform to
federal guidelines, which include the following procedures:

(1)

)

3)

)

()

(6)

L Psychological Testing

Employees required to submit to any drug or alcohol testing will
sign, prior to testing, the laboratory form consenting to drug or
alcohol testing, and to release the results to the Medical Review
Officer (MRO) and the City Manager;

Clinical testing will be performed by a fully accredited laboratory
and not by any employee of the City;

Collection and safeguarding of test specimens, with a valid chain
of custody, shall follow strict chain of custody procedures;

Validation of test specimens by a second confirmation test and
verification of all positive test results by referral to the MRO shall
occur. All interpretation of drug and alcohol testing will be
performed by the MRO and not by the testing facility;

Chemical tests of an individual’s blood/breath for -the -presence of
alcohol will be performed by certified and trained law enforcement
personnel by means of a breath test or by blood sample obtained
only by qualified medical staff; and

Before any action is taken against an employee who tests positive,
the employee will be given an opportunity to explain the results
directly to the MRO.

All police department employees may be requested to submit to psychological or fitness
testing upon recommendation of the police chief or the City Manager under the following
City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 17 0f 51

Revised March 25, 2019

P. 92



circumstances.

1. When a police department employee is involved in a work-related accident or
incident;

2. When the police chief or City Manager have reasonable cause or suspicion;

3. On a random basis as deemed appropriate by the police chief or the City Manager.

Failure or refusal of a police department employee to submit to testing when requested
shall be grounds for termination of employment.

IV.  CLASSIFICATION PLAN

A. General

The City Manager shall establish and maintain a classification plan subject to approval by
the City Commission in which each established position shall be assigned to an
appropriate class on the basis of the qualifications and responsibilities of the position.

B. Written Specifications

Each position shall have a written specification that includes:

1. A concise, descriptive title;
2. A description of duties and responsibilities of the position; and
3. A statement of desirable qualifications for the position.
C. Annual Review/Evaluation
1. At least once each year, the Department Manager of each department shall

review the duties and responsibilities of each position under his or her
supervision. If necessary, the Department Manager shall recommend
reclassification of position(s), the creation of new classes/positions, or the
abolition of existing classes/positions to the City Manager. The City
Manager shall review all recommendations by the Department Managers
and shall accept or reject the recommendations. Nothing in this section
shall prevent the City Manager from conducting his own review of any or
all employees under his supervision.

At least once each year, the City Manager shall review the duties and
responsibilities of each Department Managers and each employee that is
directly under his supervision. If necessary, the City Manager shall
recommend reclassification of the position(s), the creation of new

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 18 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 93



classes/positions or the abolition of existing classes/positions. — All
recommendations from the City Manager under this section shall be
brought before the City Commission in accordance with these policies and
procedures.

2. All changes shall be made by amendment of the classification plan upon
the City Manager's recommendation and approval by the City
Commission.

D. Reclassification

1. The City Manager shall recommend reclassification of a position after its
duties and responsibilities change materially and it is no longer
comparable with other positions in the class.

2. Whenever the duties of a position so change that no appropriate class for it
exists, the City Manager shall prepare an appropriate class specification
for the position and recommend the position be assigned to the new class.

3. Reclassification of a position may not be used to avoid a restriction
concerning demotion, promotion, or compensation.

4. When creating a new class, the format of existing specifications shall be
maintained, including all required sections.

5. All classification changes shall be made by amendment of the

classification plan upon the City Manager's recommendation and approval
by the City Commission.

V. COMPENSATION PLAN

A. Classification of Employees

1.

City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

All employees of the City of Franklin shall be classified as full-time, part-
time, volunteer, temporary/seasonal or retired police officers.

a. Full-time Employee - An employee who works thirty-seven and
one-half hours or more per week on a regularly scheduled basis;

b. Part-time Employee - An employee who works less than thirty-
seven and one-half hours per week, but on a regularly scheduled
basis;

c. Temporary/Seasonal Employee - An employee who works in a

position which is of a temporary nature, either full-time or part-
time. The position may be needed to meet a peak work load or for
a seasonal type program such as summer recreation;

d. Retired Police Officers — An employee that qualifies to be
hired/rehired under the provisions of KRS 95.022. Any officer

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 19 of 51

P. 94



2.

hired in accordance with KRS 95.022 is not eligible for City health
insurance, and the City shall not make retirement contributions for
the officer. However, the officer shall be eligible to receive the
other benefits available to employees such as vacation, personal
and sick leave, etc. In addition, the officer shall be eligible to
receive compensation according to the standard procedures
applicable to other police officers of the City. Retired officers are
hired based upon need and are hired for a renewable one-year term,
and non-renewal shall not constitute a disciplinary action. These
officers are also subject to other City policies relating to police
officers including, but not limited to due process protections under
KRS 15.520.

All positions shall be classified as exempt or non-exempt for overtime
compensation;

Exempt personnel include executive, administrative, supervisory,
or professional employees (as designated by the City in accordance
with applicable law), who are exempt from the minimum wage and
overtime requirement and are compensated based on an approved
annual salary schedule.

Non-exempt personnel are all employees filling a position subject
to the minimum wage and overtime requirement and are
compensated based on an approved hourly rate schedule.

B. Maintaining Classification

The City Manager shall establish, maintain and follow a compensation plan as
approved by the City Commission that shall prescribe for each class a minimum
and a maximum rate of pay and whatever intermediate rates deemed equitable.
The compensation plan is attached hereto as Appendix A and incorporated herein
by reference. This compensation plan is subject to change at any time at the
discretion of the City Commission or the City Manager, with the approval of the
City Commission. To obtain a copy of the most recent compensation plan,
contact the Personnel Director at City Hall.

1.

Employees shall be given consideration for a pay increase annually on the
employee's anniversary date of employment or as soon thereafter as is
practicable, contingent upon satisfactory performance and availability of
City funds.

An appointee to a new position shall receive at least the minimum salary
for the class to which the position is allocated, except that the City
Manager may recommend, subject to the Commission's approval, that the
appointment be made at a salary above the minimum:

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 20 of 51

Revised March 25, 2019

P. 95



a. In cases of unusual difficulty in filling the position; or
b. In hiring exceptionally qualified personnel; or
C. Any other criteria as determined by the City Commission.

C. State Mandated Certifications

Full time, non-exempt personnel who are required to obtain state mandated
certifications shall be compensated at $1.00 per hour per classification. Exempt
personnel in supervisory positions shall be required to obtain the same
certifications as a requirement of their job and will not qualify for the $1.00 per
hour compensation.

D. Cross-Training Certification Pay

Full time personnel who obtain certifications in areas outside their regular
positions for duties they will be called upon to perform regularly may qualify for
cross-training certification incentive pay.  All applications for cross-training
certification pay must be approved by the City Manager prior to submission. In
addition to their base pay, employees may earn .19 per hour for the first cross-
training and .24 per hour for each additional cross-training certification obtained.
Examples of certifications that qualify for the cross-training incentive pay include
but are not limited pesticide application and roads scholar certification.
Employees receiving cross-training pay must maintain the certification to
continue to receive the cross-training incentive pay. Once the certification has
expired, the incentive pay will be deducted from the employee’s pay.

E. Overtime

1. In order to determine whether an employee will receive overtime pay for
hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week, cach shall be declared
"exempt" or "non-exempt" in accordance with provisions of existing labor
laws. Exempt employees shall not receive overtime pay but shall receive
compensatory time as set forth in Section V.D. below; non-exempt employees
shall receive overtime pay at the rate of one and one-half (1 '2) times the
hourly rate for actual hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in any work
week.

2. Time off with pay (such as vacation, holiday or sick leave) may not be
considered as hours worked for overtime pay purposes.

3. Overtime work shall be approved in advance by the employee's immediate
supervisor whenever possible and shall be kept at a minimum consistent with
maintenance of essential services and the City's financial resources.

F. Compensatory Time

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 21 0f 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 96



1. As stated in Section V.C.1. above, “non-exempt” employees (as that term is
defined) are entitled to overtime pay. “Exempt” employees (as that term is
defined) shall not receive overtime pay. However, exempt employees shall be
entitled to receive and/or accumulate time off from work as compensatory
time as set forth in this section. All exempt employees are required to keep
accurate time cards reflecting his/her time worked during each pay period, and
the employee’s time cards shall be submitted to the personnel/payroll director
as soon as practicable after the conclusion of each pay period.

2. Exempt employees are salaried employees whose salary is based on working
forty (40) hours per week. All hours worked by an exempt employee in
excess of forty (40) hours per week shall be recorded and made available for
use by the exempt employee as “compensatory time” off from work on an
hour for hour basis subject to the provisions of this section. For example, if
an exempt employee works forty-two (42) hours during a pay period, he or
she shall have two (2) hours available to use as time off from work without
disturbing vacation, personal or sick time.

3. Compensatory time may be accumulated and carried over from year to year
up to a maximum of two hundred fifty (250) hours but shall be forfeited upon
severance of employment with the City. However, in no event, other than the
instance where an employee has used all his/her available sick days, shall an
employee be approved for a day of compensatory time leave from work unless
the City Manager is notified and the compensatory time off from work is
approved by or before the end of the employee’s last scheduled day to work
immediately prior to requesting/taking the compensatory time off from work.

4. Compensatory time off from work of more than one (1) day should be
required at least two (2) weeks in advance; compensatory time off from work
may be disapproved, in the sole discretion of the of the City Manager, if the
employee’s services are required at the requested time.

G. On Call Compensation

1. An employee "on call” must be accessible by telephone or pager in the event
his/her services are needed at a time other than regular scheduled work hours,
i.e. after the close of business Monday through Friday; Saturdays and
Sundays; and holidays.

2. To the extent feasible, "on call" status shall be rotated and evenly distributed
among employees where applicable.

3. On-call pay - Any employee designated as being on call shall receive two (2)
hours pay per day for each day of "on call" status to compensate the employee
for the infringement upon his/her personal time.

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 22 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 97



4. Call-out pay - Employees shall be compensated for the actual number of hours
worked if called to work at a time other than regular scheduled work hours at
the regular or overtime rate, depending on the number of hours worked by the
employee during that pay period. This shall be in addition to "on call pay."
Provided, however, that Police Department personnel shall be compensated

for

time spent while under subpoena or, as required, for court in accordance

with the Police Policies and Procedures Manual.

H. Expense Reimbursement

Economy is required. Cost should be the most economical consistent with the
City's best interests.

1. Any full-time employee of the City incurring expense for prior approved city-
related business or travel outside the City shall be reimbursed as follows:

a. -The employee shall be reimbursed for the actual cost of lodging verified

City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

by receipts. The City Manager shall give prior approval when "required"
lodging exceeds $125.00 per night. Whenever appropriate, the department
head will decide whether same room accommodations will be utilized.

For travel less than 125 miles from the City and for a trip of duration of
one day, the employee shall not be reimbursed for lodging, unless
approved by the City Manager.

Exempt employees shall not be compensated for travel time which is in
addition to the paid work week.

Non-exempt employees shall be compensated for travel time which is in
addition to the paid work week at the appropriate hourly rate schedule.

Food

Local or State Travel: Meal allowance will be permitted on overnight
trips where two or more meals are required. No more than $38 per day +
up to 15% tip, employee only, will be reimbursed for actual monies spent
for food. Ttemized receipts must be submitted for expenses over $2.00.

National/Out of State Travel: Meal allowance will be permitted on
overnight trips where two or more meals are required. No more than $45
per day + up to 15% tip, employee only, will be reimbursed for actual
monies spent for food; maximum allowable expenditure $60 per day for
high rate areas (as designated annually by the IRS) with prior approval by
the City Manager. Itemized receipts must be submitted for expenses over
$2.00.

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 23 of 51

P. 98



City of Franklin At-will
Revised March 25, 2019

A detailed, original receipt must accompany all requests for
reimbursement of meals. Meals provided as part of conference/meeting
registration fees, alcoholic beverages, and local meals are not
reimbursable expenses.

Meals purchased while attending a one (1) day seminar or trip that does
not require overnight lodging are reimbursable expenses, however, prior
authorization from the employee’s Department Head and City Manager
must be obtained. Note that, according to IRS rules and regulations, any
meal reimbursements that do not relate to overnight travel are considered a
taxable fringe benefit for the traveling employee and will be taxed
accordingly via payroll.

Actual cost of gasoline and oil purchased and placed in a City-Owned
vehicle by an employee while engaged in work-related travel will be
reimbursable. Purchase must be substantiated by a receipt showing total
gallons and total charges.

All tolls and reasonable parking fees incurred in city-related travel are
reimbursable. (Note: Tolls are not to be charged for City vehicles being
operated in state in an official capacity.) The maximum reimbursable rate
for airport parking is $9.00 per day unless otherwise authorized by the
traveling employee’s Department Head and City Manager. However, if
the facility charges airport fees and gas surcharges those may also be
reimbursed with an itemized receipt.

Valet parking is not allowed unless a hotel requires valet parking because
a general parking area/garage is full or if there is no other parking
alternative. Avoiding self-parking as a matter of personal inconvenience
is not justification for incurring additional expenses.

All charges or fares for necessary travel on common carriers (plane, bus,
train, subway, taxi, ferry, etc.) are reimbursable. Sightseeing and pleasure
tours are not reimbursable.

Reimbursement for out-of-state travel by privately owned vehicles shall be -
made on the basis of airplane coach fare or the City’s standard mileage
rate, whichever is the lesser amount.

When using a personal vehicle, an employee shall be reimbursed at the
current Internal Revenue Code rate. Use of a personal vehicle must be
approved in advance of travel, unless there are extenuating circumstances
which must be substantiated by the immediate supervisor or City Manager
in writing.

Itemized receipts for all expenditures are to be obtained and attached to
the request for reimbursement form which must be completed as soon as
possible upon completion of travel and submitted for payment no later
than three (3) working days after they are incurred.

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 24 of 51

P. 89



m. All requests for reimbursement shall be signed by the immediate
supervisor and City Manager.

n. Employees violating this section will be subject to appropriate disciplinary
action.

I. Cash Advances

Cash advances may be granted under special circumstances when there is a need
to receive cash in advance of an expense because established City payment
methods administered by the Purchasing Department cannot be used. Cash
advances will be granted only for business or travel that is authorized by a City
Department and approved by a Department Head or alternate approver.

The total amount permitted to an employee for a cash advance cannot exceed $50
per day of travel. If any amounts above this are requested then a statement must
be submitted justifying the total amount of advance requested and authorized by
the employee’s Department Head and the City Manager.

When an advance is made for travel, it is the employee’s responsibility to settle
the advance upon returning from travel by submitting: (1) itemized receipts for
approved expenditures paid for with the advance; and (2) any unused portion of
the cash advance, the sum of which should total the amount of the cash advanced.

In the event the sum of these items is less than the cash advanced, the employee is
personally liable to return the difference to the City. It will be the employee’s
responsibility to repay any unsettled portion of the cash advance. Failure to repay
the debt will result in collection activities by the City. Employees have 3 days
from the completion of travel (the due date) to submit the appropriate
documentation to Purchasing and settle the cash advance. Thirty (30) days after
the due date, the City will begin a collection effort to obtain repayment from the
employee, including payroll deduction.

J. Absences Due to Adverse Weather Conditions

Since the City has essential services that must continue to operate during
inclement weather, it is not practical to close municipal operations. In the event
of extremely adverse weather conditions, any employee who does not report for
scheduled duty assignments will be required to charge such absences to
accumulated leave time (personal days, vacation leave, or holidays), or if
necessary, leave without pay. If a formal state of emergency is declared by the
Governor, Mayor, or City Manager directing people/employees to stay off the
roads or to avoid work locations in Franklin, the City Manager may implement
the following procedure to determine compensation for classified personnel:

1. Employees not required to work during a declared emergency will receive
pay for their normal daily schedule at the employee’s normal rate of pay.

2. Employees who are required by their supervisor to work during a declared
emergency will, in addition to their normal compensation (including any
overtime, if eligible), be allowed comparable time-off from work for their

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 25 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 100



V. EMPLOYEE

normal daily scheduled hours which shall be added to the employee’s
personal time. However, in no event shall time off be authorized in such a
manner as will result in the payment of overtime compensation.
“Comparable time off” shall be calculated as the number of hours that
non-essential personnel in “1” above did not work during the emergency,
but for which they received pay.

Employees shall not be entitled to the comparable time off during the
declared emergency if they: were not scheduled to work; had scheduled
vacation, holiday, personal/employee appreciation, bereavement, military,
sick, or other accrued leave; are on maternity/paternity, injury or family
medical leave, or leave without pay; or are out-of-town on business.

BENEFITS

A. Full-time Employees

Full-time employees shall be entitled to all benefits provided by the City.

B. Holidays

1.

City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

All full-time employees shall receive eight (8) hours pay at the regular rate
of pay for the following holidays unless a different amount of time is
listed by the holiday:

New Years’ Eve;

New Years’ Day;

Martin Luther King's Birthday;
Good Friday - 4 hours;
Memorial Day;

July 4th;

Labor Day;

Veterans’ Day;

Thanksgiving;

Friday following Thanksgiving;
Christmas Eve; and

Christmas Day

ST TR e a0 o

When any listed holiday falls on Saturday, it will be observed on the
preceding Friday. When any listed holiday falls on Sunday, it will be
observed on the following Monday. In the event consecutive holidays,
such as New Years’ Eve and New Years’ Day fall so that one is on a week
day and one is on a weekend, the City Commission shall determine when
the weekend holiday will be observed. An “observed holiday” is a day in
which the City designates as a holiday due to the actual holiday falling on
a day of the week in which it is not practical or possible for the holiday to
be observed on the day in which it actually falls, but is not the actual
holiday.

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 26 of 51

P. 101



3. Full time employees who work on a holiday shall be compensated for
actual hours worked at one and one-half times the regular rate of pay. If a
full time employee works on an “observed holiday”, as defined above,
which is not the actual holiday, said employee shall be compensated for
actual hours worked at his or her regular rate of pay. In addition, whether
or not a full time employee works on an actual or observed holiday, every
non-probationary full time employee shall receive eight (8) hours of
holiday pay for the pay period in which the holiday falls.  Full time
employees must work holidays upon request of the City Manager or
Department Head.

4. In order to be eligible for a holiday with pay, an employee must work his
or her regular shift (if scheduled) the day before and the day after the
holiday, with the following exceptions: '

a. If an employee is on vacation, he/she will be paid for the holiday
and have vacation leave extended one day.

b. If an employee is absent because of illness on the day before or
after a holiday, the absence on the holiday will be charged against
his/her accumulated sick leave. If the employee has no sick leave,
the employee will not be paid for the holiday. A doctor's statement
may be required for sick leave absence.

C. Vacation (Annual Leave)
1. All full-time employees shall be entitled to vacation leave as follows

based on continuous uninterrupted service as of the employee's most
recent hire date:

City Service Earned Vacation Hours Weekly
0-1year 1 week (40 hours) 17
1 -5 years 2 weeks (80 hours) 1.54
5 - 10 years 3 weeks (120 hours) 2.31
10 years or more 4 weeks (160 hours) 3.08
2. Vacation leave above shall be accrued on a weekly basis beginning on the

employee's hire date. No employee may take vacation time until 180 days
after his or her most recent hire date unless specifically approved by the
City Manager.

3. Vacation leave of more than one day should be requested at least two (2)
weeks in advance; vacation leave may be disapproved if the employee's
services are required at the requested time by the department head and/or
City Manager. However, in no event, other than the instance where an

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 27 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 102



10.

11.

12.

employee has used all his/her available sick days, shall an employee be
approved for a day of vacation leave unless the department head and/or
City Manager is notified and the vacation leave is approved by or before
the end of the employee’s last scheduled day to work immediately prior to
requesting/taking the vacation day.

When a former employee is rehired, the person should be considered a
new employee for vacation leave purposes.

No employee shall take more than one (1) week (40 hours) vacation
consecutive unless the employee has received prior written authorization
from his or her department head and the City Managecr.

Employees absent because of sickness, injury, or disability may use
accrued vacation leave only after accrued sick leave has been exhausted.

No employee shall be absent from work, unpaid, for non-medical or non-
leave related time without first exhausting all of his/her vacation and
personal days without the prior approval of the City Manager. For
example, an employee cannot take a day off from work for personal
reasons or vacation (not related to being sick or leave) without using a
vacation or personal day unless all accumulated vacation/personal days
have previously been used.

Compensation for vacation leave in lieu of time off shall not be granted,
except in special circumstances approved by the City Manager.

The City Manager shall ensure that accurate records are kept for vacation
leave allowance, vacation leave taken, and the current accrued leave for
each employee.

An employee may carry over vacation time from one calendar year to the
next in an amount up to the total amount of vacation time that he/she can
accrue in the then current calendar year, based upon said employee’s date
of hire and number of years of City service.

Upon termination of employment, an employee shall be paid for any
accrued/vested but unused vacation leave time. The employee shall be
compensated at the hourly rate earned by the employee at the time of
separation.

See Section D.11. for rules regarding times when employee does not
accrue vacation time and Section D.12. for provisions regarding
reimbursement for used but unaccrued leave.

D. Medical/Personal Leave

City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 28 of 51

P. 103



City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

All full-time employees upon completing the initial ninety (90) day trial
period shall receive eight (8) days medical leave credit per year.
Employees shall accrue medical leave at the approximate rate of 1.23
hours per week beginning on the employee’s hire date.

Medical leave credit may be utilized by employees when they are unable
to perform their duties because of personal or family sickness or injury,
medical, dental, or optical examinations, and/or treatments. All non-
emergency medical leave and personal leave shall require specific prior
written approval of the immediate supervisor.

a. The Department Head or Supervisor may require that the employee
submit a statement from a medical doctor, or other health care
professional, explaining his/her absences to the supervisor in the
following situations:

(1) In the event of medical leave taken for any purpose for more
than two (2) days; and,

(2) If the sick time is requested by an employee who has a record
of repetitious usage of short amounts of sick leave over an
extended period of time.

When an employee takes medical or personal leave, not previously
approved by his/her immediate supervisor, his/her immediate supervisor
or the City Manager shall be notified and the reason thereof as soon as
possible. Failure to notify the supervisor or City Manager by 8:00 a.m. of
the first day absent may be cause to disallow the use of paid medical or
personal leave during the period of absence.

An employee with a medical/personal leave balance in excess of forty (40)
hours may donate any or all such excess to an employee with a
documented medical emergency who has exhausted all annual leave,
medical/personal leave and any and all other leave previously
accumulated. Such voluntary donation of excess of medical/personal
leave shall be subject to the approval of and made on a form prescribed by
the City Manager.

The donating employee must retain a medical/personal leave balance of
not less than forty (40) hours, and shall not sell, offer to sell, bargain,
exchange, transfer, or assign accumulated sick leave for any consideration
or in any manner other than that authorized by this section.

A full-time or part-time employee with a medical emergency who has
exhausted all annual leave, medical/personal leave, and any and all other
accumulated leave may make application to the City Manager to receive a
donation of medical/personal leave from another employee. Application

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 29 of 51

P. 104



City of Franklin At-will
Revised March 25, 2019

may be made on behalf of the employee by a personal representative of
the employee in the event the employee’s incapacity makes it difficult or
impossible to make application on his or her own behalf.

The application shall be accompanied by a certification from one (1) or
more physicians identifying and explaining the medical reasons that the
employee will be unable to perform the duties and responsibilities of his
position for ten (10) or more working days.

The City Manager may require additional medical evidence prior to
approval or denial of acceptance of a medical/personal leave donation. An
employee may request an extension of approved, donated
medical/personal leave by presenting additional medical evidence to the
City Manager.

At the end of each pay period while an employee is on donated leave, the
City Manager (or his designee) shall credit that employee’s
medical/personal leave balance with the number of hours which would
otherwise be considered leave without pay, and shall notify the donor that
his/her leave balance has been reduced by that amount.

No employee on donated medical/personal leave shall be credited with
leave in an amount in excess of the time of the documented medical
emergency.

No person shall through his office of employment use any promise,
exchange or influence to require an employee to donate excess
medical/personal leave to any other employee.

For purposes of this Section, “medical emergency” shall mean an illness
or injury of the employee or the employee’s immediate family which
require the employee’s absence from duty for ten (10) or more consecutive
working days. Alternatively, the employee’s absence from duty must be
for an extended period of time, intermittently or otherwise, for a medical
condition; provided, however, the employee must receive approval from
the City Commission for extended absences of non-consecutive working
days.

A part-time employee (as defined) may be eligible to qualify for the
donated leave in the discretion of the City Manager, but only for the
number of hours he/she would normally be scheduled to work.

Regardless of any other provision in these policies to the contrary, no

employee shall be paid for sick time if, by adding a sick day to the
employee’s previous time worked for the pay period, the total number of
hours for which the employee would be paid during that pay period
exceeds forty (40) hours. In the event the employee has worked less than

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 30 of 51

P. 105



forty (40) hours during the pay period in which he/she requests the use of
a sick day, the employee may use a sick day, or any number of hours less
than a full sick day so that the employee’s total hours worked during the
pay period do not exceed forty (40) hours. However, an employee can not
take more than one (1) sick day during any twenty-four hour period. If an
employee has previously worked more than forty (40) hours during a pay
period, prior to requesting a sick day, he/she shall not be eligible for a paid
sick day, unless approved by the City Manager.

6. Medical leave may be accumulated and carried over from year to year up
to one hundred eighty (180) days but shall be forfeited upon severance of
employment with the City.

7. Absences as a result of sickness, injury, or disability in excess of that
authorized for such purposes may, at the request of the employee and with
the approval of the immediate supervisor, be charged to vacation leave.

8. A temporary leave of absence may be granted by the City Commission
under special circumstances. In such event, the employee may be eligible
to come back as an employee of the City without interruption of his
benefits and/or seniority. Leaves of absence must be pre-approved.

9. Personal Leave. Employees may accumulate personal leave as an
incentive for not using sick days unnecessarily. Personal days shall be
accumulated as follows:

(a) For this section, a year is divided into two time periods:
January 1 - June 30 and July 1 - December 31.

(b) An employee that successfully completes one entire time period
above without using a sick day accumulates one personal day.

(c) An employee that successfully completes two complete,
consecutive time periods accumulates two (2) days in addition to
the one day for a total of three (3) days.

(d) For every successive six (6) month time period after completing (c)
above in which an employee does not use a sick day, the employee
will accumulate two (2) additional personal days.

(e) However, if an employee uses a sick day during either period of
the year set forth in (a) above, the employee begins a new
accumulatory personal leave in accordance with section (b) above.

® Personal Days will be awarded on January 1 and July 1 according
to the following formula:

(1) if no sick time was taken within the previous 6 months = 1
day:;
2) if no sick time was taken in the previous 12 months = 2
additional days; and,
(3) two (2) additional personal days for each successive six (6)
months time period with no sick time taken.
City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 31 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 106



10.

11.

12.

(g) Personal leave may be accumulated and carried over from year to
year but shall be forfeited upon severance of employment with the
City.

No employee shall be compensated for any accumulated and unused
medical/personal leave time upon separation from employment.

With regard to vacation and sick time accrual (Sections IV.C. and D. of
these policies), an employee shall not accrue sick or vacation time in any
pay period in which he/she is:

a. on approved leave of absence without pay for more than half of the
working days;

b. suspended for more than half of the working days; or

c. on unapproved absence without leave for two or more working
days.

Also with regard to vacation and sick time accrual (Sections IV.C. and D.
of these policies), if an employee is granted leave in excess of his/her
accrued and earned leave i.e. prior to earning the leave time (only with
approval of the City Manager) and the employee separates employment
with the City prior to accruing/earning the leave time used so that there is
a deficit in accrued leave time, the employee shall repay the City for the
amount of the unaccrued leave time deficit as of the time of employee’s
separation of employment. The employee agrees to allow City to withhold
any amounts due and owing to City out of any wages then due and owing
to employee through a pay reduction to reflect accurate tax and benefit
deductions. If full reimbursement by employee is not attainable by and
through a pay reduction as set forth herein, the employee and the Human
Resources Director or Finance Director will determine a mutually
agreeable repayment period, not to exceed six (6) months. Any failure by
the employee to reimburse the City shall be entered into the employee’s
personnel records, which could affect his/her re-employment rights as well
as future references requested by other potential employers. The City also
reserves the right to pursue all other legal remedies in order to recover any
amounts due and owing to the City by employee.

E. Family/Medical Leave

1.

City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

Full-time employees who have worked for the City for a total of twelve
(12) months within the past seven (7) years prior to the leave, unless the
break in service is due to an employee’s fulfillment of military obligations,
and worked at least 1,250 hours over the previous twelve (12) months
immediately preceding FMLA leave, may request a family/medical leave
of absence for up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid leave for the following

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 32 of 51

P. 107



reasons:

Birth and care of a child

Adoption or foster care of a child

C. Need to care for an employee's spouse, son, daughter, or parent
who has a serious health condition

d. When the employee is unable to work because of a serious health
condition, or

e. For qualifying exigencies arising out of the fact that the

employee’s spouse, son, daughter, or parent is on active duty or

call to active duty status as a member of the National Guard or

Reserves in support of contingency operation. (Leave may be

granted up to 26 weeks under this Section E if the leave is

necessary to care for a covered service member with a serious

injury or illness.)

ISHE

2. Employees requesting a family/medical leave of absence must submit a
written request at least thirty (30) days prior to the desired beginning of
the leave of absence unless it is a medical emergency or an unforeseeable
event, in which case the employee shall provide notice as soon as is
practicable under the facts and circumstances of the particular case.
Provided, however, that the supervisor, department head, or City Manager
may require an explanation as to why thirty (30) days’ notice was not
provided. The immediate supervisor or the City Manager may request a
physician's statement certifying the reason and need for the family medical
leave.

3. Employees on approved family/medical leave of absence will be required
to use any accumulated sick, vacation, personal time, compensatory leave
time or other paid leave to the extent available during the FMLA leave
period, unless such leave is covered by workers’ compensation, in which
case the employee may only use accumulated leave time for the purpose of
satisfying any waiting period. Absences in excess of the employee’s total
accumulated leave will be treated as leave without pay.

4. The City will maintain health care benefits for the employee while on
FMLA leave, but the employee is responsible for paying the normal
monthly contribution for any portion of the health care premiums that are
not paid by the City. If the employee elects not to return to work at the
end of the leave period, the employee will be required to reimburse the
City for the cost of premiums paid for maintaining coverage during the
Jeave period unless the employee’s failure to return to work is due to the
continuation, recurrence, or onset of a serious health condition that would
entitle the employee to leave or caused by other circumstances beyond the
employee’s control (as set forth or defined by applicable law). All other
benefits cease to accrue during the unpaid portion of the leave. An
employee who returns to work for at least thirty (30) calendar days after

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 33 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 108



the leave period shall be considered to have returned to work. The City
reserves the right to pursue all legal remedies in order to recover the
premiums paid on the employee’s behalf by the City.

When it becomes known that an employee is not returning to employment,
leave entitlement shall expire, and the employee shall be eligible to apply
for continued health benefits through COBRA. Any delinquent health
benefit premiums for coverage received prior to eligibility for COBRA
coverage must be paid by the end of the month in which COBRA benefits
are requested in writing by the former employee.

5. Employees may be required to support their claim of inability to return to
work because of the continuation, recurrence, or onset of the serious health
condition, by providing, in a timely manner, a certification from the
appropriate health care provider. Certification should include a statement that
a serious health condition prevented/prevents an employee from being able to
perform the functions of his/her position on the date that the leave expired or
that he/she is needed to care for a family member who has a serious health
condition on the date that the employee’s leave expired.

F. Funeral Leave

1.

All full-time employees may be granted up to three (3) working days off
without loss of pay in case of death in the immediate family. For the
purpose of funeral leave, immediate family shall include parents, persons
in loco parentis, grandparents, grandchildren, spouse, brothers, sisters,
children, and father/mother-in law.

Leave without pay for the death of other relatives or personal friends shall
be limited to one work day or a reasonable extension of time at the
discretion of the City Manager.

G. Military Leave.

1.

City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

Policy. In accordance with KRS 61.394, any employee who is a member
of the Kentucky National Guard or any reserve component of the armed
forces of the United States shall receive full pay while in the performance
of duty or training in the service of the state or nation under competent
orders, not to exceed 21 calendar days or 15 working days (based upon a
five-day work week). If leave is not utilized within the federal fiscal year,
the leave may be rolled over to the next year. Any unused military leave
shall expire two years after it has accrued. There shall be no loss of
service or benefits while the employee is on approved military leave.
Leave shall be earned and used on the federal fiscal year, which starts
October 1 and ends September 30.

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 34 of 51

P. 109



Leave exceeding this limit may be charged to accumulated vacation,
holidays (if applicable), or personal days, or the employee may elect to
take leave without pay.

Employees on short term military leave (not active duty), including related
leave without pay, shall continue to accrue vacation, sick and holiday
leave.

2. Procedure. An employee required to report for military training shall
show the appropriate orders to his supervisor. A leave request shall be
completed and submitted noting the absence to be charged to military
leave, leave without pay, or accrued leave in the event that the absence
will exceed the allowed limit.

H. Voting Leave

Any person eligible to vote at any election in this state shall upon request and
prior approval be entitled to leave for a period of time necessary to vote, not to
exceed four (4) hours, without pay, on the day of the election between the time of
opening and closing of the polls.

L. Jury Duty/Court Leave

An employee may be eligible for jury duty/court leave in accordance with the
following:

1. In the event an employee is requested to serve on a jury, he/she shall be
compensated at the normal rate of pay while serving on jury duty. In that
event, he or she forfeits his or her jury pay to the City. All employees
serving on jury duty shall be absent from work only during the times
required by the court.

2. An employee involved in a personal case, either as a plaintiff or defendant,
in a suit not resulting from duties performed on behalf of the City, may be
granted leave, provided such leave is deducted from the employee's accrued
vacation time or classified as leave without pay.

J. Insurance
1. Group Health Insurance

a. Health insurance is available to all full-time City employees,

except retired police officers hired by the City pursuant to KRS

95.022, on the 1% day of the month following date of hire.

Effective July 1, 2017, the employee’s spouse and family shall be

eligible to have health insurance coverage from the City under the

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 35 of 51

Revised March 25, 2019
P. 110



City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

terms set forth herein beginning on the 1% day of the month
following the date of hire. In addition, beginning July 1, 2017, all
existing employees shall be eligible for spouse and family
coverage under the terms set forth herein. The City requires any
spouse of an employee to accept his/her employer’s plan before
being eligible to also be covered by the City’s plan. In other
words, the City’s health insurance coverage is secondary to the
spouse’s health insurance coverage. The employee shall file with
the City Manager or his/her designee a form/certificate setting
forth whether or not the employee’s spouse has insurance coverage
available through his or her employer. Further, should insurance
coverage become available to an employee’s spouse through
his/her employment, the employee shall notify the City Manager or
his/her designee immediately so that the City’s and employee’s
insurance plan can be updated accordingly. All employees
understand and acknowledge that the falsification of this
form/certificate or breach of the duty to notify the City Manager or
his/her designee will subject the employee to the responsibility of
paying back, to the City of Franklin, all premiums paid on behalf
of any spouse, and will be considered a material misrepresentation
regarding the employee’s employment which may result in
termination of said employee. Absent a City employee’s spouse
having insurance coverage through his/her employer, the City will
pay its share of the cost of family coverage, less the employee
contribution or costs associated with a spouse having primary
coverage through another source, beginning as soon as practicable
following the open enrollment period nearest to the employee’s
three (3) year anniversary of his/her date of hire. It shall be the
responsibility of the employee to notify the Personnel Director
prior to the end of said open enrollment period.

(June 10, 2013 revision)

b. The City will continue to pay its portion of the premium for the
single plan for full-time employees absent due to illness or injury
(including Worker's Compensation) for a period of six (6) months
provided the employee continues to pay his/her portion. Upon the
expiration of the six (6) month period, the employee may continue
his/her coverage while off work if the employee pays one hundred
percent (100%) of the premium in accordance with applicable law.

After the completion of the initial ninety (90) days of employment or the
date upon which the coverages become available from the insurance
provider, whichever date is later, all full-time employees shall be provided
accidental death and dismemberment, term life insurance of up to two
times their annual salary, and single dental insurance paid for by the City.
Provided, however, that the benefits provided under this Paragraph V1.J.2.
are subject to the terms and conditions of any policy of insurance which

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 36 of 51

P. 111



the City procures to provide coverage for these benefits. If there is any
discrepancy between the language in this paragraph and the language or
coverage in the policy of insurance in effect at the time of any
discrepancy, the language or coverage provided in the policy of insurance
shall control.

3. Health Insurance can be made available to all elected officials or officers
of the City who are not otherwise covered by the above classifications if
he/she qualifies for coverage under the terms of the then existing health
insurance plan/policy. Any such official who elects to be covered by the
City's health insurance carrier shall be responsible for the entire premium
for either a single plan or family plan unless health insurance coverage is
paid by the City pursuant to a contractual obligation or federal, state or
local laws, rules, regulations and/or ordinances.

4. Workers' Compensation Insurance is provided to all employees which
provides medical and hospitalization expense benefits as well as partial
payments in lieu of salary for workers injured on the job. The City pays
one hundred percent (100%) of this form of insurance. Eligibility begins
on the first day of employment. Workers’ Compensation benefits are
governed by state law. If an eEmployees_is injured in connection with
employment, regardless of the severity of the injury, the employee shall
immediately notify his or her immediate supervisor, the Human
Resources/Personnel Director or the City Manager, —shall-netify-histher

injurywho will see to necessary medical attention and assist in the
completion of any required reports, including the First Report of Injury
Form. In any case of serious injury, employees are required to receive
prompt medical attention by a physician. Employees, supervisors and/or
the Human Resources/Personnel Director shall contact the City Manager
to report all work-related accidents and injuries.

6. All employees are covered under unemployment insurance. The City of
Franklin pays one hundred percent (100%) of the cost for this coverage. An
individual who terminates his/her employment with the City may or may not
be eligible to receive payments under this program, depending upon the
circumstances involved in the termination.

7. The City will comply with federal regulations under the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA) and any additional
amendments designed to provide employees and eligible dependents with the
opportunity to continue health insurance coverage at group rates where the
coverage would otherwise cease, such as upon termination of employment,
death of the employee, divorce, or a child ceases to be a qualified beneficiary.
The premium for this continuation shall be the sole responsibility of the
employee or dependent, unless otherwise provided for by law. Coverage is
not automatic and employees and/or their eligible dependents must make an

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 37 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P.112



affirmative election before the coverage will begin. More detailed
information regarding the continuation of health insurance coverage under
COBRA may be obtained by going to the U. S. Department of Labor website.

K. Social Security

The City and the employee both contribute to the Social Security program at rates
specified by the United States Government.

L. County Employee Retirement System (CERS)

Effective for all employees hired after January 1, 1985, all employees, except
retired police officers hired by the City pursuant to KRS 95.022, must participate
in the County Employees Retirement System. No other retirement benefits will
be approved by the Commission.

M. Education Assistance/Career Development

Employees of the City of Franklin are encouraged to participate in in-service
and/or educational programs that will enhance career development. For further
information about these programs, full-time employees need to check in advance
with the City Manager.

N. City Vehicles

City vehicles are for official City use only. They, along with City-owned
equipment, tools, facilities or materials shall not be used for personal use.
Employees violating this section will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.
In order for a non-sworn employee to qualify to have a fleet or take-home vehicle,
the use of the vehicle by the employee must be approved by the City Manager.
Further, the non-sworn employee shall not be eligible for a take home vehicle
unless the employee resides not more than thirty (30) minutes in travel time
(obeying all traffic rules and regulations) from Franklin City Hall. For sworn
employees (police officers) rules relating to fleet/take home vehicles, refer to
Section 1, Chapter 23.1 of the Franklin Police Department Policies and
Procedures Manual.

0. Uniforms

Whenever the wearing of uniforms and accessories, or other special clothing is
required, the City will provide them. The City will replace at its expense all
clothing and accessories damaged, lost, or destroyed in the course of duty. An
employee issued uniforms and accessories or other special clothing must return
the items upon leaving the City's employment. Failure to do so will require
reimbursement to the City by the employee for the items with said reimbursement
being derived by the City from any source including, but not limited to the
employee's pay check.

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 38 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 113



Vil

VIII

P. Review

The City Manager shall review the benefits offered to city employees on an
annual basis and shall make recommendations regarding the continuance or
modification of benefits subject to approval by the City Commission.

MASTER CLASSIFICATION OF POSITIONS BY RANGES AND GRADES,
SALARY/PAY COMPENSATION PLAN AND PERSONNEL SYSTEM

The Master Classification Plan of positions by ranges and grades has been approved by
the City Manager and City Commission as a guideline for the employee to ascertain
his/her status in the City as well as for the City to use for guidance in promoting,
demoting, or transferring employees. The Master Classification Plan is attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference. This Plan may be changed from time to time by
the City Manager with approval from the City Commission. To obtain the most recent
update to the Plan, employees should contact the Personnel Director.

MODIFIED DUTY POLICY

In order to assist an employee during rehabilitation and/or recovery from a work-related
or nonwork-related injury, an attempt will be made to provide a modified work duty
assignment that meets the employee’s physical restrictions as stated by the physician.
Modified duty assignments will vary by City department; however, each department is
provided the authority and the capability to provide modified duty assignments that meet
physician restrictions up to and including sedentary work.

The City will attempt to provide the employee with a modified duty assignment until the
employee is returned to full duty status by his/her physician. The decision for assigning
modified duty may be dependent upon:

a. the nature of the employee’s physical restrictions as prescribed by the physician;

b. the availability of work that meets the physician’s prescribed restrictions and
whether or not the City can reasonably accommodate said restrictions; and

c. the expected length of time the employee will be subject to physician prescribed
restrictions.

Employees on modified duty shall follow up with their physician as prescribed, obtain
physician-written return to work instructions and provide the instructions to their
immediate supervisor. All written return to work instructions are to be sent to the
Department Head and the Human Resources Director. Modified duty will be limited to
ninety (90) days unless a physician indicates a need for physical restrictions to be
extended, and only if the extended time is expected to be no more than an additional
ninety (90) days. After an employee has been on modified duty for one hundred eighty
(180) days, the City Manager, Human Resources Director and Department Head may

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures : Page 39 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 114



review the case, and if warranted, approve modified duty time past 180 days.

Reasonable accommodations will be made for employees who, after an injury, meet the
ADA’s definition of “disabled.” Any injured employee who is offered a modified duty
position meeting their physician’s prescribed restrictions and refuses to work the
modified duty position may be denied workers’ compensation benefits (if work-related),
and may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. Vacation and
sick leave will continue to be earned by the employee while in modified duty, provided
the employee works the number of hours required for earning accrued leave. While on
modified duty, the employee is not eligible to work overtime or more hours than
normally scheduled. An employee on modified duty may not work off-duty employment
unless approved by the City Manager and Department Head.

An employee on modified duty may not use accrued sick leave for an absence that is due
to a work-related injury. If an employee on modified duty requests absence from work
due to a work-related injury for which they have been placed on modified duty, the
employee will be required to return to their treating physician and obtain a written return
to work statement. Work related injuries requiring an absence will only be approved if
accompanied by a return to work statement indicating the need for such absence.

Injury leave benefits or workers’ compensation benefits will be provided for any work-
related injury in which the employee is unable to return to work in a modified duty role.
In addition, an employee who experiences a nonwork-related injury may request a
Family/Medical Leave of Absence if he/she meets the criteria defined in this policy.

Reporting Procedures: The Department Head or designee will ensure all work-related
injuries are immediately reported to the Human Resources Director and all required
documents are completed and disseminated as stated in the City of Franklin Personnel
Policies and Procedures Manual.

Return to Work: The City will make every attempt to provide an injured employee with
the opportunity to return to work after experiencing an injury.

a. Work-Related: The City will hold open an employee’s position until the
employee either is released by the attending physician to return to work, returns to
work, or has reached maximum medical improvement. If an employee who has
reached maximum medical improvement is unable to return to work at his pre-
injury position, the employee may use remaining sick, vacation, personal and any
available family/medical leave to extend employment. Remaining sick leave is
defined as any additional sick days that exceed those that would have been
utilized during the time the employee was covered by workers’ compensation.
After exhausting accrued sick, vacation, personal and any available
family/medical leave, the employee may be dismissed from employment.

The City may require physician certification that an employee is able to resume
work, and may require subsequent recertification on a reasonable basis. If an
employee is on injury leave or modified duty for more than sixty (60) consecutive

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 40 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 115



b.

calendar days, the City may require a “return to duty” physical evaluation
performed by an occupational health service provider, and/or physician review, in
order to return the employee to full duty.

If an employee is dismissed but is later certified able to work, he/she would be
required to reapply for the position he/she held prior to injury or, if that position

has been filled, for any other available position for which he/she is qualified.

Nonwork-Related: See section of policy regarding Family/Medical Leave.

Penalties: If a person commits a fraudulent insurance act, he shall be subject to
immediate termination and potential prosecution.

VIII. TOBACCO-FREE/SMOKE-FREE POLICY

A.

PURPOSE

Due to the acknowledged health hazards arising from exposure to secondhand
smoke (SHS) and other tobacco products, it is the policy of the City of Franklin to
provide a tobacco-free/smoke-free environment for employees, clients, visitors
and vendors.

POLICY

The use of any tobacco product is prohibited by employees, clients, visitors and
vendors on property that is owned, operated, leased, occupied, or controlled by
the City of Franklin, including personal and company vehicles in these areas.
This policy applies to all City of Franklin work sites. The tobacco-free/smoke-
free grounds policy applies to all employees of the City of Franklin.

EFFECTIVE DATES

The Smoke-Free portion of the policy will become effective January 1, 2017, and
the Tobacco-Free portion of the policy will become effective July 1, 2017.

DEFINITIONS

1. Smoking: inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying any lighted or heated cigar,
cigarette, electronic cigarette, or pipe.

2. Tobacco Products: all forms of tobacco, including but not limited to
cigarettes, cigars, pipes, water pipes (hookah), electronic cigarettes, and
smokeless tobacco products. Nicotine Replacement Therapy (NRT) products
approved by the Federal Drug Administration (FDA) are not considered a
tobacco product.

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 41 0f 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P.116



3. Property: buildings and structures, grounds, parking lots, equipment and
vehicles.

4. Employee: Any person who is employed by the City of Franklin.

5. Client: Any person who seeks or receives services from the City of Franklin.

6. Visitors: Any person who is not an employee of the City of Franklin who
comes to visit or meet with a staff person, to seek advice, to receive materials,
to provide presentations/trainings, or to attend a meeting or class or is on City
of Franklin property for any other reason.

7. Vendors: Any person who delivers goods, supplies or seeks to set up services,
whether a contract is in place or not.

E. EXCEPTIONS

The only exception to these prohibitions is that smoking may be allowed at the
discretion of Police Officers within designated interview and interrogation rooms
with the condition that the doors to those rooms remain closed to prevent the
spread of smoke to other parts of the building.

F. PROCEDURES

Each City of Franklin Department site will have approved tobacco-
free/smoke-free grounds signs posted in parking lots, on entrance doors
and inside the building.

Staff will inform clients, visitors and vendors of the tobacco-free policy at
the time of an appointment. Clients, visitors and vendors in violation of
the policy will be reminded of the policy politely. If the problem persists
they will be asked to leave the property.

Any problems with enforcement or adherence to this policy should be
brought to the attention of the appropriate supervisor and handled through
the normal chain-of-command. Employees who violate this policy will be
subject to the same disciplinary actions that accompany infractions of
other department policies, up to and including termination of employment.

Information concerning tobacco cessation for employees is available from
Human Resources.

IX COMPUTER, EMAIL AND INTERNET USE-POLICY

The City of Franklin recognizes that use of the Internet and e-mail has many benefits and

City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 42 of 51

P. 117



can make workplace communication more efficient and effective. Therefore, employees
are encouraged to use the Internet and e-mail systems appropriately. Unacceptable use of
the Internet and e-mail can place the City and others at risk. This policy outlines the City
of Franklin’s guidelines for acceptable use of the Internet and e-mail.

Scope

This policy must be followed in conjunction with other City of Franklin policies
governing appropriate workplace conduct and behavior. The City complies with all
applicable federal, state and local laws as they concern the employer/employee
relationship, and nothing contained herein should be construed to violate any of the rights
or responsibilities contained in such laws.

Use Guidelines

The City of Franklin has established the following guidelines for employee use of the
company’s technology and communications networks, including the Internet and e-mail,
in an appropriate, ethical and professional manner.

1. All technology provided by the City of Franklin, including computer systems,
communications networks, company-related work records and other information
stored electronically, is the property of the City and not the employee. In general,
use of the City’s technology systems and electronic communications should be
job-related and not for personal convenience.

2. Employees may not use the City of Franklin’s Internet, e-mail or other electronic
communications to transmit, retrieve or store any communications or other
content of a defamatory, discriminatory, harassing or pornographic nature. No
messages with derogatory or inflammatory remarks about an individual’s race,
age, disability, religion, national origin, physical attributes or sexual preference
may be transmitted. Harassment of any kind is prohibited.

3. Disparaging, abusive, profane or offensive language; materials that might
adversely or negatively reflect on the City of Franklin or be contrary to its
legitimate business interests; and any illegal activities—including, but not limited
to piracy, cracking, extortion, blackmail, copyright infringement and unauthorized
access to any computers on the Internet or e-mail—are forbidden.

4. Copyrighted materials belonging to entities other than the City of Franklin may
not be transmitted by employees on the city’s network without permission of the
copyright holder. Employees must respect all copyrights and may not copy,
retrieve, modify or forward copyrighted materials, except with permission or as a
single copy for reference only. Saving copyright-protected information to a
network drive without permission is prohibited. Sharing the URL (uniform
resource locator or “address”) of an Internet site with other interested persons for
work related reasons is permitted.

5. Employees may not use the system in a way that disrupts its use by others. This
includes sending or receiving excessive numbers of large files and “spamming”
(sending e-mail to thousands of users.)

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 43 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 118



6. To prevent contamination of the City of Franklin’s technology and
communications equipment and systems by harmful computer viruses,
downloaded files should be checked for possible infection through the IT
department. Also, given that many browser add-on packages (called “plug-ins”)
may not be compatible with other programs and may cause problems for the
systems, downloading plug-ins is prohibited without prior permission from IT.

7. Every employee of the City of Franklin is responsible for the content of all text,
audio or image files that he or she places or sends over the company’s Internet
and e-mail systems. No e-mail or other electronic communications may be sent
that hide the identity of the sender or represent the sender as someone else. The
City’s identity is attached to all outgoing e-mail communications, which should
reflect City values and appropriate workplace language and conduct.

8. E-mail and other electronic communications transmitted by City equipment,
systems and networks are not private or confidential, and they are the property of
the City of Franklin. Employees should not have an expectation of privacy in
anything they create, store, receive, or send on the City’s email system, intranet,
or internet computer system or any City provided device. The City, in its
discretion as the owner of devices, computers, intranet and internet systems,
reserves and may exercise the right to monitor, access, retrieve and/or delete any
matter or information stored in, created, received, viewed, or sent over the
computer system or with the provided equipment or devices for any reason with
or without the permission of the employee. Employees using the City’s electronic
devices or systems expressly consent to the City’s monitoring of their activities.

9. Internal and external e-mail, voice mail, and text messages are considered
business records and may be subject to discovery in the event of litigation.
Employees must be aware of this possibility when communicating electronically
within and outside the company.

Consequences for Misuse

All City-supplied technology, including computer systems, equipment and work-related
work records, belongs to the City of Franklin and not to the employee user. Employees
understand the City routinely monitors use patterns, and employees should observe
appropriate workplace discretion in their use and maintenance of such City property as
set forth more specifically above.

Because all the computer systems and software, as well as e-mail and Internet
connections, are the property of the City of Franklin, all City policies apply to their use
and are in effect at all times. Any employee who abuses the City-provided access to e-
mail, the internet, intranet, or other electronic communications or networks, including
social media, may be denied future access, and, if appropriate, be subject to disciplinary
action up to and including termination, within the limitations of any applicable federal,
state or local laws. In addition, illegal activities may result in prosecution by legal
authorities.

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 44 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 119



Reporting a Violation or Misuse of Electronic Systems, Devices or Technology

Once a computer, electronic device, system or technology violation is identified, the
Human Resources Director or City Manager shall be notified. The City Manager or
Human Resources Director shall then notify the appropriate department head to initiate
an investigation. Based upon the findings of the investigation, the City Manager or City
Attorney shall recommend a course of action in accordance with the applicable policies
based upon the severity of the incident, the precedence set by prior violations of a similar
nature and any other relevant factors. Disciplinary action may include temporary or
permanent termination of access to email, internet, intranet or loss of the use of any or all
of the City’s provided electronic devices. In addition, disciplinary action in accordance
with these personnel policies up to or including termination may be included.

Electronic Communications, Email and Social Media Use Policies

Specific policies relating to the use of electronic communications, email, and social
media use are contained in the City of Franklin Email, Social Media and Electronic
Communications Policy contained and adopted in a separate policy manual.

Questions Regarding the Use of City of Franklin Technology

If you have questions regarding the appropriate use of electronic communications
equipment or systems, including e-mail and the Internet, please contact your supervisor,
City Manager or the IT department.

X. SEXUAL AND NONSEXUAL HARASSMENT

]. Sexual and nonsexual harassment of any kind is absolutely prohibited and will not be
tolerated. Sexual and nonsexual harassment negatively affects morale, motivation, and
job performance. It is inappropriate, offensive and illegal.

2. Sexual harassment on the job is employment discrimination within the meaning of Title
VII of the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 and KRS Chapter 344. In general, sexual
harassment means any unwelcome or offensive sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors, or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature, either by a supervisor,
fellow emplovee, or a person other than an employee who has contact with city
employees. Sexual harassment is unacceptable and is prohibited at work and in work-
related settings. such as business trips, business-related meetings, conferences., and
employee-related social events. Behavior that constitutes sexual harassment includes, but
is not limited to:

a. Deliberate, repeated, or unsolicited verbal comments, gestures, or physical actions
of a sexual nature toward another employee.

b. Approval, recommendation of, or refusal to take any personnel action with respect
to an employee or applicant because of:

(1) the emplovee’s or applicant’s rejection of sexual advances, demands,

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 45 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 120



favors, or sexual activity; or

(ii) the employee’s or applicant’s report of a sexual advance or demand for
sexual activity.

C. Explicit or implicit promises of preferential treatment with regard to an
individual’s employment status in return for sexual favors or sexual activity.

d. Exercise or attempted exercise of the power or authority of one’s position to
control, influence, or affect the career, salary, job, or other employment
conditions of an employee or applicant in exchange for sexual favors.

€. Repeated sexual jokes, flirtations, advances or propositions.

f. Graphic verbal commentary about an individual’s body, sexual prowess or sexual
deficiencies.

g, Leering, whistling, touching, pinching, assault, coerced sexual acts or suggestive,

insulting or obscene comments or gestures.

h. The display in the workplace of sexually suggestive objects, pictures or reading
material.
3. Any conduct that is intimidating or hostile and interferes with an employee’s work

performance is prohibited and will not be tolerated. This includes harassment because of
an individual’s race, religion, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity or expression, pregnancy, childbirth, pregnancy/childbirth related medical
conditions, genetic makeup, age, disability, veteran or family status. or because the
employee is a smoker or nonsmoker.

4. Any employee who believes he or she has been subjected to sexual or nonsexual
harassment should report the incident promptly to one of the following: his or her
immediate supervisor, the City Manager, the City Attorney, the Human
Resources/Personnel Director, or any other supervisor with whom the emplovee feels
comfortable discussing the matter. Employees are encouraged to make prompt reports of
the incident to ensure timely response and for remedial measures to be implemented, if
necessary. However, all reports of sexual and nonsexual harassment shall be reviewed
and investigated regardless of when the alleged misconduct occurred.

a, All reports of sexual or nonsexual harassment shall be reduced to writing by the
reporting employee or by the person receiving the report. The report shall be
signed by the complaining employee. All complaints will be kept confidential to
the extent feasible and appropriate under the circumstances. The City Manager
may inform the Board of City Commissioners of the receipt of the complaint and
the substantive contents of the complaint without disclosing the names of the
parties involved.

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 46 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 121



b. All reports of sexual and nonsexual harassment will be investigated promptly
following the receipt of an incident report. The report will be investigated by the
City Attorney or one (1) or more members of the management staff designated by
the City Manager. The results of the investigation will be communicated to the
complainant and to the alleged offender. Any employee found to have engaged in
misconduct constituting sexual or nonsexual harassment will be disciplined, up to
and including dismissal. In addition, the City may take other steps in order to
correct and prevent future incidents from occurring.

C. If the investigation results in a finding that any form of harassment has occurred
in the City of Franklin’s workplace, the City Manager shall provide the Board of
City Commissioners with a copy of the written report and/or an update of the
action taken by management as a result of the finding. The Board of City
Commissioners may recommend additional action or may refer the findings back
to the City Manager for additional consideration and action. If the investigation
results in a finding that harassment did not occur, the City Manager shall
communicate the findings to the Board of City Commissioners and provide any
additional information requested by the Board of City Commissioners.

d. An emplovee making a report under this policy will not be discriminated against
or be subject to retaliation in any way for having made the report. If an employee
suffers any discrimination or retaliation for making a report, the employee should
immediately alert a member of management. Any person found to have
discriminated or retaliated against an employee who makes a report shall be
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

e. Any complaint involving the City Manager shall be submitted to the City
Attorney or the Mayor, who shall inform the Board of City Commissioners about
the complaint. The Board of City Commissioners shall determine the course of
the investigation and the proper method to address the complaint.

5. The City of Franklin recognizes that the question of whether a particular course of
conduct constitutes sexual or nonsexual harassment requires a factual determination. The
City of Franklin also recognizes also that false accusations of sexual or nonsexual
harassment can have serious effects on innocent parties. If an investigation results in a
finding that a person who has accused another of sexual or nonsexual harassment has
maliciously or recklessly made a false accusation, the accuser will be subject to
appropriate sanctions, including a discharge.

6. Nothing in this policy should be construed as eliminating any employee’s rights under
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, or under KRS Chapter 344.

XI. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Any grievance, including but not limited to a complaint for sexual-harassment-or-ether
forms-of diserimination,—er-a dispute which may arise from employment with the City-,
shall be resolved in the following manner:

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 47 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 122



A. Step One

1.

The aggrieved employee shall present the complaint/grievance to his/her
immediate supervisor within five (5) working days of its

occurrence or within five (5) working

-days of knowledge of its occurrence.

2.

The complaint/grievance (and all subsequent appeals) shall be in writing
and shall set forth the reasons and grounds for the complaint/grievance
along with a statement of the relief sought. The supervisor shall attempt to
resolve the matter and shall respond -to the employee in writing within ten
(10) working days.

If the complaint/grievance is with the supervisor, the aggrieved employee
will begin the grievance procedure at Step Two and the supervisor's
written response is not required.

B. Step Two

1.

If the complaint/grievance is with the supervisor or is not resolved by the
supervisor to the employee's satisfaction, it may then be presented by the
aggrieved employee to the Department Manager-_within five (5) working
days of its occurrence or knowledge of its occurrence if with the
supervisor or after receiving the supervisor's written response.

The Ddepartment Msanager shall consider the grievance and respond to
the employee, in writing, within ten (10) working days, excluding the date
the grievance is received.

C. Step Three

1.

If the grievance remains unresolved_or if the grievance is with the
Department Manager, it shall then be presented in writing, by the
aggrieved employee to the City Manager within five (5) working days
after receiving the department manager's written response.

The City Manager shall review the grievance within five (5) working days
and may conduct additional investigation, if necessary. The City Manager
shall respond in writing to the aggrieved employee within fifteen (15)
working days, excluding the day it is received.

If the decision of the City Manager does not satisfy the employee, he/she
may request, in writing, a hearing before the City Commission within five
(5) working days of the City Manager's decision.

D. Step Four

City of Franklin At-Will
Revised March 25, 2019

Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 48 of 51

P. 123



1. The City Commission shall review the grievance and may in its discretion
conduct a hearing. The Commission's decision shall be presented in
writing within five (5) working days of its review or hearing.

2. The decision of the City Commission is final.
3. These procedures shall not apply to police and fire personnel._Further, any

complaints/grievances involving sexual or nonsexual harassment shall be
handled/administered in accordance with Section X hereinabove.

3 —

XII. SEVERABILITY AND MODIFICATIONS

A. If any provision of these policies and procedures, classification plan, or
compensation plan, or their subsequent application is held invalid, such
invalidation shall not affect the remainder of these provisions or their application.

B. If any provision of these policies and procedures, classification plan, or
compensation plan, or their subsequent application is in contradiction to, or
modified by any state or federal law or regulation, the terms of said law or
regulation shall govern.

C. The guidelines set forth in these personnel policies and procedures are not
intended to create any contractual obligation on the part of the City and may be
changed upon recommendation of the City Manager and approval by the City
Commission without notice to the employee.

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 49 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 124



CERTIFICATION OF RECEIPT AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

I understand that, dBuring myyeus first one hundred eighty (180) days working for the
Citykere (one (1) year for police department employees), Iyew will be an
introductory/probationary employee on a trial period. I understand that tFhis is expected to be a
period of adjustment and learning, and is—This-period-should-alse-be considered an employment
test. I understand that I¥ew am—are not guaranteed employment during the
introductory/probationary trial period, nor am I re—yeu—guaranteed employment upon the
completion of the yeur-trial/probationary period.

I further understand that Fthese personnel policies are not a contract of employment,
express or implied, and that my employment is at-will, for no specific period of time and may be
terminated at any time by me or the City. No officer, manager. or other representative has any
authority to enter into any agreement, oral or written, for employment for any specified period of

time, or to make any agreement contrarv to the foregoing unless it is approved by action of the
Board of City Commlssmners . , "

I further understand that the City of Franklin is an Equal Opportunity Employer. As
outlined in the City of Franklin’s Personnel Policies, it is the City’s policy to afford equal
employment opportunity to all qualified persons regardless of race, color, religion, age. sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, pregnancy, childbirth, pregnancy/child birth related medical
conditions, genetic makeup, national origin, disability, veteran or family status, an individual’s
status as a smoker or nonsimoker, or any other status or condition protected by applicable local,
state or federal laws, except where a bona fide occupational gualification applies. I understand
any questions about this policy should be directed to_my supervisor or any Supervisor or
management staff.

I further understand that —Fthe contents of these policies are subject to change at any time
at the discretion of the City_without any notice. I understand that theFhe City shall endeavor to
provide a copy of any and all changes to thisis Policies and Procedures Manual to meyeu at the
time the changes are implemented. However, if | amyeuare absent from work or do not check

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 50 of 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 125



incoming memorandums, [yeu could miss important changes. If Iyeu have any questions with
regard to this manual or if Iyew would like a complete, updated copy of the manual, I am to
contact the Human Resources/Personnel Directorplease—eontact-thePersonnel Director at City
Hall.

I certify that I have received-and-read a copy of the Personnel Policies and Procedures of
the City of Franklin_and have read and fully understand the contents.

Emplovee name (Printed)

Signature -Pate_Date

City of Franklin At-Will Personnel Policies and Procedures Page 51 0f 51
Revised March 25, 2019

P. 126



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: Shaunna R. Cornwell, Director of Finance
DATE: June 10, 2019

SUBJECT: Memo to Commission Regarding Worker’s Compensation Bid

In May 2019 the City issued a Request for Proposal for our Worker’s Compensation Insurance. We

received the following bids:

Franklin  Franklin

Ins Ins Higgins Higgins  Gallagher
Coverage KLC KEMI  Travelers BITCO Brickstreet
Worker's Compensation 64,025.00 61,471.00 61,300.00 59,872.00 71,170.00
Ky Surcharge 4,104.00 3,940.29  3,929.33  3,837.80 4,562.00
68,129.00 65,411.29 65,229.33  63,709.80  75,732.00

Less: Safety Grant 3,000.00 - - - -
65,129.00 65,411.29 65,229.33 63,709.80  75,732.00

After a thorough review of all proposals by myself, the City Attorney and the City Manager, we would like
to propose that the Worker’s Compensation Insurance Bid be awarded to the Kentucky League of Cities.

Proposed Motion: We recommend awarding this bid to KLC, the lowest and best responsive and
responsible bidder, and authorize the Mayor to sign all documents related to the award of this bid.

P. 127



June 6, 2019

Memorandum

To:  Mayor Larry Dixon
Commissioner Brownie Bennett
Commissioner Jamie Powell
Commissioner Wendell Stewart
Commissioner Herbert Williams

From: Rita Vaughn, Personnel Director

Re:  Discussion and/or Possible Action Regarding Employee Health, Vision and Dental Insurance

The City of Franklin employee group health and voluntary vision insurance is currently provided by
Anthem, and our employee dental insurance is currently through DentaSelect Plus. This year, along
with our renewal rates, Kelly Harding presented the opportunity for us to continue with Anthem for
our health and vision insurance, and return to Delta Dental for our employee dental insurance, through
Kentucky League of Cities Association. In doing so, we will have access to their Benefits
Administration Portal, which will allow us to enter employee information and updates one time, and
that information will be processed for health, vision, and dental insurance. We will only receive one
bill from the Association for all three insurance benefits. COBRA administration is included, and our
employees will have access to their Healthiest You /Teledoc, and Employee Assistance Plan at no
additional cost. We will continue to use McGregor and Associates to administer the additional HRA
and FSA benefits.

It is our recommendation to award the employee health and voluntary vision insurance to Anthem, and
the employee dental insurance to Delta Dental, through the Kentucky League of Cities Association. I
have attached summary sheets for health insurance, including HRA, vision and dental insurance which
include the monthly costs.

If approved, we will need a motion to award the employee health and voluntary vision insurance to
Anthem, and the employee dental insurance to Delta Dental, through the Kentucky League of Cities
Association for fiscal year 2019 — 2020; and to continue to utilize the services of McGregor and
Associates for the additional HRA and FSA benefits.

P. 128



GZL d

STrEL

Fovisod Ronewal 2021

City of Franklin 20192 HRA Hlustration

AL
FRAF e
P ovalilzd

Emzdovar
HAN Funch
Prvidis.

Tatal
Macthhy
Gt

Aoknaaled
Fiidgmns
Maiih 4 Cazl

SGicgezhed
Crzdoye:
2P0 Do

i supgzsad
=nployan
PRO CostjErckirg,

= nplavaa 3k frease J41.47 RS el G T 1" 414 AR
ol o Hpeisie 4 51,3775 33553 4187 i 25 AR TS | AR 44

=glayed @ Clildien

FRE 53

41,37

T s T

Feo nd

=0 dd

“uirily

Fi il Tobksly

H3A A Teey

]

FelEY

510 62140

L 041 57

SR ES

o R

HEfA
Cy

anthem HEG:

[eps
HRA
HEA

500

p e e L
1000
N

I Halimie W4

Al b e

FRAT.00

200

B E\::El:dc.:lt

0000

500

sl 1diclibla

pREErT Hariias

Tolaalinel Tooge s

LG R

51,800.00

reer ceductoc

20 ater deduchald

32 00U
S, LN

TRl Rl e

T H T B S

= Sere ez D=d_clEl= Fadl s
o LR EEC Sk 236 Capay
Spems ahss PR Ciasg 0 Saacy
Fal2ll o 1)% 5 Dias )

et d = ] M M AL o B WL LS
Zuragly g

oy o eh Teohel 33,436,230 SRS
Tl Srrvaa Wax Lo son

(et

EAEFR mtiedoF S T E

S ERD 00

L

ARG 1N Fl

i Dopays

324.250.60
S8, B

FEAREES i RN

FdL Fh

500 2511

500
<8140

| AL

| Emmleaer HRA:

HRE FEcs
Y HR

51
aalekl
1000

750
L B

JELE

Ll

i

W 0 am Mecker inclu s Caduzil e e craags, irclnding perase ks
1 Arthory HRA T e pasd

ArETtin
I.Hlzal:r

=abr wiesd LA
i ciin

I

ke Talal

TEOT AL 43

pold L1 skl

AhA Faka

19,0 0L0d

Fiusle=d Jolal

allle (1440

Lire Erplowin
Jartnardtn

Sl

Eivg i
Far=onrh iy

R L

=T

SHED 1G] FS

B b B | et 2
e L ETTE

e F




Rita Yaughn

-Fram:
Anni:
Tao:

Lo
Subject:

irEy b
Tl Ma e
art I'i"|i-'_|'| S I | P
RE LiTe

Woo rovcive e AsLicin wision fomsiel

than the <15 dssociation plan.

Four BEenevess|

flidzs i

Atk ar Qely

el Harcinn = owrdingip zelbcllendcwin -
vlay 17, A A0 R
Sl na Cornvesll; <ertoin Mwel

Vo i rocefee aminrrease, howeever the stnd alone plon isa (2% aenniss cheaner

Wotibkan

i
b

1

d

;__ "4'!-*: |’.‘lﬁf -\.H:l-u-\.-i".'.'
| l-hlrmm-'w' ¢ nlﬁ:l

e B A e

ERE

aeis

=35

CLC Assccialion Babes fur Lhe sames plan

4-Tier Rates

B4 T

Employes +

Employas Spouse

Optionz2i [ J] %942

Plans

$16.83 |

Employee
+
Ehild(ren)

Family

15,01
$14.82

Oplion Eml $8.99
Option 28 [ T[] 5847

521,40

324.53

I e b L cupro
Ter sl billing ard canra
o

Fizinal

1hanks,

Kally Harding
Lee-Prisioani r..:,f Et-'ne-'“nl- und Weilness
ATNAN 3 1363 — - (N
ALASE.ELAL — e

Peel ..' Holland

T URANCE

Ri5-Eah-587Y9 — Fa-

Colan il MO pe oen the prrtal,

It e e Lo LF

P. 130

ard nne. Glazl adan't heve o make Lhie docishon '-:!_J-,;
liwing Lhis on Uhes paertal @il beowary sice far seesyore,

22607

WAL L s

Pl il Ba o the portal @lloeing

r-.-I'_.- recam e adatios sl d t.-l.



LEL "d

IM=-RETWWIHRE BEMEFI 5

MLk

Dispnstic & Provsnlve Serviies
Hiecride and space mainnees
ETved e o Palist ve T gt

Bl innigpy
il CroAn roga

Hdentalsireeny
Deplim Hpml-

Mafor Serios
Parodontc SiraEms
Lo
Pemdtndosat o - oridges atd camdnnes
Erbne ond rodado deesd e
AL e T Ben

Ao h Wakn

Orihadonlic Sergeps

Urares, £lme, photic, Sasls

Oy Tor dependent childrss ug b age 90

12 Wiailh: Wisiting Frrod

RATES

Bt sl Bl ol 1 L RN PR T L | 1. T S

e PO 11 T T T L et (1 R 18

Delka Cpklcen L
Employar Pakd

S A HTT P [
PR e P

Delta Dental Plans
Cavarage Effective Q7012000

(et Opthan 2

Emplayer Paid
o T IR AT LI

LENEEr

0|
LY

[re=hta Qpptian 5
Ernplayer Paid

debta deirl AFT +
“ramizr

Dtz Option 14

Employer Fald

b R I L
=r==l=r

i

Debts Option 15
{1 Employer Paid

il R T AT R
R

T3 E

CETN N

Tl E{.:-.I:. e
W
A B i),

Bneraren Agengy Vit 'ﬂ o

Dalis Opetion 11

Wolutary Plan

ElA lm=pa] P -

rimici

BN LED N L [JE) FLlk
L ) 1l L ) L
e Ik ™ 120y e L=,
LIGH RLa-H li.ra o i1 HE 2
1.iin O [ H el
s |

Alis [P L 22X [ Hl R
LB X B inky Gk e
lla Ak B 20 1 e e
X EGE [ oy b n-as

bt sk IGE “H lie H
Lo L thia 0w s HH
L a5 1k Y EH T ¥
H R HLH ) I+ ol 0
i L 50 il R t

haresn wich Proal o
UL S EY el R
| R ETE HTH BT R A T e Ll g TR T T [T | SERS EN LT ST B R R (T POTRPT TR PTPoy | Soh
Jra: o P et ma T LB
Lapread e Pooolad
Prior Cotrcrapu
: 1
- oy il o L Bel.EL P B
54320 AL kit L
3L qiCE? Tl e KEERR I}
| L2l Ch Srd el f='

fe e msanirrsze sondd Abore. o
RTINSl R T Y

e anbra srveizls s, Ll
s renk e e Thi: Dol et s 0 Favincup Ce Tl

[ LAEL A (Y

crandimirzionzedl se

S W RTHETE A




fedical & HEA
Cin ployae
Criployea fSgoUse
Frplenpee fChild
Family

Dental

Criplayea

Fro plonpoe fapouss
EmployaefChild
Family

Wisien

Erv.ployes
CrployeefSpouse
Frnplayesf Child
Family

Analysic of Annual Increase in Employee Paid Medical Benefits

F. 132

Frzo1d F¥20z0 Varianer {Annual [ncrease)
Maan Serieskasr Emaker Mon Smnloaer smoker Mon Smoker amnker
| 1352 s 1414 | 1839 A i |
25 An.u2 203 3544 | Tl 4820 |
i W o 2ra L, 3349 an.md 656 |
w0 5160 a0 75 L 4.5 632k !
5 L 555 L4HR
£.73 ks S
360 1301 A543
.74 AN, 048
.01 294 144
A.24 A .96
£.45 .57 144 |



UTILITIES

P. 133



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners

FROM: Chris Klotter, Public Works Director

DATE: June 5, 2019

SUBJECT: Water and Sewer Contracts for Northwoods Subdivision

Attached is a copy of the Water and Sewer Contracts for Northwoods Subdivision development.
Included in these contract is the requirement for a surety bond, or irrevocable letter of credit to
be filed with the City and shall span the length of time for construction. This is to assure that
the public facilities are constructed to completion according to the City’s specifications. It also
contains language regarding warranty of the facilities as well as conveyance of property. This
contract is part of the Developer’s procedures and checklist to be followed for all new
developments.

Thank you for your consideration.
Proposed Motion:

Request the authorization for the Mayor to sign the water and sewer contracts and any other
necessary documents for this project.

P. 134



WATER CONTRACT
FOR PUBLIC AND PRIVATE WATER LINES

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into this day of , 20 R
betwéi_’é’ﬁ__ City of Franklin, hereinafter referred to as the “City” and Jones Partners
LLC , hereinafter referred to as the “Developer.”

Fér and in consideration of the sum or sums of money hereinafter mentioned and the
mutual promises of the parties herein contained, and particularly taking into consideration the
fact that the City has installed large storage reservoirs, large pump stations and large distribution
lines, all at great expense, in order that the area involved here, among other areas, might be
developed by the Developer and the community permitted to expand, and further that the City
will in thé future be responsible for repair, maintenance of the total public system, and other
good and 'v'aluable considerations set forth hereinafter, the parties hereto have entered into the
following agreement:

. The City hereby agrees to and will permit the Developer to connect into the City’s

6” water line on Broadway , for water services to Northwoods

Subdivisiéﬁ , subject to the installation and dedication and acceptance in writing by the City
of any required extensions of the City’s existing water lines necessary to serve the development
in accordance with Exhib@ts A, B and C hereto.

2. : The Developer is to install the lines and appurtenances as shown on the plat of the
developmeﬁ% (Exhibit A) in accordance with the plans approved for construction by the City on

4/25/19 » (Exhibit B) and the City’s standard specifications for water lines dated

8/25/03 , (Exhibit C). Exhibits A, B and C are made part of this Contract,

P. 135



3. The Developer is to perform all of the necessary work for the installation of the
above-mentioned lines and appurtenances and completely install the same at no cost to the City,
all in accordance with the plat, plans and specifications hercinabove referred to, and for that

purpose has entered into a contract which is identified as Exhibit D hereto with Sliger

Excavation , Contractor, in the amount of §___217,791.00 .
4, All construction begun, continued and completed hereunder shall be subject to the

inspection and approval of the City and their engineers and representatives who shall have a
continuous right of inspection throughouf the progress of the work. No public or private lines,
meter boxes, fittings, valves or connections shall be covered until inspected and approved for
backfill by the City.

5. Tt is specifically understood and agreed that all installations and material costs,
including but not limited to, all lines, meters, meter boxes, fittings, valves and appurtenances and

_such other facilities as may be required for said development, as well as the cost of acquiring
easements, shall be paid for by the Developer.

6. In the event of change in the plat, plans or specifications referred to above by
written agreement of the parties, prior to the actual installation of the facilities, then such change
shall be deemed incorporated in this Contract, as though set out verbatim herein, and a copy of
saﬁ"change in plat, plans or specifications shall be made a part hereof. It is further understood
that such changed plat, plans or specifications, if any, may be looked to for a total description of
théplbpél‘iiéS conveyed to the City by the Developer.

| 7. The Developer further agrees:
(A)  That the Developer will immediately repair or have replaced at its own

cost and expense all breaks, leaks or defects of any type whatsoever arising from any cause

P. 136



whatsoever occurring within one (1) year from the date said public lines meters, meter boxes,
fittings, valves and appurtenances and other required facilities are accepted in writing by the
City.

(B)  That upon failure of the Developer to take immediate steps after proper
notification to make such repairs, the City is hereby authorized by the Developer to make such
repairs at the cost and expense of the Developer, or to employ others to make such repairs at the
cost and expense of the Developer.,

(Cy  That the obligations of the Developer hereunder are in addition to and not
in lieu of the obligations of the Developer to pay all rates, charges, and fees and satisfy all
obligations set forth in the City’s Schedule of Rates, Charges and Fees that are in effect at the
date such obligations arise; and

(D)  That the Developer will satisfy all of the Developer’s obligations set forth
in separaté agreements between the parties and captioned for sewer contract for public and
private seWer lines; and

8. The City retains the exclusive rights to extend the public lines at no expense to the
Developer at any time it sees fit, and upon the completion of the facilities to be dedicated to the
City. Thc Ijevclopel' hereby represents and warrants that the same shall be paid for in full and
that no; liens or encumbrances shall remain in regard to said public facilities or the installation
thereof,

9. By the execution of this Agreement, the Developer hereby represents and
warrants that both the public and private water lines, meters, meter boxes, fittings, valves and
appul:téflaﬁées and other required facilities constructed by the Developer to serve the

development will be installed in accordance with the plat, plans and specifications above

P. 137



mentioned, and Developer expressly wairants the public facilities constructed by Developer
against defects in workmanship for a period of one (1) year from the date of acceptance in
writing of the public facilities by the City.

10.  When the public facilities are approved Vfor construction by the City, or if
approvéd for construction by the Planning and Zoning Commission prior to the City’s approval,
the City shall maintain the final right of approval for the public facilities, City shall require a
surety bond, irrevocable letter of credit or other security, in the sole discretion of the City, in the
amount of $ 43,558.00, to assure that the public facilities are constructed to completion in
accordance with the City’s specifications.

11, It is agreed that the City shall have exclusive title and ownership of all public
facil'i:gies, i‘.e., the master meter serving the development and all facilities on the City’s side of the
master méter, and the Developer hereby conveys to the City, free and clear of all encumbrarnces,
all of saidtpublic facilities without the necessity of any further contract or deed, subject only to
Athe éccepté’née in writing of said facilities by the City. The Developer shall, upon request of the
Clty ex‘écﬁte and deliver a Deed of Conveyance of all of said propetty, suitably acknowledged
fo-i":l‘egisu'ati011.

Further, and in connection herewith, the parties hereto acknowledge that they have
entered info the MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING attached hereto as Exhibit E.

N WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into this AGREEMENT as of
the dayand date first above written.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

Mayor

P. 138



ATTESTED BY:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

“DEVELOPER”

ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE:

Exhibit A — On File at City of Franklin, Kentucky
Exhibit B - On File at City of Franklin, Kentucky
Exhibit C -- On File at City of Franklin, Kentucky
Exhibit D — On File at City of Franklin, Kentucky
Exhibit E — Attached

Exhibit F — Procedures for Developers

Jones Partners LLL.C

T\ Tovesd

Signﬁ'ﬁé %fﬁorized Representative

200 Robey Street
Franklin, KY 42134

(270)586-6749

P. 139



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

For City of Franklin, Kentucky Water Service

to Northwoods Subdivision (Proposed Development)

It is agreed by and between the City and the Developer:

Tile Developer, his contractor, plumber, or other agents will not be entitled to water
service or sewer service connection until final approval of the public and private water and sewer
line construction (both on-site and off-site) has been made by City of Franklin, and confirmed by
the City in writing to the Developer.

Said approval will not be unreasonably withheld.

PROPOSED Northwoods Subdivision
DEVELOPMENT:
DEVELOPER: Jones ParinersZ.L,

/ sk Joad
Si gan 1otized Representative

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

By:

P. 140



SEWER CONTRACT
FOR PUBLIC AND PRIVATE SEWER LINES

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into this day of , 20,
between City of Franklin, hereinafter referred to as the “City” and Jones Partners,
LLC , hereinafter referred to as the “Developer.”

For and in consideration of the sum or sums of money hereinafter mentioned and the
mutual promises of the parties herein contained, and particularly taking into consideration the
fact that the City has installed a sewerage plant, pump stations and large trunk sewer lines, all at
great expense, in order that the area involved here, among other areas, might be developed by the
Developer and the community permitted to expand, and further that the City will in the future be
responsible for repair, maintenance and replacement of said public facilities herein provided for
and for the maintenance of the total public system, and for other good and valuable
considerations set forth hereinafter, the parties hereto have entered into the following agreement:

1. The City hereby agrees to and will permit“thc Developer to connect into the City’s

existing sewer line at Highway 1008 next to railroad tracks , for sewer service to

Northwoods Subdivision , subject to the installation and dedication and acceptance

in writing by the City of any required extensions of the City’s existing sewer lines necessary to
serve the development in accordance with Exhibits A, B and C hereto.

2. The Developer is to install the lines and appurtenances as shown on the plat of the
development (Exhibit A) in accordance with the plans approved for construction by the City on
_4/25/19 , (Exhibit B) and the City’s standard specifications for sewer lines dated

8/25/03 , (Exhibit C). Exhibits A, B, and C are made part of this Contract.

P. 141



3. The Developer is to perform all of the necessary work for the installation of the
above-mentioned lines and appurtenances and completely install the same at no cost to the City,
all in accordance with the plat, plans and specifications hercinabove referred to, and for that

purpose has entered into a contract which is identified as Exhibit D hereto with Sliger

Exgavation , Contractor, in the amountof $  217,791.00

' 4, All construction begun, continued and completed hereunder shall be subject to the
inspection and approval of the City and their engineers and representatives who shall have a
continuous right of inspection throughout the progress of the work. No public or private lines,
fittings, manholes, or connections shall be covered until inspected and approved for backfill by
the City.

5. It is specifically understood and agreed that all installations and material costs,
including but not limited to, all lines, manholes, fittings, and appurtenances and such other
facilities as may be required for said development, as well as the cost of acquiring easements,
shall be paid for by the Developer.

6. In the event of change in the plat, plans or specifications referred to above by
written agreement of the parties, prior to the actual installation of the facilities, then such change
shall be deemed incorporated in this Contract, as though set out verbatim herein, and a copy of
said change in plat, plans or specifications shall be made a part hereof. It is further understood
that such changed plat, plans or specifications, if any, may be looked to for a total description of
the prc;ﬁerties conveyed to the City by the Developer.

| 7. The Developer further agrees:
(A) That the Developer will immediately repair or have replaced at its own cost

and expense all breaks, leaks or defects of any type whatsoever arising from any cause

P. 142



whatsoever occurring within one (1) year from the date said public lines, manholes, fittings, and
appurtenances and other required facilities are accepted in writing by the City.

(B) That upon failure of the Developer to take immediate steps after proper
notification to make such repairs, the City is hereby authorized by the Developer to make such
repairs at the cost and expense of the Developer, or to employ others to make such repairs at the
cost and expense of the Developer.

(C) That the obligations of the Developer hereunder are in addition to and not in
lieu of the obligations of the Developer to pay all rates, charges, and fees and satisfy all
obligations set forth in the City’s Schedule of Rates, Charges and Fees that are in effect at the
date such obligations arise.

(D) That the Developer will satisfy all of the Developer’s obligations set forth in
separate» agreements between the parties and captioned for water contract for public and private
sewer lines; and

8. The City retains the exclusive rights to extend the public lines at no expense to the
Developer at any time it sees fit, and upon the completion of the facilities to be dedicated to the
City. The Developer hereby represents and warrant that the same shall be paid for in full and
that no liens or encumbrances shall remain in regard to said public facilities or the installation
thereof.

0. By the executio_n of this Agreement, the Developer hereby represents and
warrants that both the public and private sewer lines, manholes, fittings, and appurtenances and
other required facilities constructed by the Developer to serve the development will be installed

in accordance with the plat, plans and specifications above mentioned, and Developer expressly

P. 143



warrants the public facilities constructed by Developer against defects in workmanship for a
period of one (1) year from the date of acceptance in writing of the public facilities by the City.
10. When the public facilities are approved for construction by the City, or if
approved for construction by the Planning and Zoning Commission prior to the City’s approval,
the City shall maintain the final right of approval for the public facilities. City shall require a
surety bond, irrevocable letter of credit or other security, in the sole discretion of the City, in the

amount of §_ 43.558.00 , to assure that the public facilities are constructed to completion

in accordance with the City’s specifications.

11 Itis agreed that the City shall have exclusive title and ownership of all public
facilities, i.e., the metering manhole and all facilities on the City’s side of the metering manhole,
and the Developer hereby conveys to the City, free and clear of all encumbrances, all of said
public facilities without the necessity of any further contract or deed, subject only to the
acceptal.lce':ill writing of said facilities by the City. The Developer shall, upon request of the
City, execu‘te and deliver a Deed of Conveyance of all of said property, suitably acknowledged
for regisiraf}ion.

Further, and in connection herewith, the parties hereto acknowledge that they have
entered iﬁto the MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING attached hereto as Exhibit E.

| IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into this CONTRACT as of

the day and date first above written.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

. Mayor
ATTESTED BY:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

P. 144



“DEVELOPER”

ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE:

Exhibit A — On File ar City of Franklin, Kentucky
Exhibit B — On File at City of Franklin, Kentucky
Exhibit C — On File at City of Franklin, Kentucky
Exhibit D — On File at City of Franklin, Kentucky
Exhibit E — Attached

Exhibit F — Procedures for Developers

Jones Partners LLC

‘:T‘vg\n TongS
Signaﬁo@«fﬂzed Representative

200 Robey Street
Franklin, KY 42134
(270)586-6749

P. 145



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

For City of Franklin, Kentucky Sewer Service

to Northwoods Subdivision (Proposed Development)

It is. agreed by and between the City and the Developer:

The Developer, his contractor, plumber, or other agents will not be entitled to water
service or sewer service connection until final approval of the public and private water and sewer
line construction (both on-site and off-site) has been made by City of Franklin, and confirmed by
the City in writing to the Developer,

Said approval will not be unreasonably withheld.

PROPOSED Northwoods Subdivision
DEVELOPMENT:
DEVELOPER: Jones PartnetgLL

ik Saws
Si gnatxﬂmWed Representative

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

By:

P. 146



ORDINANCES

P. 147



Sponsors: _Commissioner Powell
Commissioner Stewart

Second Reading: _June 10, 2019

Publication Date:  _June 20, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - 013

AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE ADOPTING A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
OF ANNEXATION FOR THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

WHEREAS, the Mayor of the City of Franklin has heretofore appointed a committee
to study the needs of the City of Franklin relative to expansion and growth; and,

WHEREAS, said committee has reported to the Board of City CommissionersCity
Ceuneil of Franklin, Kentucky; and

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 110.19 was adopted at a meeting held by the Board of
Commissioners on October 11. 1982 adopting a comprehensive plan of annexation for the
City of Franklin, Kentucky:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Franklin, Kentucky that the
following Comprehensive Plan of Annexation be amended and adopted as follows:

I
That it is in the best interests of the City of Franklin to annex to the City all of that
territory outside the present City boundaries that is now being served by the Franklin

Municipal Water System or the City of Franklin Sanitation Department or the City of Franklin
Electric Plan Board.

I
That, as services of the City of Franklin are extended outward from the City of
Franklin, said areas be incorporated into the City of Franklin so that orderly development and

services shall be maintained and an equal and fair payment of the costs of said services be
maintained.

11
That in furtherance of said plan, the following order of annexation is adopted:
A. The area generally north of the City of Franklin.
B. The area generally east of the City of Franklin.
C. The area generally south of the City of Franklin.

D. The area generally west of the City of Franklin.

P. 148



v

The adoption of this plan does not in any way prohibit annexation to the City of
Franklin of any area requesting annexation, but is adopted rather as a general guide for future
expansion.

\Y%

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance is for
any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such
portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall
not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.

VI

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such
conflict, hereby repealed.

May 13, 2019 FIRST READING
June 10, 2019 SECOND READING
At a meeting of the City Commission of the City of Franklin, Kentuvcky, held on June
10, 2019, on motion made by Commissioner and
seconded by Commissioner , the foregoing ordinance

was adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote:
HERBERT WILLIAMS
JAMIE POWELL
BROWNIE BENNETT
WENDELL STEWART
LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, Mayor

ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

P. 149



ORDINANCE 2019-010

Sponsors:

Commissioner Powell

Commissioner Stewart

Second Reading:
Publication Date:

June 10, 2019
June 20, 2019

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2018 AND ENDING
JUNE 30, 2019 BY ESTIMATING REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS

WHEREAS, the City Commission for the City of Franklin, Kentucky is required by law to amend its budget ordinance to reflect actual revenues and
expenditures if different from those projected; and

WHEREAS, it has been reported to the City Commission that actual revenues collected and costs expended by the city during the 2018-2019 fiscal
year are different from those projected in the current budget ordinance, and it is therefore necessary to amend the 2018-2019 budget ordinance to reflect

these variances,

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City of Franklin, Kentucky that the 2018-2019 budget is hereby amended to read as follows:

Estimated Revenues:
Operating Revenue

Tax Revenue

Licenses & Fees

intergovernmental Revenue

Fines & Forfeits

intragovernmental Revenues iN

Miscellaneous Revenue
Non-Operating Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

Appropriations:
General Government

Police

Fire

Public Services
Community Services
Stormwater

Municipal Utilities
Sanitation

Economic Development
Municipal Aid/Severance
Municipal Cemetery
Debt Service

Capital Outlay

General
Fund

1,073,454
5:601 :955
’242:864
55:500

1 ,097:846

, 195:742
—384.743

8,267,361
—38;076;362

1,882,339
—880:339
2,284,704
—2:278;804
274,365
——274.365
811,297

— 809,707
1,308:694
—1;266:987

295,245
— 295045

752,102
— 417084

Stormwater
Fund Utility Fund
353,000 5,688,910

Sanitation
Fund

950,500

Municipal
Aid Fund

187,595

Cemetery Perpetual
Fund Care

81,300 7,400

850

186,000
—185.000

625

- 53236 850 — 100,550 — 625 — 4,275

353,000 5,742,146

951,350

288,145

267,925 13,650

— 353,000 5742146 — 951,350 —288;145 258625 — 7475

505,249
—505;248
887,070
—+H4H44490

1,463
—30,008

Page 1 of 2, AMEND #3 ORD 2019-010

P. 150

95,000

204,966
—204.09%

5,000

95000 —5.000

CDBG
Fund



General Stormwater Utility Fund Sanitation Municipal Cemetery Perpetual CbBG

Fund Fund Fund Aid Fund Fund Care Fund

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 7,608,746 210,021 4,400,510 704,404 381,500 209,966 - -
— 222,621 —218,308 —4;506;500 — 704,404 384,500 — 209,091

EXCESS RESOURCES 658,615 142,979 1,341,636 246,946 (93,355) 57,959 13,650 -
—853;744 134,692 -—1;145:646 246,946 —(93.355) — 49,534 7175

RESERVE 217,600 - 567,225 - - - - -
—215,600 ——8 —312.720

TRANSFERS OUT 383,000 - 700,000 209,500 - 51,646 3,000 -
—383,000 ——— —700;000 —209,500 — —51,646 —3,000

CHANGE [N FUND BALANCE 58,015 142,979 74,411 37,446 (93,355) 6,313 10,650 -

—253;14% —134;692 132,866 — 37,446 —(93;365) — {2112) — 4475

SECTION 2: The regulatory license fee shall be eight percent (8%) of gross sales of all alcoholic beverages sold by the drink. In the case of retail sales of
package distilled spirits, wine and malt beverages, the regulatory license fee shall be five percent (5%) of gross sales. The annual rate for the regulatory
license fee adopted by the City Commission is estimated to ensure full reimbursement to the city for the cost of any additional policing, regulatory, or
administrative expense related to the sale of alcoholic beverages in the city.

SECTION 3: The detailed budget proposal and message, together with modifications, are hereby adopted and incorporated by the reference herein, the
same as if copied at length herein.

SECTION 4: This ordinance is effective upon its passage and publication.

SECTION 5: If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or a portion of this ordinance is declared illegal, unconstitutional or otherwise
invalid, such declaration shall not affect the remaining portions hereof.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

FIRST READING SECOND READING

At a meeting of the Franklin City Commission held on on motion made by and seconded by Commissioner

. the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote.

Commissioner Brownie Bennett
Commissioner Herbert Williams
Commissioner Jamie Powell
Commissioner Wendell Stewart
Mayor Larry Dixon

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KY

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KY

A DETAILED COPY OF THE BUDGET MAY BE SEEN AT CITY HALL,117 W CEDAR STREET, FRANKLIN KENTUCKY
BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 8:30 A.M. AND 4:30 P.M. MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY.

P. 151



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-014

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, AUTHORIZING THE GRANT OF AN
INDUCEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF A
PROJECT PURSUANT TO THE KENTUCKY BUSINESS INVESTMENT
PROGRAM (KRS 154.32-010 TO 154.32-100) WHEREBY THE CITY AGREES
TO FOREGO THE COLLECTION OF THE ONE PERCENT (1%) CITY
OCCUPATIONAL LICENSE FEE ON WAGES FROM HOLLEY
PERFORMANCE PRODUCTS, INC. THAT WOULD OTHERWISE BE DUE
WITH RESPECT TO PROJECT EMPLOYEES, WHICH AMOUNTS SHALL
BE COLLECTED AND REMITTED TO THE CITY TO BE REFUNDED UPON
EMPLOYER’S REQUEST OVER A TERM OF NOT LONGER THAN TEN (10)
YEARS FROM THE ACTIVATION DATE ESTABLISHED BY SAID
PROGRAM; AND TAKING OTHER RELATED ACTION

WHEREAS, it is the public policy of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky (“City
Commission” and “City”) to encourage, promote, and support economic development, new job formation, and the
development and growth of industry and commerce, and to preserve existing jobs in Kentucky for the public purposes of
providing employment opportunities for its citizens and residents, alleviating conditions of unemployment, stabilizing and
promoting the economy of Kentucky, and creating new tax bases and sources of revenue for the Commonwealth;

WHEREAS, the Kentucky Business Investment Program, Sections 154.32-010 through 154.32-100 of the
Kentucky Revised Statutes (“KRS”), the (“Program”), authorizes and empowers the Commonwealth and certain local
jurisdictions to promote economic development in Kentucky by inducing the creation of economic development projects
by eligible companies, as more particularly described therein;

WHEREAS, KRS 154.32-090 authorizes an eligible company to deduct certain wage assessments from payments
of wages to economic development project employees and each employee paying the assessment, in turn, to credit the
assessment against their Kentucky individual income tax and, subject to the approval of the local levying authority or
authorities, local occupational license fee or fees otherwise due;

WHEREAS, Holley Performance Products, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company™), 1801 Russellville
Road, Bowling Green, Kentucky 42101, has proposed to acquire and install within the City a project consisting of a
building, equipment and new employment as described in Exhibit A attached hereto (collectively, the “Project™);

WHEREAS, the Company has represented to the City that the acquisition, construction and installation of the
Project, if constructed, will result in a substantial number of new job opportunities in the community, and the Company
agrees to comply with the provisions of City of Franklin Ordinance No. 221.10-06-2014;

WHEREAS, the Company has filed an application with the Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority
(the “Authority”) for approval of the Project for the Program as authorized in KRS 154.32-030;

WHEREAS, it is appropriate and in the public interest that the City Commission make a formal, binding
commitment of financial resources in order to encourage and support economic development endeavors generally and the Project
specifically if and when approved by the Authority pursuant to KRS 154.32-030; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has approved the granting of an inducement to the Company for the Project,
pursuant to the Program, whereby it would forego the collection of the one percent (1%) occupational license fee on wages
that otherwise would be due the City, which fee shall be retained by the Company, with respect to Project employees
whose jobs meet the criteria and requirements established by the Program (“Qualifying Employees™) for a term of not
longer than ten (10) years from the date the Company properly activates the Program’s incentives pursuant to KRS 154.32-
030 and any agreement relating to the Project that the Company has with the Authority (the “Activation Date”).

P. 152



NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. It is hereby found, determined and declared that the recitals set forth in the preambles to this
Ordinance, which are incorporated in this Section by reference, are true and correct.

Section 2. Inducement. The City shall forego collection of, and Company shall be entitled to collect and
retain the one percent (1%) City occupational license fee due on wages paid to Qualifying Employees for a term of not
longer than ten (10) years from the Activation Date (the “Inducement Term”), as specified herein.

Section 3. Company to Deduct and Withhold Occupational License Fee on Wages. The Company, when
making payment of wages to Qualifying Employees earned with respect to the Inducement Term, shall deduct and
withhold upon the wages the one percent (1%) City occupational license fee. The Company shall remit to the City and
report such withheld amounts on the forms and reconciliations required by KRS 67.783(4) and (5) and Chapter 114 of the
City Code of Ordinances. The Company shall file, not less than quarterly in accordance with the City of Franklin’s Code
of Ordinances, with the City of Franklin, the City of Franklin Employers Quarterly Return provided by the City,
specifically addressing the issues related to the KBI Program. In addition, the company shall file a quarterly reconciliation
of the City of Franklin’s Occupational License Fees in a format as required by the City. If the company fails to comply
with the provisions of this Section, the company (or its representatives as the case may be) shall be subject to the penalty
provisions set forth in Chapter 114 of the City’s occupational licensing and gross receipts ordinance(s), as amended from
time to time, or forfeiture of future participation in this program.

Section 4. Company Entitled to Reimbursement for Withheld and Remitted Amounts. The Company shall
remit said withheld amounts to the City pursuant to Section 3 of this Ordinance. The Company shall receive
reimbursement from the City, once per annum, after making the request, in writing, on the forms provided by the City, with
said reimbursement being due and payable not later than sixty (60) days after the Company files the written request for
reimbursement. Provided, however, that said reimbursement request shall not be filed later than two (2) years from the
date that the Company’s annual license fee returns are initially due, without regard to any extensions received or allowed.

Section 5. Qualifying Employees Entitled to Credit for Withheld Amounts. Each Qualifying Employee
shall be entitled to a credit against his or her occupational license fee liability to the City under KRS 67.785(3) and Chapter
114 of the City of Franklin Code of Ordinances equal to the amounts withheld from his or her wages pursuant to Section 3
of this Ordinance.

Section 6. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and publication as
required by law.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent
provision, and such holdings shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

FIRST READING

SECOND READING

P. 153



At a meeting of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on June , 2019,
and on motion made by and seconded by , the
foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote:

BROWNIE BENNETT
JAMIE POWELL
HERBERT WILLIAMS
WENDELL STEWART
LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that [ am the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Franklin,
Kentucky, and as such City Clerk I further certify that the foregoing is a true, correct and complete copy of an Ordinance
(including Exhibit A) duly adopted by the Board of City Commissioners of said City at a duly convened meeting held on
June , 2019, on the same occasion signed by the Mayor, duly filed, recorded and indexed in my office and now in
force and effect, and that all action taken in connection with such Ordinance was in compliance with the requirements of
KRS 61.810 through 61.825, all as appears from the official records of said Board of City Commissioners in my possession
and under my control. »

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said City this day of June,
2019.

(SEAL)

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

P. 154



Exhibit A

Project Description for Holley Performance Products, Inc.

See letter and KBI Report attached hereto and incorporated herein collectively by reference.

P. 155



ORDINANCE 2019-011

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2019
AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2020 BY ESTIMATING REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS

WHEREAS, an annual budget proposal and message have been prepared and delivered to the legislative body for review and modification,
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City of Franklin, Kentucky.
Section 1: That the annual budget for the Fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020 is hereby adopted as follows:

Stormwater Sanitation Municipal Cemetery Perpetual
General Fund Fund Utility Fund Fund Aid Fund Fund Care
Estimated Revenues:
Operating Revenue - 247,500 5,292,000 722,000 - 77,000 7,400
Tax Revenue 1,067,396 - - - - - -
Licenses & Fees 5,436,100 - - 244,000 - - -
Intergovernmental Revenue 419,062 - - - 338,367 - -
Fines & Forfeits 57,000 - 208,750 26,000 - - -
Intragovernmental Revenues 592,998 100,000 - - - 186,000 -
Miscellaneous Revenue 239,698 15,402 221,723 7,500 2,100 607 12,647
Non-Operating Revenue - - - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 7,812,253 362,902 5,722,473 999,500 340,467 263,607 20,047
Appropriations:
General Government 1,457,183 - - - - - -
Police 2,356,719 - - - - - -
Fire . 279,553 - - - - - -
Public Services 805,888 - - - - - R
Community Services 611,121 - - - - - -
Economic Development 739,000 - - - - - -
Stormwater - 213,804 - - - - -
Municipal Utilities - - 3,540,156 - - - -
Sanitation - - - 725,000 - - -
Municipal Aid/Severance - - - - 245,250 - -
Municipal Cemetery - - - - - 204,521 -
Debt Service 544,040 - 606,956 - - - -
Capital Outlay 574,565 - 664,017 - - 5,000 -
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 7,368,069 213,804 4,811,129 725,000 245,250 209,521 -
EXCESS RESOURCES 444,184 149,098 911,344 274,500 95,217 54,087 20,047

Page 1 of 2, ORDINANCE 2019-011

P. 156



Stormwater Sanitation Municipal Cemetery
General Fund Fund Utility Fund Fund Aid Fund Fund

RESERVE FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 105,000 - 337,761 - - -
TRANSFERS OUT 433,000 - 243,498 209,500 95,000 52,400
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (93,816) 149,098 330,085 65,000 217 1,687

SECTION 2: The regulatory license fee shall be eight percent (8%) of gross sales of all alcoholic beverages sold by
the drink. In the case of retail sales of package distilled spirits, wine and malt beverages, the regulatory license fee
shall be five percent (5%) of gross sales. The annual rate for the regulatory license fee adopted by the City
Commission is estimated to ensure full reimbursement to the city for the cost of any additional policing, regulatory,
or administrative expense related to the sale of alcoholic beverages in the city.

SECTION 3: The detailed budget proposal and message, together with modifications, are hereby adopted and
incorporated by the reference herein, the same as if copied at length herein.

SECTION 4: This ordinance is effective upon its passage and publication.

SECTION 5: If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or a portion of this ordinance is
declared illegal, unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such declaration shall not affect the remaining portions hereof.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

FIRST READING SECOND READING

At a meeting of the Frankliin City Commission held on on motion made by and
seconded by Commissioner , the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full discussion,
by the following vote.

Commissioner Brownie Bennett
Commissioner Herbert Williams
Commissioner Jamie Powell
Commissioner Wendell Stewart
Mayor Larry Dixon

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KY

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KY

A DETAILED COPY OF THE BUDGET MAY BE SEEN AT CITY HALL,117 W CEDAR
STREET, FRANKLIN KENTUCKY BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 8:30 A.M. AND 4:30 P.M.
MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY.

Page 2 of 2, ORDINANCE 2019-011

P. 157

Perpetual
Care

3,000

17,047



PUBLIC
SAFETY

P. 158



24 = e
S IHANKLIN S

MEMO

TO: Franklin City Commission

FROM: Scott Crabtree

DATE: June 10, 2019

SUBJECT: Purchase of Property on West Madison Street and Witt Road

We need to discuss and get approval from the Commission to proceed with purchasing property on
West Madison Street and Witt Road. There will be a discussion after this agenda item about the
potential uses for the property. At this time, we need to approve the following:

1. Purchase the property located at 620 West Madison Street currently owned by Luis Paez and
his wife with the closing to occur on or before July 15, 2019.

2. Purchase the property located at 203 Witt Road currently owned by BDG Investments, LLC,
with the closing to occur on a date agreed to by the parties.

3. Purchase the property located at 211 Witt Road currently owned by Rita and Rod Anthony,
with the closing to occur on a date agreed to by the parties.

Of course, any motion would also need to include that the Mayor be authorized to sign any and all
documents including, but not limited to contracts and deeds.

P. 159



